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To support San Mig Light's aggressive
expansion, a new television advertisement
entitled “Release” and a highly-publicised
promotion, “Caribbean Sea Cruise,” was
launched.
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THE YEAR’S HIGHLIGHTS | KEERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars except number of

shares issued, shareholders and personnel)

Turnover ($'000)

Loss for the year ($'000)

Loss per share - Basic (cents)

Taxes paid, including beer tax ($'000)
Taxes paid per share (cents)

Fixed assets ($'000)

Net worth ($'000)

Salaries, wages and other benefits ($'000)
Number of shares issued

Number of shareholders

Number of personnel
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2011
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683,879

(68,638)

(14)

36,009

10

389,671

297,223

101,023

373,570,560

2,146

635

2010
—E-FTF

589,322

(773,987)

(197)

42,020

1

398,011

391,474

96,719

373,570,560

2,172
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To Our Shareholders,

In 2011, San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) managed
to turnaround and significantly improve the profitability of its Hong Kong
operations, driven by higher domestic sales and the growth of its exports
business. While San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited and its subsidiaries’
(the “Group’s”) South China operations continued to face challenges, thus
weighing down the Group’s consolidated results, 2011 was still an
improvement for our operations in South China. Consolidated turnover of
the Group was at HK$683.9 million, an increase of 16.0% from 2010 (2010:
HK$589.3 million) and gross profit for 2011 was at HK$296.8 million (2010:
HK$255.6 million). The Group’s gross profit margin was maintained at 43.4%
(2010: 43.4%).

Consolidated loss for 2011 was HK$68.6 million mainly due to losses from
our South China operations, but this was a considerable improvement from
the HK$774.0 million loss in 2010 (2010 included an impairment loss of
HK$677.3 million (net of tax effect) and 2011 included an impairment loss
of HK$5.5 million (net of tax effect)).

Cash and cash equivalents and bank deposits (excluding bank loans) as of
31 December 2011 amounted to HK$243.6 million (2010: HK$286.4 million)
of which HK$198.0 million (2010: HK$60.0 million) was pledged to secure
the Group’s banking facilities. Total net assets were at HK$297.2 million
(2010: HK$391.5 million), with a debt-to-equity ratio of 1.06 (2010: 0.64).
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No dividends will be declared for 2011.

HONG KONG OPERATIONS

2011 was a very good year for our Hong Kong operations. Our Company'’s
total volume and revenue grew by 16% and 24%, respectively over the
previous year, owing to higher domestic volumes, further supported by
higher exports sales.

After a strong start, Hong Kong's economy slowed down toward the end
of the year, with the government projecting 5% full year growth. The
territory’s total beer industry took its cue from the overall economy and
posted a moderate 2% growth for 2011. Yet while this was the case for the
beer industry, the Company'’s sales volume in domestic market finished
the year with a 9% growth, further strengthening the Company’s position
as the No. 1 beer company in Hong Kong with our flagship brand San Miguel
at the forefront.

This marked improvement stems from our commitment to maximise
shareholder value through continuously strengthening our portfolio of
brands, and providing a high level of service to our customers and
maintaining strict cost management measures.

In 2010, the Company launched the lower calorie San Mig Light small bottle
in high-end outlets to strengthen the overall San Miguel image and
presence. For 2011, the Company is pleased to report that sales volume of
San Mig Light grew by 356% over the previous year, with the launch of the
big bottles in Chinese restaurants and Daipaidongs in June 2011. To support
San Mig Light's aggressive expansion, a new television advertisement
entitled “Release” and a highly-publicised promotion, “Caribbean Sea
Cruise”, was launched. This new advertisement campaign received a high
approval rating and further ensured the success of the new San Mig Light.

The second half of 2011 saw the introduction of a new line extension of
San Miguel brand, San Miguel Premium All Malt, providing the consumers
a fresh alternative among the portfolio of brands competing in the premium
segment. While distribution is limited and exclusive to the higher-end
market, it aims to enhance the overall San Miguel brand image.

For our flagship San Miguel Pale Pilsen, we continue to build our brand’s
association with sports and music. On the sports front, the brand sustained
its association with soccer through the “San Miguel Soccer Union”, a series
of enhanced viewing parties designed to provide an exhilarating
environment for consumers to view Premier League soccer matches in
bars and to participate in live feeds from these viewing venues. The brand
also continued to be the exclusive sponsor of San Miguel Beer Garden of
the Hong Kong Dragon Boat Carnival 2011 organised by the Hong Kong
Tourism Board. On the music front, San Miguel Pale Pilsen, with TVB.com
as the major media partner, organised the “Music Battle”. It was also the
exclusive beer sponsor of the much talked-about music and arts festival,
Clockenflap 2011.
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HONG KONG OPERATIONS (Continued)

After securing the exclusive distributorship of Budweiser and Harbin in
Hong Kong and Macau beginning May 2011, the Company was able to
further strengthen its portfolio of brands, and is poised to further dominate
the market.

SOUTH CHINA OPERATIONS

While our two companies in South China posted losses in 2011, there were
nevertheless improvements in their operations.

The market conditions in South China continued to be challenging as
competitors utilised aggressive trade offers, especially in the wholesaler
channel, to grab market share. Given this situation, both companies have
been more conscientious in balancing the need to protect our position in
the market and our bottom-line.

Total revenues of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited
("GSMB") registered an improvement, despite the decline in total volume
versus last year, due to a favorable product mix. Meanwhile, growth
momentum in the retail chains was sustained, with the channel posting a
double-digit volume increase over last year. GSMB also grew volume in
West and North Guangdong, stemming from its efforts to strengthen
distribution coverage in areas outside the core markets of Dongguan.

In April, GSMB launched the new San Mig Light with an enhanced formula,
new packaging design and new positioning in the market. The launch was
supported with a new marketing campaign, “Fun Drinking Moment”,
highlighted by the popular “Release” television commercial from Hong
Kong.

San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited ("SMGB") recorded a
decline in total sales of its local Dragon brand versus the previous year. In
response to the intense market competition and to maximise the
organisational effectiveness and efficiency of the whole South China
Operations, a major business re-structuring was implemented which
involved the integration of the sales and distribution function of Dragon
into GSMB’s operations. Meanwhile, SMGB will concentrate on
manufacturing/tolling with focus on improving utilisation, productivity and
efficiency. This new strategy hopes to provide GSMB improved leverage to
the trade as well as optimised promotion spending both in the trade and
outlets, accelerating the turnaround of GSMB and ensuring the long-term
viability of SMGB. The Dragon brand will continue to be of great importance
to our growth strategy and will truly benefit from this new development.
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COMMUNITY RELATIONS AND SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company strives to be commercially successful and at the same time
socially responsible in the way we do business. We are committed to foster
goodwill and work closely with our local communities to ensure mutual
benefits are achieved.

We continue to promote responsible drinking and to sponsor and
participate in various local events and contribute regularly to charitable
and non-profit organisations.

The Company is also committed to protecting the environment where it
operates and ensuring that various environmental standards set by
government are met or exceeded.

HUMAN RESOURCES

In a people-intensive business, the Company believes in ensuring that our
people are equipped with the right and time-relevant knowledge, skills
and experiences. We continue to develop our employees’ growth and foster
unity in the organisation by investing resources on training, seminars,
mentorship, team-building workshops and direction briefings.

The Company continues to offer competitive remuneration packages
commensurate with industry standards and to provide attractive fringe
benefits, including medical and insurance coverage and retirement
packages to all employees.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company continues to apply the principles of the Code Provisions
under the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, except
for the Code Provision A.4.1. Code Provision A.4.1. sets out that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. At present, all of the non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but are subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years and re-election at the Annual General
Meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.
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FUTURE DIRECTION AND CHALLENGES
The following are the objectives of the Company for the year 2012:

o In Hong Kong, we will continue to improve profitability and increase
our market share through the strengthening of our brand portfolio,
channel rationalisation and growth, margin improvement and cost
rationalisation.

o In South China, we intend to turnaround the business through the
continued channel and geographic expansion of our San Miguel
brands, and take full advantage of the positive consumer and trade
acceptance of San Mig Light since its relaunch. We will also continue
to give focus on the strengthening of dealer and wholesaler network,
as well as on margin improvement and cost rationalisation.

Looking ahead, the Company is confident that we have established a solid
foundation for growth that will enable us to continue the turnaround
momentum that we have started in 2011. We are committed to maximising
shareholder value and making our beer brands ever more relevant to our
customers and consumers. We have well-mapped out growth strategies
that should facilitate the achievement of the Company’s goals. We also
have the right company culture and discipline for cost management in all
aspects of the operations, but especially in areas of production and
logistics.

In closing, we wish to convey our gratitude to our Board of Directors for
their unwavering guidance and support. We also wish to thank our

shareholders, customers and consumers for their continued loyalty; and
the employees for their dedication and hard work.

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

2 February 2012
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To be presented at the Forty-ninth Annual General Meeting of shareholders
to be held at Island Ballroom, Level 5, Island Shangri-La Hong Kong, Two
Pacific Place, Supreme Court Road, Central, Hong Kong on 27 April 2012 at
3:00 p.m.

The directors submit herewith their Annual Report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is a company
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office and
principal place of business at 9/F, Citimark Building, 28 Yuen Shun Circuit,
Siu Lek Yuen, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers. The principal activities and other
particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the
financial statements.

The segment analysis of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
for the financial year is set out in note 3 to the financial statements.

The information in respect of the Group's sales and purchases attributable
to the major customers and suppliers, respectively, during the year is as
follows:

The largest customer SN

Five largest customers in aggregate BhAEP &G
The largest supplier =AM ER

Five largest suppliers in aggregate BRAHEREET

One of the five largest suppliers and one of the five largest customers was
San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the ultimate holding company of the
Company, and its associates (collectively the “San Miguel Group”) in which
Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr.
Motoyasu Ishihara, Mr. Keisuke Nishimura, Mr. Shobu Nishitani and Mr.
Carmelo L. Santiago have beneficial interests to the extent that they either
have equity interests in or are/were directors and/or officers of the San
Miguel Group.
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9.40%
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Save as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates, or any
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 and the state
of the Company’s and the Group's affairs as at that date are set out on
pages 58 to 132 of the financial statements.

Loss attributable to shareholders of HK$53,464,000 (2010: HK$736,984,000)
has been transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The directors have resolved that no final dividend be declared for the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HKS$Nil (2010: HK$Nil).

The Group acquired fixed assets in the amount of HK$9,982,000 (2010:
HK$8,155,000) during the year. Details of these acquisitions and other
movements in fixed assets are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 26(b) to the
financial statements. There were no movements during the year.

The directors of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report are set
out on page 2 of the Annual Report.

With the exception of Ms. Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle), Mr. Teruyuki
Daino and Mr. Shobu Nishitani who were appointed as directors during
the year, all of the directors served as such for the full year.

Mr. Cheung Yuen Tak, Mr. Motoyasu Ishihara and Mr. Keisuke Nishimura
resigned as directors during 2011.
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General Benjamin P. Defensor, Dr. The Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun
and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago retire by rotation in accordance with Article
105 of the Company’s Articles of Association at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Mr. Shobu Nishitani who was appointed as director after the last Annual
General Meeting, retires from the office of director in accordance with
Article 96 of the Company’s Articles of Association, and offer himself for
re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

The directors of the Company as of 31 December 2011 had the following
personal interests in the shares of the Company, its holding companies,
subsidiaries and other associated corporations (within the meaning of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) at that date as recorded in the
register of directors’ interests required to be kept under Section 352 of
the SFO:

(1) INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES

Name
# &

David K. P. Li

BERBE FHREHLT  REFELENER
BAEEHKBARRABERE105EKRE
REGRITZBREAFAE LRAERIER
EAE o

AARREER E—XBRREFRSRTEE
REF - KERNRBEBEREIMHRE - 1
AR BTzRREAFAE LERB(E -

BREERRAFAS LEREE EFTLE
ERN RIS A B AR R AR A HEE
MM BRANER —FRK LN AEHEEE
(—BOEAERERIN 2 IRIFEH °

B(BEH LB GO B3GR ERTFLES
BEETMIsme R E——F+_-_A=
T-RAZARRREENEBRBEARA « HiE
nm - MBARREMEEAR (EERLGE
FEHEERN)) ERTRA 2 BERESIAT

(1) EBRITRAzZEDS

Number of ordinary shares of
HK$0.50 each in the Company

EKARBREE
B SOTZERR ZRHOHA
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HEeRTRA
BREA B zEHD
500,000 0.13%
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(1

INTERESTS IN ISSUED SHARES (Continued)

Name
]

Ramon S. Ang
Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Carmelo L. Santiago

Name
HA

Ramon S. Ang

Carlos Antonio M. Berba
Teruyuki Daino

Shobu Nishitani
Carmelo L. Santiago

* includes corporate interest
*EIE QRIS

FEX
SR
M=

FEX
SRR
RER=
P 1
MR

(1) EBRITRAZEDS @

Number of common shares in
5 Philippine pesos each in
San Miguel Corporation
EHBARBREESERERE

EERZROEE
Number of % of total
shares held issued shares
HEBRITRG
BEREE BEzHDL
376,653 0.011278%
23,645 0.000708%
5,000 0.000149%

Number of common shares in
1 Philippine peso each in
San Miguel Brewery Inc.
ENEEBRARNSREEIFEERR

EERzZBROEE
Number of % of total
shares held* issued shares
HEBITRG
FREgA* B zEHD
5,000 0.000032%
18,000 0.000116%
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%
5,000 0.000032%



REPORT OF DIRECTORS | EE= 4%

(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES

Certain directors of the Company have been granted stock options
to subscribe for common shares in SMC under SMC's stock option
scheme. Particulars of stock options in SMC held by directors during
the year and as at 31 December 2011 are as follows:

Name

e

Common (par value
of 5 Philippine
pesos each):

Ramon . Ang

Carlos Antonio
M. Berba

LB
(BREES

FRERR):

BAX

AEE

Date
granted

RHAM

26/06/2003
26/06/2003
01/10/2004
01/10/2004
10/11/2005
10/11/2005
01/03/2007
01/03/2007
26/06/2008
25/06/2009

26/06/2008
25/06/2009
16/12/2010

Exercise
period
up to

Stock options in San Miguel Corporation
QAR ERE
Number of
options
outstanding
Exercise at the
price per beginning
option of the year

BLAERS

26/06/2011
26/06/2011
01/10/2012
01/10/2012
10/11/2013
10/11/2013
01/03/2015
01/03/2015
26/06/2016
25/06/2017

26/06/2016
25/06/2017
16/12/2018

(2)

(Philippine pesos)

BRTER
GFREER)

54.50
62.50
57.50
70.50
65.00
89.50
63.50
75.50
40.50
58.05

40.50
58.05
120.33

RIEERAD z

ARRETESEREENBRARZER
BB ERBRAEARBLENERRZ
BRERG  c REARR -E——F+
“A=T - BREFHRALENERRZ
FERERBT

EBHATE
ZBREHE

259,422
111,181
266,854
114,366
204,654
136,436
993,386
662,258
765,603
587,556

36,368
56,852
41,556

Number of
options Number of
granted/ options

(exercised) outstanding
during at the end
the year of the year

ERRL/
Bf%) FEHHATHE
ZBREHE ZBREXA

(289,422) -
(111,181) -
— 266,854
— 114,366
— 204,654
— 136,436
— 993,386
- 662,258
- 765,603
- 587,556

(36,368) -

(28,426) 28,426
- 41,556
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(2)

INTERESTS IN UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

All interests in the share and underlying shares of the Company; its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated corporations
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated
corporations a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors of the Company or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age has
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as adopted
by the Company.

(2)

R G 2 & (&)

RRTE -~ BERAR - HEBARREM
BB N E 2 P By KRR R ) s
BaR -

Bk EXCPrAsh - NAE - HERATE
B B8 B Sk EL A B B2 N A AR A R A AR
BREALEZHEARARRESEHBEART
SEM AR Z RO R HERERE

RIBAR R AIRCGE S MR 5P 5352
fEmRTF 2 B  HRE LT ARE
FETEFRZHRETRIAAE AR
Bz - B ETRRSN  REE
HAECBE18IA N 2 FRIGEREF A
DA REAAAERAR - MBARK
HipBp B AR 2B - HERERR ) KB4
B EmPORR -



he Company’s sales volume in

the domestic market finished K Ei
the year with a 9% growth, further
strengthening the Company’s E
position as the No. 1 beer jpgs
company in Hong Kong. 3
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The Company has been notified of the following interests in the Company's WH=ZT——F+=-A=+—H  ARGEX [
issued shares at 31 December 2011 amounting to 5% or more of the  ZIMEARA BB BT E B 2 5%k A _EH AR A

ordinary shares in issue:

Substantial shareholders
FERR

San Miguel Corporation (note 1)
Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (note 1)
San Miguel Brewery Inc. (note 1)

San Miguel Brewing International Limited (note 1)

Neptunia Corporation Limited (note 1)
Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (note 2)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited
(note 2) (as trustee of
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust)

Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (note 2)
(as trustee of another discretionary trust)
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation Limited

(note 2) (as trustee of

The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust)

Li Ka-Shing (note 2)

BT R

Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each

EREEBESOTZEERRS
Number of %
ordinary of total
shares held issued shares
HERTRAE
FEERERER HEZEAL
B RE () 245,720,800 65.78%
BB AR R = g 4 (M EE) 245,720,800 65.78%
A B~ ] (FEE) 245,720,800 65.78%
ENEEBEERAE ) 245,720,800 65.78%
m A BR AR (1) 245,720,800 65.78%
RIEX(RE)BRLE (2 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company
Limited (Fi 5£2) (fE &
The Li Ka-Shing Unity TrustZ 53t A) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited
(322 HERSZS—2RETZETA) 23,703,000 6.34%
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Corporation
Limited (f§5£2) (1E%&
The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary Trust
ZIEFEAN) 23,703,000 6.34%
5 (32 23,703,000 6.34%



REPORT OF DIRECTORS | EE= 4%

Notes:

(1) SMC, Kirin Holdings Company, Limited (“Kirin”), San Miguel Brewery Inc.
("SMB") and San Miguel Brewing International Limited ("SMBIL") are all
deemed to hold the above disclosed interest indirectly through Neptunia
Corporation Limited (“Neptunia”) in the Company because each of SMC
and Kirin holds more than one third of the voting power of SMB, SMB has a
controlling interest in SMBIL and SMBIL has a controlling interest in Neptunia.

2) Mr. Li Ka-Shing is the settlor of each of The Li Ka-Shing Unity Discretionary
Trust ("DT1") and another discretionary trust (“DT2"). Each of Li Ka-Shing
Unity Trustee Corporation Limited (“TDT1", which is the trustee of DT1) and
Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp Limited (“TDT2", which is the trustee of DT2)
holds units in The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust (“UT1") but is not entitled to any
interest or share in any particular property comprising the trust assets of
the said unit trusts. The discretionary beneficiaries of each of DT1 and DT2
are, inter alia, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor, his wife and children, and Mr. Li Tzar
Kai, Richard. Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustee Company Limited (“TUT1") as trustee
of UT1, together with certain companies which TUT1 as trustee of UT1 is
entitled to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at their general meetings, hold more than one-third of the issued
share capital of Cheung Kong (Holdings) Limited (“CKH"). CKH is entitled to
exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at
the general meetings of Conroy Assets Limited and Hamstar Profits Limited.

The entire issued share capital of each of TUT1, TDT1 and TDT2 are owned
by Li Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited (“Unity Holdco”). Each of Mr. Li Ka-
Shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai, Richard is only interested
in one-third of the entire issued share capital of Unity Holdco. TUT1 is
interested in the shares of CKH by reason only of its obligation and power
to hold interests in those shares in its ordinary course of business as trustee
and, when performing its function as trustee, exercises its power to hold
interests in the shares of CKH independently without any reference to Unity
Holdco or any of Mr. Li Ka-Shing, Mr. Li Tzar Kuoi, Victor and Mr. Li Tzar Kai,
Richard as a holder of the shares of Unity Holdco as aforesaid.

By virtue of the SFO, each of Mr. Li Ka-Shing (being the settlor and may
being regarded as a founder of each of DT1 and DT2 for the purpose of the
SFO), TUT1,TDT1, TDT2, and CKH is deemed to be interested in the 23,703,000
shares of the Company of which 13,624,600 shares are held by Conroy
Assets Limited and 10,078,400 shares are held by Hamstar Profits Limited.

All the above interests in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
are long positions.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests required to be recorded in
the register kept under Section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

CEX

(M

MR E AN B R BB At ([
BDXERBELENEERD Tﬂiﬁﬁﬁ
M) =02 — A L2 IREHE - AR EEE
BENEBREAR AT ([EN BB
2 PERR R I A OO B B RS SO A B TR
AR ([ A])) 2 e - BRI AE AR
B R A NRIE R K A ) R B RS A
BARBEEBIIRMNRARR 2 EEMITE
LR EE 2 A e

ML AL BThe Li Ka-Shing Unity
Discretionary Trust ([DT1])) &% — 2 #E{=%
([DT2]) Z B ER F A ° Li Ka-Shing Unity
Trustee Corporation Limited ([TDT1] » &
DT1Z {7t A) K Li Ka-Shing Unity Trustcorp
Limited ([TDT2] » ADT2Z 57t A) BB AE
% T The Li Ka-Shing Unity Trust ([UT1]) &
iz - BtE 2 EERTENZE ‘Iﬁ?’cZE
EREEMEREBEMAMNRIRG
DT1KRDT2Z Al g A B IE R BB S A4 -
HEErHEFL  REEEEE o LiKa-Shing
Unity Trustee Company Limited ([TUT1) DA
UTHEREA S M EE TR ATUTTAUTIE
/\Z%@Tzﬁ*ﬁ‘EﬁHx%kAj:ﬁ@E‘m %Hﬁ
F=pz— U EREEZATHRABART
EX(EE)BRAA(TRE]D BBITRA=
D2 —sk i - EERConroy Assets
Limited X Hamstar Profits Limited & £ &
BRERRE EITESIESTE= 2 — A £
‘T‘X?JT*E °

TUT1 » TDT1 » RTDT2Z &3P E B TAR A AL
Ka-Shing Unity Holdings Limited ([Unity
Holdco) # B - sl A « ZBHELER
2R S A % B ¥ A Unity Holdco=9 2 —

E2EE BT - TUTIHEARE 2D R
RAEBITHERGEIAZEERENMESE
—RIEFES WA MEEAS DB ITE
ERARERMDER 2 E DM EAR Uty
Holdcodk _+ X At 2 Unity HoldcoR& fh# &
AZEHEE FRELERTER LR
HEMER -

BIEGEHFRBEKEN) - Z2HEE (KA
DTIRDT2Z AER T ARBES RBHEK
BImE - WIRABZMEBEFEFTZKILIA)
TUT1 - TDT1 - TDT2RREH & GWEAE
BAAT)23,703,0000% Z B ntEs - Eb B
FEHConroy Assets Limited# A 2
13,624,6000% % 17 &2 R Hamstar Profits
Limited# & 2 10,078,4000% f&% 17 °

ERAEARRRZB N BRI BIFA -

B Eatoh - WEmE S AR (GESF PR
I FE336ER ERF 2 ERMBHARE o
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Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors of the Company as at the date of
this Annual Report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Pursuant to an agreement dated 12 June 1963, Neptunia Corporation
Limited provides technical and advisory services to the Company and may
be paid a General Managers' commission. Mr. Ramon S. Ang, Mr. Carlos
Antonio M. Berba, Mr. Teruyuki Daino, Mr. Motoyasu Ishihara, Mr. Taro
Matsunaga, Mr. Shobu Nishitani, Mr. Keisuke Nishimura and Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago are interested parties to this contract to the extent that they either
have equity interests in or are directors and/or officers of San Miguel
Brewery Inc., and San Miguel Brewery International, Ltd. and SMC, the
ultimate holding company of Neptunia Corporation Limited. General
Managers' commission has not been paid by the Company or charged by
Neptunia Corporation Limited since the 1995 financial year.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance to which the Company;,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or associated corporations
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

(1) TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group

In order to comply with the Listing Rules, the Company entered
into an agreement with SMC, the ultimate holding company of the
Company, on 15 October 2010 (the Agreement) with a view to
renewing the agreement to carry out the trade-related continuing
connected transactions from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2013
under the same terms and conditions as those under the agreement
entered into by SMC and the Company dated 6 December 2007
and 11 May 2009 in respect of such trade-related continuing
connected transactions.

The Agreement, including the trade-related continuing connected
transactions and the caps set for such transactions, was approved
by independent shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company held on 26 November 2010.

ARBMERZAFHERARARNRRESH
HoRAFHREH  ARF-EHEREEEMS
RHMARARESF EMAR (T ETRA) 5

RZAREKE -

BRIB—NAR=F AT B2 - i
MAR QA AA R B RS MR RS - I
AIRERARAEIE NS o Hh - BERCRAE - B
BAEE RERELLE - ARERLLE - 10K
ABBFELE - AARBELE - TR EINEE R
M R ERRER £ N BB A R R m AR
NEZREERRBENBRRZBHE - IR
ENEERARRENSERRER AR LA
NERRZERZR/LUMAE - HALE
HPERANE - B - MNAFPRFERL - &
NEWES N BEIBE - MLmFARAR
TMERARBWEAREEM S -

B EXFIREEI - ARE - SEEAERA
A MBARIEERRMERN A FERER
SFRNEARKHETLBARBDEEREENE
BZEBRH -

(1) BEEHEEHESERNSERER
2
REE SHETEHEE
BFAEMRA  ARAREARAE 2 &
BIERENR]  ENBRR] RZT—F
F+A+RBIIZ—MiHnEE (W
ERMETHER _T—F—F—
BE_ZE—=F+_-_A=+—HiTH
ESEMNBERERS  &nE 2%
RRIEHFER —_EE+F+_AXAR
ZEENFRAT—HAEARAREEN
LNRRIY 2B SHEBENFERER
S8 AR o

hEE (BREEZARNSERER
HRMERSH ER)ER-F—FF+
—AZ T RARARRBNBRENIAS
MBS R AL -
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TRADE-RELATED CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
MADE WITH THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP (Continued)

(1

Purchase from/sale to the San Miguel Group (Continued)

Pursuant to the Agreement, the Group entered into the following
trade-related continuing connected transactions during the year.

(1) REHEBEFEHHEAPER
= (48)
R E S RET o EE ()

RAFER - REBEREHASZETIA
THESEHENFERERS -

2011 2011
—E——F —E——F
Actual cap
Continuing connected transactions BEBERS BEX LR
HK$'000 HK$'000
ST BT
Purchase of packaging materials by AEBRENEHE
the Group from the San Miguel Group BEBREME 46,784 47,000
Purchase of packaged beer by AREBAENEEREER
the Group from the San Miguel Group [y 4,455 4,900
Sales of packaged beer and non-alcoholic  AREBEEE HEBHEE
beverage products by the Group BB R R IEE BB
to the San Miguel Group, provided Em wEmTERIEREES
that such sales or distribution of (K% A 788 A B 5H B BR AN
packaged beer shall not be carried
out in the Philippines, unless through
San Miguel Brewery Inc. 93,520 97,000

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the 2011
financial year (i) had not been approved by the Board of the
Company, (ii) were not entered into in all material respects in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions, and (iii) had exceeded the cap disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 October 2010 and in the
circular to shareholders dated 8 November 2010.

RAPBILIFATESEHLERLF
5Ty

R—MBEEBBRERET

WIERREMGRRS - RE2EAR
W Z LB AEH AR ERIE
BREGSR  RTBERAEELG
TEYF=TINBIE=T7&
SEVRFRRIL ¢+ &

RRABBENETRERER
SRAFHNAR  THAKAR
B2 BRI o

KA ZZHAMEFTBHETMEFME
BRHEESWR  HEWEEREIHENE
BHEFRERE S ——FUHBFEY
ZEFHERERS () MAKARRES
gitE - (DEFEERFTEIEARER
BHREZER G2 BBWEET UK
(iNBEBaA R HHA-—T—ZTF+
A+tNBHZRAERHBA-ZT—ZF+
—ANBZBRRBERAHEE R -
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(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS

Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited (“GSMB”) is an
equity joint venture formed between San Miguel (Guangdong)
Limited ("SMG") and Guangzhou Brewery (“GB") and is held as to
70% by SMG and as to 30% by GB. SMG is a 92.989%-owned
subsidiary of the Company and GB is a connected person of the
Company by virtue of its substantial shareholding in GSMB. To
facilitate the business operations of GSMB, San Miguel International
Limited (“SMIL") (@ member of the San Miguel Group) and GB have
each granted GSMB a licence to use their respective trademarks
upon establishment of GSMB pursuant to the SMIL Trademark
Licensing Agreement and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement,
respectively.

Apart from the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Group
has also entered into other licence agreements with certain other
members of the San Miguel Group: (i) the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement entered into between the Company and Neptunia (an
indirect subsidiary of SMC) and (ii) the San Miguel Brewing
International Limited (“SMBIL") Sub-licence Agreement entered into
between SMGB and SMBIL (an indirect subsidiary of SMC).

The directors (including the non-executive directors) considered that
the terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement, the Neptunia
Sub-license Agreement, the SMBIL Sub-license Agreement
(collectively, the “San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements”) and the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement, including their respective
tenures which are for more than three years, are on normal
commercial terms, fair and reasonable, and that the transactions
contemplated under such agreements are in the interests of the
Company and the shareholders as a whole.

The transactions under the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements
(which have been aggregated as a single transaction for purposes
of the Listing Rules) and the GB Trademark Licensing Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions under Rule 14A.34(1)
of the Listing Rules. The annual royalties payable by the Group under
each of (i) the San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (ii) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement shall be less than HK$10 million
for the year ended 31 December 2007 and each of the financial
years during the remaining term of the relevant licence/sub-licence
agreements. Based on this proposed cap, the transactions under
each of the (i) San Miguel Group Licensing Agreements and (i) the
GB Trademark Licensing Agreement are only subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements and are exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirement.

(2)

BEEMEERRE D EEE BT
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(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

An announcement was made by the Company on 19 September
2007 in this respect.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2011, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia on 23 December 2010 and by the Company on 24
December 2010 to extend the term of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement for one year from 1 January 2011 to 31 December 2011
at nil consideration. Save for such extension, all other terms remain
unchanged. An announcement was made by the Company on 24
December 2010 in this respect.

In relation to the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement and the
Neptunia Sub-Licence Agreement, as per the payment instructions
of SMC dated 18 December 2000, all royalties receivable from GSMB
and the Company have been assigned and transferred to SMBIL
effective 1 January 2000 until further notice.

Oon 1 April 2010, a Deed of Assignment was entered into between
SMIL, SMBIL and GSMB pursuant to which SMIL agreed to assign,
transfer and convey in favour of SMBIL all of SMIL's rights, title and
interest over the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement. Both SMBIL
and GSMB consented to such assignment pursuant to the Deed of
Assignment.

After the Assignment, SMBIL shall be the licensor of the trademarks
licensed to GSMB under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement.
All other terms of the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as
assigned to SMBIL remain unchanged. The transaction contemplated
under the SMIL Trademark Licensing Agreement as assigned to
SMBIL continues to constitute a continuing connected transaction
for the Company under the Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 1 April 2010 in
this respect.

The amount of royalties paid to Guangzhou Brewery and the San
Miguel Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 were
HK$2,049,000 and HK$1,490,000 respectively (2010: HK$1,951,000
and HK$1,969,000).

(2)
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(2)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
GUANGZHOU BREWERY AND THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP
RELATING TO LICENSING AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the 2011
financial year (i) had not been approved by the Board of the
Company, (ii) were not entered into in all material respects in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions, and (iii) had exceeded the cap disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 19 September 2007.

In anticipation of the expiration of the Neptunia Sub-licence
Agreement on 1 January 2012, an Extension Letter was signed by
Neptunia and by the Company on 4 November 2011 to extend the
term of the Neptunia Sub-licence Agreement for one year from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2012 at nil consideration. Save for
such extension, all other terms remain unchanged. An
announcement was made by the Company on 4 November 2011 in
this respect.
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We are committed to maximising
shareholder value and making

our beer brands ever more relevant to

our customers and consumers.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE

SMGB is principally engaged in the production and sale of beer
products in the PRC and has its brewery facilities located at Shunde
District, Foshan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC. San Miguel
(Guangdong) Foods and Beverages Co., Ltd. (“SMGFB"), an indirect
wholly owned subsidiary of SMC, is principally engaged in the
production and marketing of non-alcoholic beverages and has its
production facilities located at Shunde District, Foshan City,
Guangdong Province, the PRC, near the brewing facilities of SMGB.

SMGB uses its waste water discharge pipeline (the “Pipeline”) from
its production facilities to discharge waste water and has connected
the Pipeline to the waste water pipeline system of the Longjiang
waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment. As the
production facilities of SMGFB are also close to the SMGB's facilities,
SMGB has agreed to allow SMGFB to use the Pipeline for the
discharge of SMGFB's production waste water to the Longjiang
waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment.

0On 26 November 2009, SMGB and SMGFB entered into an agreement
(the “Agreement to Use Pipeline”) pursuant to which SMGB agreed
to grant SMGFB a non-exclusive right to use the Pipeline for the
discharge of waste water from SMGFB'’s production facilities to
Longjiang waste water treatment plant for waste water treatment,
for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2010 to 31 December 2012.

During the term of the Agreement to Use Pipeline, SMGFB shall pay
SMGB a fee in an aggregate sum of RMB7,800,000, the amount of
which is payable quarterly for three years (i.e. RMB650,000 per
quarter x 12 installments).

The fees under the Agreement to Use Pipeline are agreed between
SMGB and SMGFB after arm’s length negotiation mainly with
reference to (i) the construction and maintenance costs of the
Pipeline and the estimated volume of waste water to be discharged
by the production facilities of SMGFB to the Pipeline (the volume of
which are estimated based on the production volume of SMGFB)
which shall not have any material impact on the repair and
maintenance costs of the Pipeline that may be incurred by SMGB
and (i) the term of the Agreement to Use Pipeline of three years.
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(3)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE (Continued)

The directors have taken into account the capacity that the Pipeline
can accommodate and the estimated volume of waste water to be
discharged by SMGFB through the Pipeline (with reference to the
production volume of SMGFB) and consider that SMGFB's use of
the Pipeline to discharge SMGFB's production waste water is not
expected to result in any significant increase in the costs of the
Group (i.e. the repair and maintenance costs of the Pipeline which
may be incurred by SMGB) and is not expected to adversely affect
the discharge of SMGB's own waste water from its facilities through
the Pipeline. On the other hand the transactions under the
Agreement to Use Pipeline shall generate additional income and
cash flow to the Group.

Transactions contemplated under the Agreement to Use Pipeline
constitute Continuing Connected Transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Based on the consideration,
as the applicable percentage ratios for the Continuing Connected
Transactions on an annual basis are more than 0.1% but are less
than 2.5% and the annual consideration shall be less than HK$10
million for each of the three years ending 31 December 2012, the
Continuing Connected Transactions shall only be subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements as set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but shall be exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement pursuant to Rule 14A.34 of the
Listing Rules.

An announcement was made by the Company on 9 December 2009
in this respect.

The amount of fee received from SMGFB for the year ended 31
December 2011 was HK$3,134,000 (2010:HK$2,984,000).
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(3)

(4)

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH
THE SAN MIGUEL GROUP RELATING TO THE USE OF
PIPELINE (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed these connected transactions and confirmed that such
transactions were:

— entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group;

— conducted either on normal commercial terms or, if there
are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

— in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them
on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditors of the Company, KPMG, have confirmed in a letter to
the Board that nothing has come to their attention that caused them
to believe that the Continuing Connected Transactions in the 2011
financial year (i) had not been approved by the Board of the
Company, and (ii) were not entered into in all material respects in
accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions.

OTHER CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS MADE WITH THE
SAN MIGUEL GROUP

The Group purchased brewing materials from the San Miguel Group
during the year, which amounted to HK$24,000 (2010: HK$130,000).
These transactions are exempt from all the reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements according to the Listing Rules Chapter 14A.31(2), De
minimis transactions.
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The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong have sponsored a
noncontributory defined benefit scheme, The San Miguel Brewery Hong
Kong Limited Retirement Fund (the “Fund”), which covers local permanent
employees, and was registered in September 1995 under the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The Fund’s assets are held in trust and
administered by a trustee. The members’ benefits are determined based
on the employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions
to the Fund are made in accordance with the recommendations of
independent actuaries who value the retirement scheme at regular
intervals, usually triennially.

The Fund was granted exemption from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“"MPF") regulations by the MPF Scheme Authority on 24 July 2000, following
modifications to the Fund benefits which comply with MPF regulations.

The latest actuarial assessment of the Fund was carried out as at 1 January
2012 and the results were as follows:

(1) The actuary of the Fund is Mr. J. Yip, Fellow of the Society of
Actuaries. In the actuarial valuation, the attained age method was
used. Other major assumptions used in the valuation were:
investment return of 5% per annum; long-term salary escalation of
2.5% per annum; mortality rates under the 2001 Hong Kong Life
Tables; normal retirement age of 60 years; and early retirement rates
allowed between the ages 55 to 60 years.

(2) The unaudited market value of the Fund assets was HK$60,349,000
as at 1 January 2012.

3) The minimum level of funding as recommended by the actuary of
the Fund was 19.2% of salary for 2012, 2013 and 2014.

(4) The solvency deficit was HK$12,650,000, i.e. the obligation under
the Fund was 83% covered by the Fund's assets, at 1 January 2012.

Particulars of the employee retirement plans of the Company and the Group
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

The Group's working capital at 31 December 2011 was net current liabilities
of HK$73,729,000 compared with net current assets of HK$9,988,000 as at
31 December 2010.

The Group's cash and bank deposits (excluding pledged deposits) as at
31 December 2011 were HK$45,586,000 (2010: HK$226,432,000) and are
sufficient to fund working capital requirements and capital expenditure in
2012.
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The Group has short term credit facilities of HK$338,000,000 (2010:
HK$260,959,000) of which HK$313,734,000 (2010: HK$249,206,000) had
been utilised as at 31 December 2011.

Total borrowings at 31 December 2011 for the Company and for the Group
were HK$NIl (2010: HK$Nil) and HK$313,734,000 (2010: HK$249,206,000),
respectively.

Particulars of bank loans of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2011 are set out in note 21 to the financial statements.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years is set out on pages 136 and 137 of the Annual
Report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are
set out in the Corporate Governance section on pages 37 to 46 of the
Annual Report.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
directors to be independent.
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KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as auditors of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By order of the board

L

Ramon S. Ang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 2 February 2012
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n Hong Kong, we will continue

to improve profitability and
increase our market share
through the strengthening of
our brand portfolio, channel
rationalisation and growth,
margin improvement and cost
rationalisation.




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) is committed to
maintaining statutory and regulatory standards and adherence to the
principles of corporate governance emphasising transparency,
independence, accountability, responsibility and fairness. The board and
the senior management of the Company ensure that effective self-
regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company. These include a board comprising high calibre members,
board committees and effective internal systems and controls.

The Company has applied the principles of the Code Provisions under the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “"Code”) contained in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year
ended 31 December 2011 (the “year under review"), save for the deviation
discussed below:

o All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term (Code Provision A.4.1) but are subject to retirement by rotation
once every three years and re-election at the annual general
meeting under the Company’s Articles of Association.

The following sections set out the principles in the Code as they have
been applied by the Company, including any deviation therefrom, for the
year under review.

The management and control of the business of the Company is vested in
its board. It is the duty of the board to create value to the shareholders of
the Company, establish the Company’s strategic direction, set the
Company’s objectives and plan in accordance therewith, and provide
leadership and ensure availability of resources in the attainment of such
objectives. The board is bound to manage the Company in a responsible
and effective manner, and therefore every director ensures that he carries
out his duty in good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable
laws and regulations, and acts in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders at all times.

The board and the executive management have clearly defined
responsibilities under various internal control and checks-and-balance
mechanisms. The board has delegated a schedule of responsibilities to
the executive management of the Company. These responsibilities include:
implementation of the decisions of the board and organisation and direction
of the day-to-day operation and management of the Company in
accordance with the management strategies and plans approved by the
board; preparation and monitoring of annual production plans and
operating budget; and control, supervision and monitoring of capital,
technical and human resources.
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The board held four meetings during the year under review. The chief
finance officer and company secretary attended all the scheduled board
meetings to report matters arising from corporate governance, risk
management, statutory compliance, accounting and finance, and kept
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available for all directors. At
the meeting, the directors discussed and formulated overall strategies for
the Company, monitored financial performance and discussed the annual
and interim results, as well as other significant matters. Daily operational
matters are delegated to management.

At least 14 days of notice of all board meetings was given to all directors,
and all directors were given the opportunity to include matters for
discussion in the agenda. An agenda and accompanying board papers are
sent in full to all directors at least 3 days before every board meeting.

The number of board meetings and committee meetings attended by each
director during the year under review is set out in the following table. Figure
in brackets indicates maximum number of meetings in the period in which
the individual was a board member or board committee member (as the
case may be).
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Scheduled Audit Remuneration
board  committee  committee  Nomination
Note meetings meetings meetings meetings
EcEze ENZEE  §HZEE

st Lt Lt Lt A
Independent non-executive directors BUEyiEs
DavidKP Li THE 3/4) 2Q) 2Q) 2R3
Ng Wai Sun R 3/(4) 112 112 33)
Carmelo L. Santiago g3 4/18) 22 21 33
Adrian M. Li (Atternate to David K.P. L) IRE(FAE BEE) 114) 0/2) 0/2) 110)
Executive director #rEs
Peter K.Y, Tam (Managing Director) BER (H7E3) Y NATER  NATER 30)
Non-executive directors FunEs
Ramon . Ang (Chairman) BEX(1E) W NATER  NATER 33)
Carlos Antonio M. Berba (Deputy Chairman) AR (B1E) Y NATER 20 3B)
Chan Wen Meg, May (Michell) REx )] W NATER  NATER 3)
Thelmo Luis O Cunanan Jr. Thelmo Luis 0. Cunanan Jr. ) NATER  NATEA 310)
Teruyuki Daino rkBRT 2 Q) NATER  NATER 20
Benjamin P. Defensor, I, geg Yl NATER 2) 30)
MotoyasL Ishinara RRER () ") NATER  NATER 17
Keisuke Nishimura EREN ® B NATER  NANER 2)
Shobu Nishitani BAREH (5 ) NATEE  NATER 17
Taro Matsunaga RS Yo NATER  NATER 31)
Notes: B 5
(1) Appointed as non-executive director on 11 March 2011. ) REZE——F=ZA+—AEZTRIENTES -
) Appointed as non-executive director on 20 May 2011. 2) R FRAA-THEZTAEINITES -
3) Resigned as non-executive director on 20 May 2011. (3) R-ZE——FRA-+HBEFNITERRELS -
o) Resigned as non-executive director on 4 November 2011. (%) RZTE——F+—AOARAENTESEL -

(5) Appointed as non-executive director on 4 November 2011. (5) R-_E——F+—ANHEZTAIRTES -
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The chairman of the board is Mr. Ramon S. Ang, and the chief executive
officer (or managing director, in the case of the Company) is Mr. Peter K. Y.
Tam. The chairman’s and the managing director’s roles are clearly defined
to ensure their independence, accountability and responsibility.

The chairman takes the lead in formulating overall strategies and policies
of the Company; ensures the effective performance by the board of its
functions, including compliance with good corporate governance practices;
and encourages and facilitates active contribution of directors in board
activities and constructive relations between executive and non-executive
directors. The chairman also ensures effective communication with
shareholders of the Company and receipt by the directors of adequate
and complete information. The role of deputy chairman is carried out by
Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba.

The managing director, supported by other board members and the senior
management, is responsible for managing the day-to-day business of the
Company. He is also accountable to the board for the implementation of
the Company's overall strategies, and coordination of overall business
operations.

As at the date of this report, the board consists of eleven non-executive
directors and one executive director. Three of the non-executive directors
are independent. Further details of the composition of the board can be
found in the section entitled “The Board” of this report.

All of the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term,
but are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual
general meetings. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third
of the directors, including the non-executive directors, are subject to
retirement, rotation and re-election at each annual general meeting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Non-executive directors are expected to participate in the activities of the
board, particularly in the establishment of a selection process to ensure a
mix of competent directors and officers; adoption of a system of internal
checks and balances; scrutiny of the Company’s performance in achieving
agreed corporate goals and objectives; and ensuring that the exercise of
board authority is within the powers conferred to the board under its
Articles of Association, by-laws and applicable laws, rules and regulations.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are highly skilled
professionals with a broad range of expertise and experience in the fields
of accounting, finance and business. Their skills, expertise and number in
the board ensure that strong independent views and judgement are brought
in the board’s deliberations and that such views and judgement carry
weight in the board’s decision-making process. Their presence and
participation also enable the board to maintain high standards of
compliance in financial and other mandatory reporting requirements, and
provide adequate checks and balances to safeguard the interests of
shareholders of the Company and the Company.

Each independent non-executive director gives the Company an annual
confirmation of his independence. The Company considers such directors
to be independent under the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Each director, upon reasonable request, is given access to independent
professional advice in circumstances he may deem appropriate and
necessary for the discharge of his duties to the Company, at the expense
of the Company.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing all information
and representations contained in the financial statements of the Company
for the year under review. The directors consider that the financial
statements have been prepared in conformity with the generally accepted
accounting standards in Hong Kong, and reflect amounts that are based
on the best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of
the board and management with an appropriate consideration to
materiality. As at 31 December 2011, the directors, having made appropriate
enquiries, are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have prepared
the financial statements of the Company on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the external auditors with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section of “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 133 to 134.
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The board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal control systems to safeguard the Company’s assets and
shareholders” interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness of these
systems.

The board has conducted a review of the Company's internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2011, including financial,
operational and compliance control and risk management functions and
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the audit committee, executive management, external
advisor and internal auditors.

To assist the directors in the discharge of their duties, the Company
provides every newly appointed director with a comprehensive induction
program on the first occasion of his appointment, where such directors
are provided with information on the Company'’s organization and business;
the membership, duties and responsibilities of the board, board committees
and senior management; corporate governance practices and procedures;
and latest financial information on the operations of the Company. Such
information shall be supplemented with visits to the Company’s key plant
sites and meetings with key senior executives.

Throughout their tenure, the directors shall be provided with updates on
the business of the Company, latest developments of the Listing Rules
and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements, corporate social
responsibility matters and other changes affecting the Company.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

For the year under review, the audit committee is composed of three
independent non-executive directors: Mr. Ng Wai Sun, Mr. Carmelo L.
Santiago and Dr. The Hon. Sir David K. P. Li, who acts as chairman of the
committee. The audit committee met two times in 2011 with full minutes
kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of each committee
member at these meetings is shown in the table presented above.

Under its terms of reference, the audit committee shall assist the board in
fulfilling its corporate governance and oversight responsibilities in relation
to financial reporting, internal control structure, risk management systems
and internal and external audit functions. The audit committee is further
authorised by the board to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference, and is tasked with recommending to the board appropriate
actions emanating from such investigations. The audit committee has
unrestricted access to personnel, records, internal and external auditors,
risk assessment and assurance and senior management, as may be
appropriate in the discharge of its functions.

In 2011, the audit committee discharged its responsibilities by:

@) making recommendations to the board on the reappointment of
the external auditor and approval of the remuneration and terms
of engagement of the external auditor;

(2) monitoring the external auditor’s independence and objectivity and
the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard, and discussing with the external auditor the nature and
scope of the audit and reporting obligations;

(3) implementing the Company’s policy on the engagement of an
external auditor to supply non-audit services;

(4) reviewing, and monitoring the integrity of, the financial statements
of the Company and the Company's annual and interim reports and
the auditors’ report to ensure that the information presents a true
and balanced assessment of the Company's financial position;

(5) reviewing the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems to ensure that management has
discharged its duty to have an effective internal control system;

(6) coordinating with the internal auditors from San Miguel Corporation
to ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced
and has appropriate standing within the Company;

(7) reviewing the Company's financial and accounting policies and
practices;
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

(8) reviewing the external auditor's management letter, material queries
raised by the external auditor to the management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control and
the management’s response to such queries; and

9) reporting to the board on the matters set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices on the audit committee.

The audit committee is authorised by the board to obtain external legal or
other independent professional advice and to secure the attendance of
outsiders with relevant experience and expertise if it considers necessary
in the performance of its functions. The audit committee is provided with
sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The audit
committee’s specific terms of reference are available on request to any
shareholders of the Company and are posted on the Company’s website,
info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the total fee in respect of audit and non-
audit services (mainly tax review and corporate governance review)
provided to the Company and its subsidiaries by external auditors
amounted to HK$3,438,000 (2010: HK$: 2,956,000) and HK$Nil (2010: HK$
Nil), respectively.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was composed of three independent non-
executive directors, namely, Dr. The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li, Mr. Ng Wai Sun
and Mr. Carmelo L. Santiago and two non-executive directors, namely,
General Benjamin P. Defensor Jr. and Mr. Carlos Antonio M. Berba. The
remuneration committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
director, Mr. Ng Wai Sun. The remuneration committee met twice in 2011
with full minutes kept by the company secretary. Individual attendance of
each committee member at these meetings is shown in the table presented
above.

The primary role of the remuneration committee under its terms of
reference is to support and advise the board in fulfilling the board’s
responsibility to the shareholders of the Company to:
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

(1) establish coherent remuneration policies and practices that will be
observed and enable the Company to attract and retain top caliber
executives and directors;

(2) fairly and responsibly reward executives based on their performance
and the performance of the Company, and the general pay

environment; and

() comply with the Code Provisions on remuneration of directors,

mainly by:
. determining executive and director remuneration policy;
. determining the remuneration of executive directors upon

consultation with the chairman or managing director
regarding their proposals for such remuneration;

° reviewing and approving the remuneration of the executives
who directly report to the managing director, and as
appropriate, other senior management; and

. reviewing and approving all equity based plans.

The remuneration committee has the right to seek any information it
considers necessary to fulfil its duties, which includes the right to obtain
appropriate external advice at the Company’s expense, and is provided
with sufficient resources by the Company to discharge its duties. The
remuneration committee’s specific terms of reference are available on
request to any shareholders of the Company and are posted on the
Company's website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

During the year under review, the committee reviewed the remuneration
package of Managing Director and key senior executives. As recommended,
no director fee would be paid for the year 2011.

Details of the remuneration of directors and senior management for the
year ended 31 December 2011 are set out in notes 8 and 29(c) to the
financial statements.
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The Company has not established a nomination committee. Directors of
the Company are responsible for making recommendations to the board
for consideration and approval on nominations, appointment of directors
and board succession, with a view to appoint to the board individuals with
the relevant experience and capabilities to maintain and improve the
competitiveness of the Company. The board formulates the policy, reviews
the size, structure and composition of the board, and assesses the
independence of its independent non-executive directors in accordance
with the criteria prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Code.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for securities transactions
and dealings (the “Code of Conduct”) based on the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The terms of the Code of Conduct are no less
exacting than the standards in the Model Code, and the Code of Conduct
applies to all the relevant persons as defined in the Code, including the
directors of the Company, any employee of the Company, or a director or
employee of a subsidiary or holding company of the Company who,
because of such office or employment, are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company or its
securities.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors of the Company who
have confirmed in writing their compliance with the required standards
set out in the Code of Conduct during the year under review.

The Company attaches great priority to establishing effective
communications with its shareholders and investors. In an effort to enhance
such communications, the Company provides information relating to the
Company and its business in its annual report and also disseminates such
information electronically through its website, info.sanmiguel.com.hk.

The Company regards the annual general meeting as an important event
as it provides an opportunity for direct communications between the board
and its shareholders. All directors and senior management make an effort
to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given a
minimum of 20 business days’ notice of the date and venue of the annual
general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the Code’s
principle to encourage shareholders’ participation.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Chairman
Deputy Chairman
Managing Director

Ramon S. Ang,
Carlos Antonio M. Berba,
Peter K.Y. Tam,

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle)
Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr.
Teruyuki Daino

Benjamin P. Defensor Jr.

Taro Matsunaga

Shobu Nishitani

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

David K.P. Li, BMm, Jp

Ng Wai Sun

Carmelo L. Santiago

Adrian M.K. Li, Alternate to David K.P. Li, Gam, Jp

Mr. Ramon S. ANG, 8sme, aged 58, is the Chairman and a non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been appointed as the Chairman since
10 June 2005 and a non-executive Director of the Company since 27
November 1998. He is the Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating
Officer of San Miguel Corporation (“SMC"), the ultimate holding company
of the Company (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also the Chairman of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman of San
Miguel Properties Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange), the Vice Chairman of Ginebra San Miguel, Inc. (the shares
of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) and Director of San
Miguel Pure Foods Company, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the
Philippine Stock Exchange) and the Chairman and director of various
subsidiaries of SMC. Mr. Ang is also the Chairman and CEO of Petron
Corporation (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange), the Vice Chairman of Manila Electric Company (the shares of
which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange), the Chairman of Liberty
Telecoms Holdings, Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine
Stock Exchange) and an independent director of Philweb Corporation (the
shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Carlos Antonio M. BERBA, vBA, Msc, Bsc, aged 47, was appointed as
Deputy Chairman and Remuneration Committee member of the Company
on 27 August 2010. Mr. Berba has been a director of the Company since 16
April 2007. He is the Managing Director of San Miguel Brewing International
Limited, a controlling shareholder of the Company and a Director of San
Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock
Exchange). He is also a Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk, a Director
of San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited, Guangzhou San
Miguel Brewery Company Limited and various other subsidiaries of the
Company. Mr. Berba has 26 years of experience in general management,
finance, strategic planning, and corporate structuring initiatives. Mr. Berba
was the Chief Finance Officer of the San Miguel Beer Division and was
concurrently in charge of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. He was
also the Chief Finance Officer of San Miguel Brewing International Ltd. and
was also concurrently the Business Planning and Business Development
Head. Mr. Berba graduated from the University of the Philippines with a
Bachelor's degree in Electrical Engineering. He later obtained a Master’s
degree in Business Administration (with distinction) from the Wharton
School of Business, University of Pennsylvania and a Master’s degree in
Japanese Business Studies from Japan America Institute of Management
Science & Chaminade University of Honolulu.

Mr. TAM Ka Yuen, Peter, vBa, BBA, aged 53, is an executive Director and
the Managing Director of the Company. Mr. Tam joined the Company in
1993 and was appointed as an executive Director and the Managing
Director on 31 December 2007. He is also a director of the Company's
various subsidiaries. He has more than 25 years of experience in the selling
and marketing of consumer products in Hong Kong and Mainland China.
Mr. Tam graduated from the University of Hawaii in 1985 with a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration and later obtained a Master’s degree
also in Business Administration from the California State University in 1987.

CHAN Wen Mee, May (Michelle), aged 47, was appointed as a non-
executive Director on 11 March 2011. Ms. Chan served as Managing Director
of A.S. Watson Industries Limited. She served as Managing Director of
Hutchison Harbour Ring Limited from 1 February 2006 to 31 October 2010
and served as Executive Deputy Managing Director of Hutchison Harbour
Ring Limited from 18 May 2005 to 31 January 2006. Ms. Chan has extensive
experience in managing property development and investment businesses
in mainland China. She also holds directorships in certain companies
controlled by Hutchison Whampoa Limited. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Business Administration.
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Mr. Thelmo Luis O. CUNANAN JR., mBA, BA, aged 40, was appointed as a
non-executive Director on 28 November 2008. He is a political columnist
for The Manila Times newspaper and a TV host/presenter for the Global
News Network. He is also the founding member and executive director of
the Philippine-Somali Business and Friendship Association, the Honorary
Consul of the Republic of Georgia in the Philippines, and the President of
the Philippine Austrian Cultural Society, Inc. Mr. Cunanan also serves as
management, marketing and political consultant of various companies,
non-government organizations and government agencies. He also serves
on the Executive and Advisory Boards of the Centrist Asia Pacific Democrats
International and the Asian Peace and Reconciliation Council. Mr. Cunanan
graduated from Ateneo de Manila University in 1994 with a Bachelor’s
degree in AB Interdisciplinary Studies and later obtained a Master’s degree
in Business Administration from Ateneo de Manila Graduate School of
Business.

General Benjamin P. DEFENSOR JR., aged 64, appointed as a non-
executive Director on 28 August 2009, is a former Commanding General of
the Philippine Air Force and Chief of Staff of the Armed Forces of the
Philippines. After his military service, he was designated Philippine
Ambassador and was Chairman of the Asia-Pacific Economic Cooperation
(APEC) Counter Terrorism Force. He graduated from the Philippine Military
Academy, with the distinctions of Master of the Sword, Journalism Awardee,
Editor-in-Chief and Class President. He completed his Command and
General Staff Course with high honors at the United States Air Force, Air
University. His aviation training courses were in the United States and
Europe. In 2001, the University inducted him into its International Hall of
Fame for his career-long achievements. His postgraduate studies include
Master in Mass Communication at the University of the Philippines, Master
in Public and Business Management at De La Salle University, Philippines
and Air Transport Course at the Asian Institute of Management, Philippines
and PhD studies in Management. General Defensor has also been the
Chairman of the Board of established corporations in banking, real estate,
insurance, and was a top executive in mass media, agri-business and other
industries. He was a former Board member of the Company from 27
February 2003 to 23 February 2005.
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Mr. Teruyuki DAINO, ss, MBA, aged 51, appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 20 May 2011. Mr. Daino is the Executive Vice
President and Director of San Miguel Brewery Inc. (the shares of which are
listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange). He is a Director of San Miguel
Brewing International Limited and San Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited. He
was the General Sales Manager of Gifu Branch of Kirin Brewery Company
Limited (2009-March 2011), President and Chief Executive Officer of Four
Roses Distillery, LLC (2002-2009), Planning Manager of Corporate Planning
Department of Kirin Brewery Company Limited (1998-2002), Business
Planning Manager of Budweiser Japan Company (1993-1997) and Brand
Manager of Marketing Department of Kirin Brewery Company Limited (1988-
1993). Mr. Daino graduated from Hitotsubashi University in 1983 with a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics and later obtained a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the Massachusetts Institute of Technology
in 1998.

Mr. Taro MATSUNAGA, 584, aged 47, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 27 August 2010. Mr. Matsunaga is a Director
and Executive Vice President of San Miguel Brewing International Limited.
He is also a Commissioner of PT Delta Djakarta Tbk., a Director of San
Miguel Beer (Thailand) Limited and San Miguel Holdings (Thailand) Limited.
He was Deputy Marketing Director of Kirin Brewery Company, Limited (2009-
2010) and he was Brand Manager/Senior Brand Manager of Kirin Brewery
Company, Limited (2002-2009). Mr. Matsunaga graduated from Keio
University in 1987 with a Bachelor’s degree in Political Science.

Mr. Shobu NISHITANI, aged 48, is Executive Financial Advisor and Director
of San Miguel Brewery Inc. He is also a director of San Miguel Brewing
International Limited. He served as Deputy General Manager of Finance
and Accounting Department of Kirin Group Office Company, Limited. He
was also the Deputy General Manager of Finance and Accounting
Department of Kirin Business Expert Company, Limited (2008-2010) and
Manager of Finance Group (2006-2007) and Manager of General Accounting
Group (2003), Finance and Accounting Department of Kirin Brewery
Company, Limited and Executive Assistant to the Chairman of Secretary
Department, Kirin Brewery Company, Limited. Mr. Nishitani graduated from
Waseda University in 1987 with a Bachelor’s degree in Commerce and
attended the Harvard Business School Program for Management
Development. He is a Chartered Member of The Securities Analysts
Association of Japan.
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Dr. the Hon. Sir David LI Kwok-po, Gav, GBS, OBE, MA Cantab. (Economics &
Law), Hon. DSc. (Imperial), Hon. DBA (Edinburgh Napier), Hon. D.Hum.Litt. (Trinity, USA), Hon.
DSocSc (Lingnan), Hon. LLD (Hong Kong), Hon. LLD (Warwick), Hon. LLD (Cantab), Hon. DLitt
(Macquarie), FCA, FCPA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIB, FHKIB, FBCS, CITP, FCIArb, JP, Officier de L'Ordre
de la Couronne, Grand Officer of the Order of the Star of Italian Solidarity, The Order of the
Rising Sun, Gold Rays with Neck Ribbon, Commandeur dans I'Ordre National de la Légion
d’Honneur, aged 73, appointed on 22 March 1991, is an independent non-
executive Director, Chairman of the audit committee and a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Sir David is Chairman and Chief
Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited (the shares of which are listed
on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) and a director of numerous other
companies in Hong Kong and overseas. Sir David is a member of the
Legislative Council of Hong Kong, a member of the Banking Advisory
Committee and a member of the Council of the Treasury Markets
Association. Sir David is the Chairman of The Chinese Banks’ Association,
Limited and The Hong Kong Management Association. Sir David is a director
of Hong Kong Interbank Clearing Limited and The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited. He is also a director of China Overseas Land &
Investment Limited, COSCO Pacific Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited,
The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited, The Hong Kong and
Shanghai Hotels, Limited, PCCW Limited, Vitasoy International Holdings
Limited, SCMP Group Limited, AFFIN Holdings Berhad and CaixaBank, S.A.
(formerly known as Criteria CaixaCorp, S.A.), all being companies listed
either in Hong Kong or overseas.

Mr. NG Wai Sun, aged 68, appointed on 1 April 2001, is an independent
non-executive Director, Chairman of the remuneration committee and a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Ng is Chairman of
Jibsen Capital (Holdings) Limited, a director of the Tung Wah Group of
Hospitals (2004-2006 and 2011-2013) and Member of the Standing
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of
Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region. Mr. Ng was awarded as Ambassador
of Friendship of Shandong Province in China in 2011.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. Carmelo L. SANTIAGO, 884, aged 69, is an independent non-executive
Director of the Company. He has been an independent Director of SMC
(the shares of which are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange) since 24
July 2008. He is also an independent Director of the following companies
whose shares are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange: San Miguel
Brewery Inc., Ginebra San Miguel, Inc., San Miguel Pure Foods Company,
Inc., San Miguel Properties Inc. and Liberty Telecoms Holdings Inc.; He is
also an Independent Director of Anchor Insurance Brokerage Corporation.
Mr. Santiago is the founder and owner of several branches of Melo's
restaurant in the Philippines and a director of Terbo Concept, Inc., a
Philippine company engaged in retail and food business. He was a director
of the Company from 27 February 2003 to 23 February 2005. Having over
36 years of directorate positions in various companies in the Philippines
and Hong Kong, Mr. Santiago has extensive experience in foods, beverages,
publication, properties, power and banking industries.

Mr. Adrian M. K. LI, mA(cantab), MBA, LPC, JP, aged 38, was appointed as
Alternate Director to Dr. The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li on 1 August 2002. Mr. Li
is the Deputy Chief Executive of The Bank of East Asia, Limited and is in
charge of the overall management of the Bank’s business activities in Hong
Kong. Mr. Li is a member of the Guangdong Provincial Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference (“CPPCC") and was
formerly a member of the Ninth & Tenth Guangzhou Committees of the
CPPCC. He is also a member of the All-China Youth Federation, Deputy
Chairman of the Beijing Youth Federation and a Counsellor of the Hong
Kong United Youth Association. Mr. Li is a Board Member of The Community
Chest of Hong Kong, Chairman of the Vocational Training Council’s Banking
and Finance Industry Training Board, and a member of the MPF Industry
Schemes Committee of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority.
Furthermore, Mr. Li is a member of the Election Committee responsible for
electing the Chief Executive of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. Mr. Li is currently an Independent Non-executive Director of Sino
Land Company Limited, Tsim Sha Tsui Properties Limited, Sino Hotels
(Holdings) Limited and China State Construction International Holdings
Limited, all being companies listed in Hong Kong. He is also an Alternate
Director of AFFIN Holdings Berhad, a company listed on the main board of
the Malaysia Stock Exchange. Mr. Li holds a Master’s Degree in Management
from Kellogg School of Management, Northwestern University, US, and a
Bachelor of Arts Degree and a Master of Arts Degree in Law from the
University of Cambridge, UK. He is a member of The Law Society of England
and Wales, and The Law Society of Hong Kong. He is the elder son of Dr.
The Hon. Sir David K.P. Li.
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Peter K.Y. Tam
Managing Director

John K.L. Cheung
Chief Finance Officer & Company Secretary

Andes PH. Leung
General Sales Manager

Eric PK. Lam
Marketing Manager

Ric W.T. Yeung
Senior Manager — Logistics

C.K. Ho
Senior Manager — Operations

Steven Co
Senior Manager — Corporate Development

Edith Y.M. Ng
Senior Manager — Human Resources & Administration

Vincent K.M. Kwok
Managing Director, Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited

Benjamin Y. Aton Jr.
General Manager, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited
(until 31 October 2011)

Rodrigo O. Guiang
Plant Manager, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited
(until 15 February 2012)

William B. Montalbo
Plant Manager, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited

The details of the management executives as at the date of this report are

as follows:

Mr. Peter K.Y. TAM, Managing Director. Please refer to the Directors

section on page 49 for details.

Mr. John K.L. CHEUNG, wmBA, BBA, aged 48, Chief Finance Officer &
Company Secretary, joined the Company in 1997. Mr. Cheung is a member
of the Institute of Management Accountants. He has over 26-year solid
experience in finance and accounting in various industries. Mr. Cheung
received a Master’s degree and a Bachelor’s degree, both in Business

Administration, from Georgia State University, USA.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT EXECUTIVES

Mr. Andes P.H. LEUNG, vB4, B8A, aged 40, General Sales Manager, joined
the Company in 2001. Mr. Leung has over 17-year solid experience in
advertising, international marketing and sales management in various
industries.

Mr. Eric P.K. LAM, mBA, BA, aged 47, Marketing Manager, joined the
Company in 2008. Mr. Lam has over 18 years of solid experience in
marketing in various industries.

Mr. Ric W.T. YEUNG, 884, aged 48, Senior Manager — Logistics, joined the
Company in 1983. Mr. Yeung has more than 28 years of extensive
experience in supply planning, procurement and physical distribution.

Mr. C.K. HO, msc, bip, aged 53, Senior Manager — Operations, joined the
Company in 1988. Mr. Ho has over 23 years of service with the Company.
He has extensive experience in the operations of beer production.

Mr. Steven CO, 54, aged 42, Senior Manager — Corporate Development,
joined the Company in 1994. Mr. Co has more than 17 years of experience
in business planning, business research, corporate affairs and quality
management in the Company.

Ms. Edith Y.M. NG, v, Dip, aged 49, Senior Manager — Human Resources
& Administration, joined the Company in 1989. Ms. Ng has gained over
22 years of experience in the fields of marketing, sales and human
resources.

Mr. Vincent K.M. KWOK, wvBa, BBA, aged 43, was appointed as the
Managing Director of Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited
on 1 January 2011. Mr. Kwok joined the Company in 2003. He has more
than 20 years of solid experience in marketing in various industries.

Mr. Benjamin Y. ATON Jr., 8584, aged 60, joined the Company in 1986. He
has more than 25 years of solid experience in the Philippines and
International assignments where the last 5 years were spent in China in
various managerial capacities. Mr. Aton was General Manager, San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited until 31 October 2011.

Mr. Rodrigo O. GUIANG, BscHE, aged 60, joined the Company in 1975.
With over 36 years in service, Mr. Guiang has extensive working experience
in both technical and managerial positions in the Philippines and
international assignments. Mr. Guiang was Plant Manager — San Miguel
(Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited until 15 February 2012.

Mr. William B. MONTALBO, aged 48, joined San Miguel Brewery Inc. in
1988. Mr. Montalbo succeeded Mr. Rodrigo O. Guiang as Plant Manager —
San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery Company Limited on 16 February 2012.
Mr. Montalbo has extensive working experience in both Domestic and
International Operations.
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STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS | && &5t % 19?

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except HETZ-_A=+—HLFE
per share data and number of personnel f&in Buig & B8 T AZIMT LA;%%FEEH%
TEN YEAR REVIEW + £ O
2011 2010 2009
—E2——F —E-FF ZETREF

Turnover (1) BERE (1) 683,879 589,322 696,824
(Loss)/profit from operations e (B8R /Bl (48,365) (770,605) (331,879)
(Loss)/profit for the year before REFEAFTZ

restructuring costs (&518) /&7 (68,638) (773,987) (343,052)
Restructuring costs (2) FHAZ ) = — —
(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(E8) B (68,638) (773,987) (343,052)
Taxes paid, including beer tax THIEEE B 36,009 42,020 68,877
Cash dividends attributable to the year FERERSRKRE = — —
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRIBERE () — — —
Fixed assets and projects under development EF&ENZERFAIER 389,671 398,011 1,087,198
Net worth (3), (4), (5) F1E (), (4), (5) 297,223 391,474 1,169,484
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMET 101,023 96,719 99,341
Number of personnel (6) BT A (6) 635 732 766

Turnover has been adjusted where discounts, beer duty and consumption tax have been set-off with the gross turnover.
Restructuring cost in 2007 represented restructuring activities on the Company, while restructuring costs in 2005 and 2006 represented
restructuring activities on Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery Company Limited.

(3) Net worth for the 2002 to 2004 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of non-controlling interests.

(4) Net worth for the 2002 to 2005 have been adjusted for change in accounting policy of defined benefit retirement plan.
(5) Net worth for the 2002 to 2008 have been restated for change in accounting policy of intangible assets.

(6) Number of personnel represents actual headcount as of the last working day of the year.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2011




STATISTICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS |

Years ended 31 December, in Hong Kong dollar thousands except

per share data and number of personnel

lﬂtgé J':k17$ﬁ

BET_A=+—HIFE BERK
B 8E & B T ABSMIABEE TLatE

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
—ET)N\F —EETLF —EETRF —TERF ZETF —EE=F T F
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
(BEF) (BEA) (BE5) (B&E5) (BE7) (BEA) (BE5)
753,375 754,833 826,817 806,909 777,830 684,866 804,749
(301,033) 4,962 (10,625) 10,519 20,025 (30,321) 39,484
(258,155) 50,397 (12,216) (2,692) 12,723 (36,156) 27,864
— (310,220) (93,159) (63,295) — — —
(258,155) (259,823) (105,375) (65,987) 12,723 (36,156) 27,864
102,485 140,831 127,007 141,219 135,185 134,986 164,268
— — — 3,736 3,736 — 37,356
— — — 1 1 — 1
1,379,561 1,496,910 1,769,377 1,838,164 1,939,135 2,016,646 2,083,863
1,490,925 1,751,565 1,975,617 2,062,000 2,118,432 2,120,869 2,148,355
91,656 105,510 118,836 128,539 122,149 124,480 131,168
766 838 768 1,151 1,145 1,168 1,214
) EEEOHENITN - AT EERBELAE -
2 T FEERINEARRIZEMREY M-S RFR_EEAF 2 EARINEEMNENRBER AR CERTE -
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT |

For the year ended 31 December 2011

meRER

BE_Z——F+_A=+—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAFE’H@‘{I‘ﬁ)
2011 2010
= i i
Note $'000 $'000
ihg=2 Fr Tt
Turnover HHER 3 683,879 589,322
Cost of sales HEK A (387,062) (333,715)
Gross profit EF 296,817 255,607
Other revenue E b A 4 14,939 13,841
Other net income H bl 35 F R 4 3,319 1,975
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEAXS (270,251) (270,487)
Administrative expenses 1T ﬁ (80,586) (78,162)
Other operating expenses HEf gz (7,106) (9,096)
Impairment losses of non-current assets EnBEEZBEERE 5 (5,497) (684,283)
Loss from operations KEEE (48,365) (770,605)
Finance costs % E A 6(a) (20,662) (11,904)
Loss before taxation BB RIS 1B 6 (69,027) (782,509)
Income tax credit FRBRiET A 7 389 8,522
Loss for the year FEEE (68,638) (773,987)
Attributable to: EiEmT :
Equity shareholders of the Company AN/N Tf”‘h*ﬁ‘)\ 10 (53,464) (736,984)
Non-controlling interests SRR (15,174) (37,003)
Loss for the year FEEFSE (68,638) (773,987)
Loss per share BRER
Basic (cents) AR () 12(a) (14) (197)
Diluted (cents) B () 12(b) N/ATRE A N/ATE A

The notes on pages 66 to 132 form part of these financial statements.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2011

IR FECOEINE Z FEMERSAMBIHRE 2 —

BB e



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME |

For the year ended 31 December 2011

FERHRER

BE_T——F+_A=t+-HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABHEEHE)
2011 2010
= i —
Note $'000 $'000
B 5T Fr T
Loss for theyear FEER (68,638) | (773,987)
Other comprehensive income for the year F£EHM2HEUE BRBI%E)
(after tax) 11
Exchange differences on translation of: ME N ZRE
— financial statements of subsidiaries — BRERINB AR EIRE
outside Hong Kong FREAZERZ5 (31,863) (17,088)
— monetary items that form part of the net ~ —HEHEKEBRRHB QA
investment in subsidiaries outside ZIREMEBIEEEL
Hong Kong ZIEHZERR 17,973 12,577
(13,890) 4,511)
Actuarial gains and losses of defined EREMRARGTEZBERT
benefit retirement plan KEE (11,723) 488
_________________________________________________ (25,613)  _ _ _ __(4023)
Total comprehensive income for the year F£E2HWH AL (94,251) (778,010)
Attributable to: EEET :
Equity shareholders of the Company ARalE=FAA (77,119) (740,320)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R = (17,132) (37,690)
Total comprehensive income for the year F£E2HWH AL (94,251) (778,010)

The notes on pages 66 to 132 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | GZ&E#ikR&K

At 31 December 2011 —E——%+=ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L/{/%M‘ﬁr%ﬁ)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Note $'000 $'000
ihg=2 Fx Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BETE&E 13(a)
— Property, plant and equipment — E - HRREE 216,440 218,426
— Investment properties — B 80,138 82,884
— Interests in leasehold land held for — EEEHET S ﬁﬁ mFEaE
own use under operating leases MEE T s 93,093 96,701
389,671 398,011
Intangible assets mpEE 14 5,709 5,678
Other tangible assets HEtBREE 16 — —
O . N 403,689
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 65,166 49,772
Trade and other receivables EWE S R EMRE 18 88,603 70,656
Amounts due from holding companies and FEMIERR A A
fellow subsidiaries &H%Mﬂ* A)ERIA 19 12,331 15,928
Pledged deposits EIREFER 20(a) 198,000 60,000
Bank deposits RITER 20(b) — 5,876
Cash and cash equivalents BeRERBESIER 20(b) 45,586 220,556
el _____M09686 422,788
Current liabilities REAE
Bank loans RITER 21 (313,734) (249,206)
Trade and other payables ERNEZREMKRIA 22 (148,917) (150,203)
Amounts due to holding companies and FETPERR A &)
fellow subsidiaries &H%MTE’&ETEEIE 19 (18,440) (10,995)
Amounts due to related companies TR A RIERTE 19 (2,324) (2,396)
________________________________________________ (483,415 (412,800)
Net current (liabilities)/assets nE QW) "EFE (73,729) 9,988
Total assets less current liabilities BEERARBAE 321,651 413,677

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | #R& BT &

RZE—F+=ZA=+—H

At 31 December 2011

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (ABHEE)
2011 2010
= i —
Note $'000 $'000
B T Fr Tt
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Retirement benefit liabilities RIKEFNEE 24(a) (20,975) (18,143)
Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEBE 25(a) (3,453) (4,060)
_________________________________________________ (24,428) (22,203
NET ASSETS EEFE 297,223 391,474
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARFE
Share capital f& s 26(0) 186,785 186,785
Reserves 1 128,366 205,485
Total equity attributable to equity AATREEFEAEGER
shareholders of the Company 315,151 392,270
Non-controlling interests FERES (17,928) (796)
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 297,223 391,474

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2 February #HREZER _T—_F A - BLERSEET]
2012. %o

L

Ramon S. Ang B Peter K. Y. Tam EER
Director - Director EFE

FINE66E12B 2 R EMERAMB]RE 2 —

BBt e

The notes on pages 66 to 132 form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION |

#%Hﬁ)ﬁ%

At 31 December 2011 F+ZA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (Lxﬁé%uﬂ'ﬁ)
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
Note $'000 $'000
ihg=2 Fx Tt
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets BETE&E 13(b)
— Property, plant and equipment — E - HRREE 162,399 162,857
— Interests in leasehold land held for own — EEEHETERANEE
use under operating leases MHEE g 61,421 63,668
223,820 226,525
Intangible assets mILEE 14 5,031 5,031
Investments in subsidiaries BB~ A S 15 616,537 620,512
... mas3s 852,068
Current assets REBEE
Inventories T 17 44,334 34,183
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 Kk EMIRIA 18 75,562 59,552
Amounts due from holding companies JE Wi AR A
and fellow subsidiaries ARSI 19 12,314 10,796
Pledged deposits HIFIF K 20(a) 198,000 11,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReRERRLSIAE 20(b) 16,343 33,978
o __._______34653 149,509
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables BB S REMRIE 22 (61,663) (59,566)
Amounts due to holding companies and FE AR A 7
fellow subsidiaries &H%f‘ﬁ% N BRIA 19 (10,978) (9,054)
Amount due to a related company FEBAE A RIERIE 19 (172) (268)
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHHT B & BIBRIA 23 — (3,127)
_________________________________________________ (72,813)  (72,015)
Netcurrentassets ROREFE _ 23m0 77,494
Total assets less current liabilities BMEERABAEE 1,119,128 929,562
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION | ﬁ%;ﬂlﬁ}ﬁﬁ

At 31 December 2011 —F+ZRA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (W&mrﬁﬁ)
2011 2010
= —
Note $'000 $'000
B 5 T T
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries NN 23 (558,135) (373,150)
Retirement benefit liabilities RINEFIBE 24(a) (20,975) (18,143)
Deferred tax liabilities FEERBEEE 25(h) = —
_____________ (579,110) (391,293
NET ASSETS EEFRE 540,018 538,269
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR #HE 26(a)
Share capital A& 7 186,785 186,785
Reserves w1 353,233 351,484
TOTAL EQUITY R 540,018 538,269

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 2 February #HREZER _T—_F A -_BILERZEET
2012. %o

L

Ramon S. Ang B Peter K. Y. Tam EER
Director EE Director EE
The notes on pages 66 to 132 form part of these financial statements. FIRECOEIRE 2 SEMF ARV BREZ —
B o
BBE NG BEAR A A

T —FER




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY | SZERERE &R

For the year ended 31 December 2011 BE_T——F+-RA=T-HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) NBEEE)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
RAAEEREARETS
Retained
Exchange profits/ Non-
Share Share Capital fluctuation (accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve losses)  Sub-total interests equity
ERND WHRE/
Bx  RHEE  EXREE RE  (BHER) R FEREZ  ERAE
(note 26(b)  (note 26(c)())  (note 26(c)il) (note 26(c)ii)
(zE2eb)  (PEE26(c))) (RitzE26(C)0) (HzE26(C)i)
Note $'000 $'000 § 000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
i3 I i r I i r I i
Balance at 1 January 2010 R=%-%
_____________ FoACRE®  Wen  e7% Vg0 8% o718 113250 3684 116948
Changes in equity for 2010: ~ —E-BEEX£H:
Loss for the year EEEE - - - - (736,984)  (736,984) (37,003 (773,987)
Other comprehensive income Eth2ElE 1 - - - (3,824) 488 (3,336) (687) (4,023)
Total comprehensive income FE2ENREE
forteyear o ____IT____IT____Z___®Bay _ [Ree_ (N30 (18000
Balance at 31 December 2010 R=-Z-%f
and 1 January 2011 +-B=t+-8
R=E--f%
_____________ CACRE® 186785 65739 1M2.970 92069 (65293 302270 (96)_ 391474
Changes in equity for 2011:  —B--FEZEH
Loss for the year FEFR - - - - (53,464)  (53,464)  (15174)  (68,638)
Other comprehensive income EzEklE 1" - - - (11,932) (11,723) (23,655) (1,958) (25,613)
Total comprehensive income FEEANREE
lorteyesr o ______T____Z____Z__nn A8 873 (94251)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=F--%£
TZE=t-R&H 186,785 65,739 112,970 80,137 (130,480) 315,151 (17,928) 297,223

The notes on pages 66 to 132 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT |

For the year ended 31 December 2011

%ITAIEQ/)ILE%%

— =t —ALEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA/%’H%“rﬁ)
2011 2010
= i —EF-FF
Note $'000 $'000
s Fr T
Operating activities K
Cash used in operations E R 2R R 20(c) (78,382) (20,283)
Income tax FriS T
— Tax paid outside Hong Kong — BBUIINH (123) (57)
Net cash used in operating activities ~ &EXBReBEFE (78,505) (20,340)
Investing activities REXE®
Payment for the purchase of fixed assets BABRTEE (15,409) (29,941)
Payment for the purchase of BAHMEEEE
other tangible assets (5,839) (6,935)
Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets HEETEEEMSHRE 2,037 104
Proceeds from disposal of &g ,\ﬁﬂﬁﬂ/éﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁk
other tangible assets 703 154
Interest received 2 U FIE 3,653 2,450
Net cash used in investing activities ~~ BEXB2RemwHEE (14,855) (34,768)
Financing activities & SEE
Proceeds from new bank loans FILIRITE R 419,287 79,187
Repayment of bank loans EEPRITER (365,494) (79,187)
Increase in pledged deposits ERER 2 (138,000) —
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits BITER 2R, (E) 5,876 (5,876)
Interest paid 2RFE (19,993) (9,572)
Net cash used in financing activites =~ BEZEBDzReRLFE (98,324) (15448)
Net decrease in cash HekEEARLER
and cash equivalents ZBERD (191,684) (69,956)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—HB2zH$&
RERREERLER 20(b) 220,556 285,902
Effect of foreign exchange rates changes ER#E) > /& 16,714 4,610
cash and cash equivalents R+-ZA=+—BzHEE
at 31 December FERRSEBEEER 20(b) 45,586 220,556

The notes on pages 66 to 132 form part of these financial statements.
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B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)

1  significant accounting policies 1 EgHNE

(a) Statement of compliance (a) EB<FEH
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all KRB IMERIRBABEA 2 EENBR
applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"), which g EI‘J (BB BREED]) (BEME
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial R —FABEESGAMATEM 2
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and ﬁﬁﬁLFﬁ RER BB mEER - BF
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public G ER (BB EL R2E - &8
Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in ARETRAUREBR RGO 2 E) ™
Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies R ZEVBWMERNETEBERERS
oOrdinance. These financial statements also comply with the applicable FrEMRATIZES EmBRBI(TEmaRAL) 2
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities EA ?ﬁ&giﬁﬂ& c REBKAZEESHK
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A RHMEWNT -
summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group
is set out below.
The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first E,%QEJrEﬂi’“AEﬂE?E%?’i%ﬁ&,@ﬂ%?ﬂ
effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period BB WMELER  WRAKERAR
of the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any Al Z NS AR B R A ke AT (IR B R
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these e BRERNEEANAEE ZHETE
developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the BIFTSI BN BB R A ST 2 A
current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial IR EBE R A ERERARE - 5
statements. BERE R 1)

(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements (b) #mBEEmET2ER

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2011 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to
as the “Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other

BE_T——F1+-_A=t—HLEFEZ
HaMBHRREBEARTRENEQF
(T RIAEE]) -

FAF MR T AR SE RN I i R -

RENEE BN BREERNNMBHRRE
KERBEHEFEBRERNLEE 8
& - WA BRI ST 3R B R HI B - 5T
&fﬁx RHARE o (At RABERERHIRES

EEBREZEREEERIBEATEEEDN

factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, EmI%W’Eﬁj HERKAEEEMRK
the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about BRI TEAS RN EERBEREAEED
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent FIREVERE - BRARAIREREERZEM
from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. i e

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period

At RARRRR G AR - HEFHEE
EITERTR - HETRPEZIE - Al

in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, FlEfigs ﬂﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁﬁfﬁmﬁém BB &
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects %@J%Eﬁ&*%,ﬁﬁ&ﬁ - BIFEISET R AR 2R ER
both current and future periods. fEl R o

Judgements made by management in the application of HKFRSs that
have significant effect on the financial statements and major sources
of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 2.

The Group sustained a consolidated net loss from continuing operations
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of $53,464,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2011 and, as of that date, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its current assets by $73,729,000. The
directors consider that these conditions were caused mainly by the
Group's deteriorating performance in mainland China over the last few
years.

ShER B 7B B 75 1R o 2 R B T4 A9 )
B ARMERE T —FE 2 BB REABK
BERRBEARZ BT RATERIIRH
2.

BHE_Z—F+_A=1t—HILFE "
AEBSSEEAABEEHEAKRER
BIREETS 2 i7 A E1853,464,0007T -
MR%E - AEEZ RS REBHE RS
BET73,729,0007C - EERR - HEZF
AR 2252 R 7 B [ BT A R0 R
Mtz FHERI BB ZFTE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(b)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which
may cast significant doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going
concern and therefore it may be unable to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. Nevertheless,
the directors are of the opinion that the Group will be able to finance
its future working capital and financial requirements given that:

(i) the Group restructured its mainland China operations
comprising two subsidiaries, San Miguel (Guangdong) Brewery
Company Limited (“SMGB") and Guangzhou San Miguel Brewery
Company Limited ("GSMB") in October 2011 with a view to
streamlining its operations and improving financial performance.
Under this restructuring, the Group integrated the sales and
distribution function of SMGB into GSMB so that SMGB now
concentrates on brewing operations;

(i) the directors are reviewing the Group’s longer term business
strategy and have identified various initiatives which could turn
around the Group's business performance. As a result, SMGB
started export production for its holding company in the last
quarter of 2011 and the Company obtained the distribution rights
for certain beer brands in Hong Kong in mid 2011. The directors
will continue to review and implement other initiatives;

(iii) as at 31 December 2011, all of the Group's short term bank
loans were borrowed by SMGB mostly in Renminbi in mainland
China. The Company is negotiating with certain banks in Hong
Kong for long term loans totalling $250,000,000 as at the date
of the financial statements. The Company plans to inject the
proceeds from these long term loans and its surplus cash into
SMGB in the form of registered capital in two batches subject
to the approval of the relevant Chinese government authority,
so that SMGB can repay all its current bank loans in mainland
China by the end of the first half of 2012. As SMGB repays its
current bank loans, the Company’s pledged deposits which
amounted to $198,000,000 as at 31 December 2011 will be
gradually released and become available for the Company’s use,
including to finance a further injection into SMGB.

SMGB submitted an application for an increase of its registered
capital by US$46,000,000, from US$39,933,000 to US$85,933,000,
to the local government authority on 18 January 2012 for its
approval.

(b)

B B R AR Y R

(B SEERI - RBEE)

FESHRE®
BB HRERZER (@)

BUEBEBERTASEGFEEATHNAR

=

SAREFEFRBLE LN BREMS

Mg B AR E TN E R EBBIZ

BHRHEERBERBE - A EF
R ERATER  KEEFEHEE
BeRAEARREEES M EMBR
E:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REBER_ZT—F+AEH
el b A S N NS )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(b)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(Continued)

(iif)

(iv)

(Continued)

The directors believe that this refinancing will turn around the
Group’s net current liabilities into net current assets as the long
term loans would be classified as non-current liabilities. Also,
the directors expect that this initiative can reduce the Group's
finance costs as the loans to be borrowed by the Company in
Hong Kong are expected to bear lower interest rates than the
current loans as the Hong Kong dollar interest rate is generally
lower than Renminbi interest rate.

Until the completion of the above refinancing plan, the Group
will continue to roll-over the existing short term bank loans. In
January 2012, the Group has successfully rolled-over a loan of
$12,336,000 to 18 May 2012 upon maturity on 18 January 2012.
There are two loans totalling $104,023,000 which mature in
February 2012 and management is negotiating with the relevant
bank for a roll-over of these loans for another three to six months
as at the date of the financial statements. Further, there are
three loans totalling $74,016,000 which mature in March 2012
and management will start negotiating with the relevant banks
for a roll-over for another three to six months in February 2012,
and

the Company’s intermediate holding company, namely San
Miguel Brewery Inc., a listed company in the Republic of the
Philippines, has committed to provide continuing support to
enable the Group to operate as a going concern and meet its
liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.

Accordingly, the directors are of the opinion that it is appropriate to
prepare the Group’s financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011 on a going concern basis. Should the Group be unable
to continue to operate as a going concern, adjustments would have to
be made to write down the value of assets to their recoverable amounts,
to provide for further liabilities which might arise and to reclassify non-
current assets and non-current liabilities as current assets and current
liabilities respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been
reflected in the financial statements.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(c)

significant accounting policies (continued) 1

Changes in accounting policies (c)

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSS and one
new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

— HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures
— Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)

— HK(IFRIC) 19, Extinguishing financial liabilities with equity
instruments

— Amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14, HKAS 19 — The limit on a defined
benefit asset, minimum funding requirements and their
interaction — Prepayments of a minimum funding equipment

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is
not yet effective for the current accounting period.

The amendments to HK(IFRIC) 14 have had no material impact on the
Group'’s financial statements as they were consistent with policies
already adopted by the Group. HK(IFRIC) 19 has not yet had a material
impact on the Group's financial statements as these changes will first
be effective as and when the Group enters a relevant transaction (for
example, a debt for equity swap).

The impacts of other developments are discussed below:

— HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a related party.
As a result, the Group has re-assessed the identification of
related parties and concluded that the revised definition does
not have any material impact on the Group's related party
disclosures for the current and previous periods. HKAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure requirements
for government-related entities. This does not impact the Group
because the Group is not a government-related entity.

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus standard introduces
a number of amendments to the disclosure requirements in
HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures
about the Group's financial instruments in note 27 are consistent
with the amended disclosure requirements. These amendments
do not have any material impact on the classification,
recognition and measurement of the amounts recognised in the
financial statements in the current and previous periods.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (d HEBARARFERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when
the Group has the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing
control, potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken
into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control commences until the
date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised profits but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not
attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which
the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a
contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the
Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable
assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position within equity, separately from equity attributable
to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests
and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of
non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards
these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with notes 1(m) or (n)
depending on the nature of the liability.

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative
interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or 10ss
is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or 10ss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognised at fair
value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
of a financial asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(e)

(f)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1())),
with the exception of construction in progress which is stated at cost
less any impairment losses (see note 1(j)).

— land classified as being held under finance leases and buildings
theron (see note 1(g));

— buildings held for own use which are situated on leasehold land
classified as held under operating leases (see note 1(g)); and

— other items of plant and equipment.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual values, if any, using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as held under finance leases is
depreciated over the unexpired term of lease.

— Buildings situated on leasehold land are depreciated over the
shorter of the unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful
lives, being no more than 50 years.

— Machinery, equipment, furniture and fixtures 4 t0 50 years

— Motor vehicles 4 t0 7 years

No provision for depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time when the assets are substantially completed and ready for
use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis
between the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings which are owned or held
under a leasehold interest (see note 1(g)) to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses (see note 1())). Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost of investment properties, less their estimated residual
values, if any, using the straight-line method over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated useful lives, being no more
than 50 years.

Both the useful lives of the investment properties and their residual
values, if any, are reviewed annually.

Rental income from investment properties is accounted for as described
in note 1(s)(iii).

(e)

(f

B B R AR Y R

(B BRI - BB EHE)
FESHRE®
W HESRRE

BRfE2 TR AR ERMER B (R K&
100) FUBRSN - AT B9 - #28 MR 1B 1R
BXAR R EH T E ROBEEESIAR (R T
10) -

— DEABMERETH I RYE
(RME1Q) -

— EDBERKEMETH LI LW
BRWE(RME1E) « &

— HEEBER®RE-

WENHEME  HILREBEEZA
& DR EMSRIEFERANLBRER KR
EEZEZR  URHEXLERERRED

WERYME - Hes RRBRARE G
RpEEMA)  EETAGBRAERE
HIEAME A B AORRT E M MUSH

— DEABMERE TN IR KRE
SR E -
— EMEE T ENERRERE

SRR EMAR A EAFS (T HEB
At+F)MEREEHRFTE

— = R®E MEFERTF
RRNEE
— L MEELF

EETRENEETK R AIRAERTE
FHEITE -

EHYE  BEkRiB &N E TR
RAE AR - IR E BB 2 AR
AEERDE - MEHHBIEERIFE -

AEESFRIEEZERFHRER
HEEMA) -

RENF
REMERRBES WA R, REBE ARG
EmMEAIRERERD (RHE1Q)
B LHRFEE -

BREYERRARR A ITE MOREERS
AR (RPEEN() » ETRFIREWER R
EFEREE (WA) - EREREERR
HEFAEAFH(THBRBELTF) MET
BEHEABAOET E M

wEWENTERFHRERSER @
B) BREELRE -
REMENE S WARIEIE(S)(i) Pt
FTHFE -

BN R A
—E——FFR




B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®
(8) Leased assets (g) HEEE
An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, AR E e E 2 P BB £ 2R AR
is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement IN—FR—RIFEMEAE—FHEE
conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of EXZEEECEN  RIZEHEEH—F
time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a REH—RINZZHEK) REERBER
determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the &  ZETRBELREE 2 RA R EMmIE
arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the H MERTHES S ABEE ERE
legal form of a lease. e
(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group (i) HEFAEBZEENSE

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the ¥¢ﬁ$$%tﬁﬁi§%*ﬁﬁ’9i§§ WA

Group substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified ERHEAEENBRAZ D BT ERER

as being held under finance leases. EREH - ﬁ%ﬁﬁE‘E@AiﬂﬁﬁMmﬁé{fﬁ

B5%A -

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of WAKHBEEZMBERBANNZEZE L

ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases, with the HEEE - DYAKEMEE - LLTIRIN

following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that would otherwise meet — HEREMETENLEHEY
the definition of an investment property is classified as ¥SWOBEERENME - MER
investment property on a property-by-property basis and, if DREREME  ZHEHESUR
classified as investment property, is accounted for as if held BEHEAR &
under a finance lease; and

— land held for own use under an operating lease, where the fair — RELEHELSEAMFEEN T
value cannot be measured separately from the fair value of a o ERAAEBEEHERGBET
building situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is FEEEHUNEE LI ENEENDR
accounted for as being held under a finance lease, unless the RBESFHTE  EARER
building is also clearly held under an operating lease. For these EHEREAR KRIFBEHEEE
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the lease MEARBEEHENTE - BlE
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over from the Rlim o it s - HENFBRE
previous lessee. MARNEE BRI LBLN K

WRIABAZEFE -
(ii)  Operating lease charges (i) KEHEE

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, WASRERBSCEHEFREE - RIBME

payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal WFS 2 BT R R ASHEAHER

instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term. FIdE @t B8 - TS ERE

Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral #a Emﬁf’ﬁ?%ﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁ%%fﬁfﬁ RERH) —

part of the aggregate net lease payments made. DEBDPHER -

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease is amortised S ERA T NBIER AN R IZER

on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term. Impairment i%‘tfﬁf,ﬁﬂmﬁﬁﬁ BEEESRRMNT

losses are recognised in accordance with the accounting policy set ()R 2 5T BUR RIER o

out in note 1()).

(h) Intangible assets (hy EREE
Intangible assets are trademarks and club debentures acquired by the S I & P B 25 DARK AR A R (B 5 18 5

Group and stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 1())).
These intangible assets are not amortised as their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite and are tested annually for impairment (see
note 1())).

The conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is

B (RPEE1G) °
ZEEREEVESRE RAHUFEAST
s BT E RS EAERER R
(RBFFE1() o

BIVEEZ R AFIIEENSERAS

reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances FREUBEBNCREELFREEY
continue to support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. THEEEAFHZTHER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(i

()
(i)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Other tangible assets

Other tangible assets represent returnable bottles and crates used by
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

Returnable bottles and crates are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 1(j)). Amortisation is
calculated to write off the cost of bottles and crates, less their estimated
residual values, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives of two to three years and seven years respectively.

Both the useful lives of bottles and crates and their residual values are
reviewed annually.

Impairment of assets

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and receivables

Investments in subsidiaries that are stated at cost in the Company’s
statement of financial position and receivables that are stated at
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting period to
determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market, economic or
legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and
recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the impairment loss is measured
by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with
its carrying amount in accordance with note 1(j)(ii). The
impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount in accordance with note 1())(ii).

— For receivables carried at amortised cost, the impairment 10ss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for
impairment collectively are based on historical 10ss experience
for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective

group.
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B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®
(j). Impairment of assets (Continued) () EERE®
(i) Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and receivables (i) M AR RERKIENRE (&)
(Continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss WMAEBESERNTEIAME ﬂz
decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an Do MBI T%%ﬂiﬂziﬁiﬁﬁ
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the BEBBEEREZEHARE
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of AP EREERERER - E01
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount SEHREECEEEBS MR R
exceeding that which would have been determined had no FFE W MR Z R EEERR
impairment loss been recognised in prior years. [EEE 2% -
Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets BEBEREZERAREEMS BN
directly, except for impairment losses recognised in respect of trade JEWE 5 R E M AR e FE IS 5 BR SR P 1
receivables included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery REREEE - HieERBFEm P
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment $EE - BIERIGR - LB T © RERH
losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. REEE R RBEERTH - EAEEEMR
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount ol &R - RI#AR A EEIRE R © 8
considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables directly SEELEWE ZERPMEE - mEm3)
and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt ABEREEEFENSESHED -
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged E BEERE S EBERTNERSS
to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. RS ERERPREE - BERANNE
Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of ﬁﬂ Eb&ﬁfé”ﬁl@@%u EEEMENSRE
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in profit or 10ss. EREERER
(ii)  Impairment of other assets (i) HiEERE

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period to identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— Property, plant and equipment;

REEEE B SRTRBRIRIER - 5L
%%Tﬂéé TEHBRER FIE R
HERE D FEESED

— WE - BERERE

— Investment properties; — "EYE

— Interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating — AEEHETERAMBENTEE
leases; g

— Intangible assets; and — mIEEE &

— Other tangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is

— HMBLEE -

WEFEEFAERTR - AlGEFEED

estimated. In addition, for intangible assets that have indefinite useful AINEISEE o AN LS BRERFEASF
lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not HNEREENS @ AEBSBFEAETHE
there is any indication of impairment. AIE e - UiEELSR A EARED

— Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in

% o

—  HETKELE

BEZANEGHEASEESERRE
LEREBEEMEFR 2BSE - 1

use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their FEFEREER - SEARBA
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current AR E G EFT R AR RIS M=/
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks RERMBE - ZAEREEERET
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash 5E R ARG 2 B R EE N
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the ZEEZBEERR - MEEILX

recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

BEEAZUB N E b & E T HREX
Beng  MABIRRESR
B2&/NMERIEE (AIRRREE
i) REEATREEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
()
(i)

(k)

0

significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

Impairment of other assets (Continued)

— Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or group
of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

— Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
COSts necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is
recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are recognised as an
expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in
the period in which the reversal occurs.

Receivables

Receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(j)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial.
In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)
0}

(i)

(iii)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less
attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and redemption value being
recognised in profit or 1oss over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

Payables

Payables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at
amortised cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term,
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees.

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plan
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods;
that benefit is discounted to determine the present value, and the fair
value of any plan assets is deducted. The discount rate is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds that
have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Group’s obligations.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses in respect of the defined benefit retirement
plan are recognised in full in the period in which they occur, outside
profit or loss, in equity. They shall not be recognised in profit or 10ss in
a subsequent period.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group
demonstrably commits itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed formal
plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(a)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amount of tax are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the
year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable
temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes
and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities and all
deferred tax assets, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable
temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to
reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The
same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or
periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not
part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to
investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is
probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,
or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the
expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount
of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the
related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.
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B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  HRBEHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®
(q) Income tax (Continued) (Q BB E

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements REARIEFR SRR A # e e o

therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset. R - WEATHEE o AHFELEFTEH

Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred BEREEARRNRIAEBEETE ﬂ&ﬁ%

tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group INAREAFTS I A BRI A EH AR

has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against I[Hﬁ’.:\.LATW’“{Iﬂ’-FE’JI AN ZLTL/(
current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met: DR EEABFRLEREHARE -

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or — REFFEHEEMAE - AAdA
the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise SAEEFEIRFEEELEE
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or SARKSERZEEMEEZA

& : 3k
— in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to — BEMSHAEMERE  E&L&
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either: EMBENVEHER— %Ri‘%ﬁ%%ﬁ Bt
LNTEF-—EHHUNMEHE
B
— the same taxable entity; or — A —FERTIMTE ¢+ 3K
— different taxable entities, which, in each future period — TR ERBIRE - FL
in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities E‘&gﬁ%ﬂﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend EAMEHABEREBES
to realise the current tax assets and settle the current EEFTSTLE E 0] A E
tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle B SRR R EARE - RFEE
simultaneously. EERAHAMEGREE
MBEERNBRAEHAE -
S ERNERZEENSE
ZEfE -
(r)  Provisions and contingent liabilities (r ZEERIREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount IMRAR B AE B AR E B AR E

when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation BEERNETERT  EAMEHEEHEA

arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of OB B IRING - A AMEL AT/

economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable fHETH AR RRAEEEE Rz E

estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, HEITTENBFEIRER - WREERE

provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected BEEKX - AIRERAHEZ HaRER )%
to settle the obligation. 1 -

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be MR EBEER R ETRINRH AT B R

required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is B SNREEEBEEEEL RN

disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of i REelREBERAXRRAE  BE
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will TRINREY AT B AR K RIBR AN o INRAEH
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more MEBERTERAEZRRREHRS

future events are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the ETREEEERFL - NE ﬁ&é%iﬁﬁ

probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. & - (EE RN EI AT B MERRAK BIBR AN o

(s) Revenue recognition (s) WARR

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or U A2 A EH&ZEX%TH&ZEX#&@HE’JQ%? B1E

receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow FTE o MESAEERANERATEERA

to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured REE - MU A R (RiE ) se5a1E D

reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows: AISERETER - BREWABZRU T AT

W R ANHER
(i) Sale of goods (i) HEWA

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the customers’

HEWAEAMIHET S IR E miXE

premises or picked up by customers for domestic sales and when goods FERACESMIERIN - AR AHEEM
are shipped on board for export sales which is taken to be the point in EOREmCEREMN  IBERESXERK
time when the customer has accepted the goods and the related risks BEARRRRE T AARK  SFERATBIEY

and rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax and
consumption tax and is after deduction of any trade discounts and
returns.

EREERT  LENRAEESITHR
R[E o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1

(s)
(i)

(iif)

(t)
0}

(i)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest
method.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss in equal instalments over the periods covered by the lease term.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss as an integral
part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

Translation of foreign currencies

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group'’s
subsidiaries are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company'’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or 10ss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Statement of
financial position items are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
closing foreign exchange rates at the end of the reporting period. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong Kong, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising from monetary items that in
substance form part of the net investment in an operation outside Hong
Kong, together with any related tax, are reclassified to equity on
consolidation.

(s)
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(iii)

(t)
M
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BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
1  significant accounting policies (continued) 1 EEHEE®
(u) Borrowing costs (u) FEERK
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, Eihs  gEskEEaEREE BINA
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a FA—BRERSHEAAMERTRENESE
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are ZEBE) MEEEG ZEERAEIEZ
capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are EEEZIHMKEN - EMEBEKRAIEE
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. EREIRSIER L -
The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of a qualifying BREBEREEXRA—BOMEEXAE
asset commences when expenditure for the asset is being incurred, BEEARY BERAEERFEEER
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to ANIRE R E S IHE T A 2B TIEETT
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. HEMIEE R - EFEEEREERAR
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when ERBSIHERNENB R EEHBIE
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset BIESERE - (EERAEEEEHEL
for its intended use or sale are interrupted or complete. AR o
(v) Related parties (v) PBAEAL
0) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related (i) EAIAL  HEBERFENKE
to the Group if that person: WRBEAEEHBEATLT @ WE
ZEBIAL
M has control or joint control over the Group; M 22 | X L (7] 2 il AR S ()
) has significant influence over the Group; or 2 HAEEEEATEN
B4
(3) is a member of the key management personnel of the 3) RAEBESIAEEEG AT
Group or the Group's parent. FTEEEBAEBKEZ— -
(ii) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions (ii) —EEENFE M TIHES
applies: Al RAEENEEBEAL -
) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (1 ZEBNMAEEZR—
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow Eek 8 (EEREGHE
subsidiary is related to the others). NI NCIDNEESL )
BREEAER) o
2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other 2) —EEREES BB
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a ERRAHAEERE (K—E
group of which the other entity is a member). BERAXE —SEKE M

E"E&Aéii ﬁ’ﬁ;@

(3) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party. (3) WETERAE=ZFNE
Bz o
o) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the (4 —EEBEF=—(EAEEN
other entity is an associate of the third entity. GEME mME—(EEE
ABEZEEENBED
7 o
(5) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the (5) ZEBERERETAEE
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity iEﬁiZlS‘i EABEEANTH
related to the Group. ERENESBEBZENG
g -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1
(v)

(w)

(a)

significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in ()(1) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive management
for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial
reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the
services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Accounting judgements and estimates

Notes 5 and 24 contain information about the assumptions and their
risk factors relating to the non-current assets impairment and retirement
benefit liabilities. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

Impairment of fixed assets, intangible assets and other
tangible assets

If the circumstances indicate that the carrying values of these assets
may not be recoverable, the assets may be considered “impaired” and
an impairment loss may be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
Impairment of assets. Under HKAS 36, these assets are tested for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a
decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of its fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value,
which requires significant judgement relating to level of sales volume,
selling prices and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable
approximation of the recoverable amount. However, actual sales
volume, selling prices and operating costs may be different from
assumptions which may result in a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the assets affected. Details of the nature and carrying
amounts of fixed assets, intangible assets and other tangible assets
are disclosed in notes 13, 14 and 16, respectively.
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B #& R 3k MY AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)

2  Accounting judgements and estimates continued) 2 — BEH&EE R AE @

(b) Depreciation or amortisation of fixed assets (b) BEETEEZINEREE B
Fixed assets (see note 13) are depreciated or amortised on a straight- EEEE (RWFE13) Rt REMEFRIRE
line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account BB % EEMRAIERAERIZER
the estimated residual values, if any. The Group reviews the estimated EWTES Y - AEETHEEENMET
useful lives and the estimated residual values, if any, of the assets AIE AR R FIEREE (NE) (EE R
regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation or o REERWRE AR ALSNITES
amortisation expense to be recorded during any reporting period. The BB - I AFREKFSREBBE
useful lives and residual values are based on the Group’s historical AEEHELUEENBELRIEBIR
experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated B e ML - MEBEGTHEE
technological changes. The depreciation or amortisation expense for R - RARHAM T E M AT
future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes from previous FHEE o
estimates.

(c) Impairment loss for doubtful debts (c) RERBEESE
The Group maintains an allowance for doubtful debts for estimated NEEFEEABREEED AR
losses resulting from the inability of debtors to make required payments. BYHEETEERRZRABERIE -
The Group bases the estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of AEEZBETREAM T 18P REWE Z R
the trade receivable balance as disclosed in note 18, debtors’ credit- REESHZRER - EBANEERBEMEE
worthiness and historical write-off experience. If the financial condition LERE KRR REIEL AT o MEBA
of debtors were to deteriorate, actual write-offs would be higher than BT BAOR R Y - BERMERE AT AE R R E
estimated. FTEE o

(d) write down of inventories (d HWREFEE
The Group performs a regular review of the carrying amounts of REBUFE ZRERST - BEFRIOERE
inventories as disclosed in note 17 with reference to aged inventories EREBREZHEESRE  THRIER
analyses, expected future consumption and management judgement. RITE17FFEREE - BEBLER
Based on this review, write down of inventories will be made when the o METEZAIERHE TRERRNA
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below the carrying BREE  FESRELRE - Am - BEBE
amount. However, actual consumption may be different from estimation ﬁzﬁﬁdﬁ.ﬁr—f LR - mihEt 2 ZREE
and profit or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. BmEERTE o

(e) Useful lives of intangible assets () BEEEZVFEATEH
Intangible assets (see note 14) are not amortised as their useful lives s AE (R4 ey - &2
are assessed to be indefinite. The conclusion that the useful life of an EaEFEE 2 FRFHIEEATE
intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether E o ERULERRA  BFEENAFERF
events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful life HenEGFEHNREELRIESEE
assessment. The Group may need to amortise intangible assets in future BYREREENERATFHATHEE -1
periods or recognise impairment losses on intangible assets if events RUERKBHERRRAANSERFEHRRRE
and circumstances indicate that the useful life is not indefinite. E o ANEEA AR EEFD B

EEHL, ﬂ@ﬁi_ﬂﬁ °
(f)  Deferred tax assets (f) EZEMEBEEE

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used and

BIEBIAE E TS RB) B 2 BIARE

temporary deductible differences. As those deferred tax assets can only R =SB IER c ARNZFELERIBEE
be recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits KW R PR P AR SR FE AR TR & R 1% m] FA 1B
will be available against which the unused tax credits can be utilised, SHABAMAI B AR - BEER
management’s judgement is required to assess the probability of future SRR ERTR BN 2 Al gelt - BIRE Y
taxable profits. Management's assessment is constantly reviewed and B EL EHRER - WARRERTR

additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax assets to be
recovered. Details of the nature and carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets are disclosed in note 25.

A A AP EBEIER IR B E - B2 MR
SMEETRIAEE o BIEHIREEMIEEM
AR AR BN E25h B EE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3
(a)

(b)

0}

Turnover and segment reporting

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture and distribution
of bottled, canned and draught beers.

Turnover represents the invoiced value of products sold, net of
discounts, returns, value added tax and consumption tax.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its businesses by geography. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has presented the
following two reportable segments:

— The Hong Kong operation mainly represents the manufacture
and distribution of own brewed beer products and distribution
of imported beer products in Hong Kong and overseas.

— The mainland China operation mainly represents the
manufacture and distribution of own brewed beer products in
the southern part of the PRC and overseas.

All of the Group's turnover is generated from the manufacture and
distribution of bottled, canned and draught beers.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the Group’s senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and liabilities attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible assets, intangible assets and current
assets. Segment liabilities include trade creditors and accruals
attributable to the manufacture and distribution activities of the
individual segments, bank loans and retirement benefit liabilities
managed directly by the segment and other current liabilities with the
exception of deferred tax liabilities.

The measure used for reportable segment profit or 10ss is profit or l0ss
before taxation. Taxation is not allocated to reportable segments. Inter-
segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in note 1.

(a)

(b)

0}
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&sR®MIzE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
3  Turnover and segment reporting (continued) 3 EXURSBEHE®R®
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SHMERZ®RE
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued) (i) DEEE  BEERAEEWHE)
Information regarding the Group'’s reportable segments as provided to HE—Z——FR-_ZT—ZF+-A=+
the Group’s most senior executive management for the purposes of —HIE BRRHTAEERSETHRE
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance for the BABUSEBERMIEDHRR 2ER
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 is set out below: HAWT -
Hong Kong Mainland China Total
5E FE R &g
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—-F —E-2F “E-—-f —E-%fF —E--F —2-%F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr i Tr Fr
Revenue from external customers  SNEEPIA 515,726 410,673 168,153 178,649 683,879 589,322
Inter-segment revenue DEEEA — — 93 751 93 751
Reportable segment revenue EFE2HZHURA 515,726 410,673 168,246 179,400 683,972 590,073
Reportable segment ATEHHHEE
profit/(loss) from operations B / (&) 9,298 (444,181) (78,325) (338,328) (69,027) (782,509)
Interest income from bank deposits 57777 7| 84 A 2,884 1,268 887 1,316 3,771 2,584
Interest expense on bank loans  RITEHFIEFR — — (18,551) (10,532) (18,551) (10,532)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ FRMEREH
for the year (14,808) (34,402) (3,114) (18,463) (17,922) (52,865)
Reversal of/(provision for) EEERAZAE

impairment losses recognised in ~ FEEEE /(%)
profit or loss in respect of

— non-current assets —ERBEE = (442,633) (5,497) (241,650) (5,497) (684,283)

— trade and other receivables  — EMESREMEE 351 (1,511) 10 ) 361 (1,518)
Reportable segment assets AT EHRABEE 1,102,230 1,098,617 82,906 113,196 1,185,136 1211813
Additions to non-current segment  ERIERE D BEE

assets during the year #h0 7,927 5,784 7,894 9,306 15,821 15,090
Reportable segment liabilities ZFE2HIBEE 96,631 90,280 787,829 725,999 884,460 816,279
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BAES AR M AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
3  Turnover and segment reporting (continued) 3 EXURSBEHE®R®
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SHMERZ®RE
(ii)  Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, profit or loss, (i) ZAFTE2|ROSZMUYA ~ 8% - BEREE
assets and liabilities 2 HiR
2011 2010
=—E——F —E-FF
$'000 $'000
Fx T
Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue ATEHRD WA 683,972 590,073
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 7802 U A BE (93) (751)
Consolidated turnover RE LR 683,879 589,322
Loss BB
Reportable segment loss from operations AT EFRDILLEIE (69,027) (782,509)
Elimination of inter-segment profits “%ZF&ﬁ&f'ﬁEﬁﬁ — —
Reportable segment loss derived from REINAEP ZEATE2HDE
Group'’s external customers B8 RARE RTIATEE
and consolidated loss before taxation (69,027) (782,509)
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets BTEBRIHEE 1,185,136 1,211,813
Elimination of inter-segment receivables 8B 2 [ FE U BR TE B8R (380,070) (385,336)
Consolidated total assets REREE 805,066 826,477
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities ATEHRHIEE 884,460 816,279
Elimination of inter-segment payables "*BZF'EJJW‘J‘EEIETE&% (380,070) (385,336)
504,390 430,943
Deferred tax liabilities FEIERRIBEE 3,453 4,060
Consolidated total liabilities meEBAaE 507,843 435,003
BBE NG BEAR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
3  Turnover and segment reporting (continued) 3 EXURSBEHE®R®
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) SHMERZ®RE
(iii) Geographic information (i) HEER
The following table sets out information about the geographic location TREFEAN)REEINARE P YA K (i)
of (i) the Group's revenue from external customers and (i) the Group's AEEBETEE  BEEEMHMBRE
fixed assets, intangible assets and other tangible assets (“specified non- E(ETEIERBEE]) ZHIBMNBER -
current assets”). The geographic location of customers is based on the TP 2B ERBRIET AT NI E
country of establishment of each customer. The geographic location of FRIEBIRMIE © I8EIEMENE E 2 Hh IR AL
the specified non-current assets is based on the physical location of EERBEEZERMNE (WBETEEE
the assets, in the case of fixed assets and other tangible assets and, MEMEREE) MERBEBREE S
the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of B2 (WBEFEE) ME -
intangible assets.
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
SREFWA EEXRBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2E-——-F —Z=-FF ZZEB--F —ZT-FF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Tt Fr Tt
Hong Kong (place of domicile)  &7® (PR Zb®) 425,577 349,625 363,030 370,009
Mainland China AR A B 156,290 177,532 32,350 33,680
Philippines JFEE 93,253 55,893 — —
Others R 8,759 6,272 — —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 258,302 = 239697 32,350 33680
683,879 589,322 395,380 403,689
(c) Major customers (c) =EEFF

In 2011, the revenue from the Group’s largest customer which was
served both by Hong Kong segment and mainland China segment
amounted to $93,706,000 or 14% of the Group'’s total revenue (2010:
$59,575,000 or 10%). The revenue from the Group's five largest
customers amounted to 39% (2010: 39%) of the Group's total revenue.

Details of concentration of credit risk arising from these customers are
set out in note 27(a).

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2011
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR M AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
4  Other revenue and other net income 4 HtuARHEfhGSSHE
2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Other revenue Ha g A
Interest income from bank deposits H|ITIFRZ A EHA 3,771 2,584
Rental income from investment properties REFEDENHHES WA 5,808 8,273
Rental income from property, plant REWE - B REE
and equipment KR & WA 3,134 2,984
Others Hb 2,226 —
14,939 13,841
Other net income HitW = 358
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEEFAF 761 87
Net loss on disposal of other tangible assets HEHMBREEZ FEE (447) (923)
Net foreign exchange gains b )5 2 7| 2,979 1,623
Gain on disposal of non-current HERELENIERDEE
assets held for sale 2R E A — 1,180
Others HAb 26 8
3,319 1,975
5 Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRDEEZRESGR
Impairment losses/(reversal of impairment losses) of non-current assets EREBEERERE (REBERED)
represent: ¥
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Non-current assets relating to BERERNMER
mainland China operation (note 5(a)) #3ERENE B (M 3E5() 5,497 254,621
Non-current assets relating to EHBEREEXED
Hong Kong manufacturing operation (note 5(b)) " IE R BN & E (M 7E5(D)) — 431,167
Other tangible assets BEMAETEE = (1,505)
5,497 684,283
BBE NG BEAR A A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&sR®MIzE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)

5 Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRBFEZREGE @

(Continued)
The above impairment losses are further analysed as follows: N EREEENFASTNAT
2011 2010
—E——F ZT—TF
Note $'000 $'000
ihg=g Fr FT
Provision for impairment losses: R{EEERHE :
Fixed assets & E & E 13(a) 1,631 695,942
Intangible assets — trademarks BVEE — B1F 14 — 11,466
Other tangible assets EmmBEREE 16 3,866 20,218
777777777777777 5,497 - 77722,672é
Reversal of impairment losses: WEBERE :
Fixed assets EEEE 13(a) = (41,838)
Other tangible assets HEMBEREE 16 = (1,505)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, - 33
5,497 684,283
(@) Mainland China operation (@) HEAMER
During 2011 and 2010, the Group noted that the decline in demand for TE—FRIFE-TF AEEIE
its products in mainland China compared to previous forecasts in sales, EMELL R RIMEE TR - AR TSR
as a result of fierce market competition and the operating losses that AUFEPHAMEAEBERNT KD
consequently arose, were indications that non-current assets of the SIBEIREBE SR TRRNEEEBRD
operations in mainland China, comprising mainly the production plant IEREBEENRESHRMERIE - BLIER
located in Shunde, Guangdong Province, trademarks and other tangible PEETERIEMNNERERENEER
assets may be impaired. The Group assessed the recoverable amounts B mEREMBEREE - NEBFHZ
of the cash-generating unit to which these assets belong (“the China EEEMBMReEESN ([FRBE4E
cash-generating unit”) and as a result the carrying amount of the assets EBA]) QIR E S 58I F R A R
in the China cash-generating unit was written down by $5,497,000 (2010: THEEEMNMEEREES497,0007T (=
$254,621,000), details of which are as follows: T —F4F 1 254,621,0007T) © FHIFMT :
2011 2010
—B——F —ETF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Provisions for impairment losses: WEBERE
Fixed assets BEEEE 1,631 245,257
Intangible assets — trademarks EBRAE — AR — 11,466
Other tangible assets BEMAELEE 3,866 20,218
5,497 276,941
Reversal of impairment losses: WEEERE
Fixed assets EEE — (22,320)
Total HE 5,497 254,621
88 San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

5

(a)

(b)

B B R AR Y R

(B SEERI - RBEE)

Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRDFEZREGRE @
(Continued)
Mainland China operation (Continued) (a) HERHZER @)
The estimates of recoverable amount were based on the assets’ fair AR E M GET RBEEN AL ER
values less costs to sell, determined by reference to the observable FHEMAR - NELUEEMNBRMISE
market prices for similar assets. In estimating this amount, the Group BIEREZMET - NEBEERT —B8
engaged an independent firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors SEMAF - FIEITHEMARAR - HE
Limited, who have among their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute ITzHhEERANEMBENEES SR
of Surveyors. TS o
A reversal of an impairment loss in 2010 was made in respect of R-ZT-TFE 7 REBERLSELEH
interests in leasehold land held for own use under operating leases to ETERAMBEENHEE L hESERNEA
the carrying amount that would have been determined had no AFEETARERREBEMET K@
impairment loss been recognised in prior years, as there had been a B EEmRAUEENKRE SR fET
favourable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable IR Gr 8 o
amount.
Hong Kong manufacturing operation (b) BBEEXEK
In 2010, the Group noted that the decline in demand for its own brewed HEZT—2F  AEEFEIELER TR
products and shrinking profitability in Hong Kong compared to previous RISHETEN - R TMISHEFERUE BB
forecasts, as a result of fierce market competition and the operating 7N H B E an B0 B OB D R AU AR - 3
losses that consequently arose, were indications that non-current assets I EEE  ER A BBEFEER
of the manufacturing operations in Hong Kong, comprising mainly the RFEmENEERI e B AREREE o FELIF
production plant, an office building and a warehouse might be impaired. MBEEFZRELEERE HAKER
The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating BE - AEBFIAZEEEMBNE S A
unit to which these assets belong (“the Hong Kong cash-generating EBM (B8R cEESM]) W KkE®
unit”) and as a result the carrying amount of the assets in the Hong BWELBEESReEEEMNEER
Kong cash-generating unit was written down by $431,167,000, details M 18431,167,0007T © BT ¢
of which are as follows:
2010
—E-TF
$'000
Tt
Provision for impairment losses: REEERE
Fixed assets [ & & 450,685
Reversal of impairment losses: REEERE :
Fixed assets EEEE (19,518)
Total e 431,167

The recoverable amount of Hong Kong cash-generating unit had been
determined based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation used
cash flow projections based on the business forecasts approved by
the management covering a period of five years. Cash flows beyond
the five-year period were extrapolated using a steady growth rate of
2%. This growth rate did not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for Hong Kong.

HERSEESEMN AT E S EIIRIEE
REEFEMEE - 2B HRERER
ECRANDFEEBIEMSNRSRE
TERRETE - ZAFERMATRE - JiE
FATFRMIERE2%ES - BEBREY
TRREBENRMFHERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

BAES AR M AT

(ERERRIN  BIRBEEE)

5 Impairment losses of non-current assets 5 FRBFEZREGE @
(Continued)
(b) Hong Kong manufacturing operation (Continued) (b) BBEEEK®
A reversal of an impairment loss was made in respect of interests in BEEBE BREEECEHE TERAMmE
leasehold land held for own use under operating leases to the carrying ERHHAE T iR N AT FE W KRR
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been RREBEEME ZREE  S<HNA
recognised in prior years, as there had been a favourable change in IAEETE AU e & 58 2 fh At IR o 8 -
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.
Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation: AECHEERMANEZM®RE
2010
—E-TF
Sales volume growth rate HESHRE 1.7 —12.6%
Gross contribution rate EIES 40 — 43%
Pre-tax discount rate B B BT BE 3R K 9.85%
Management determined the growth rate and gross contribution rate EEERBAATLS HEMSBEMNTE
based on past experience, future expected market trends and an B R — AR MR A B O AN 58 (B P g i e
intermediate holding company’s import plans for beer brewed by the BT EIRETEEREFE -
Group.
In 2011, the Group’s results in Hong Kong were fairly consistent with RIT——F - REEFBEBAEEH
the forecasts made in 2010. The Group assessed the recoverable —E-EFEEHNEIEE K - BE
amounts of the Hong Kong cash-generating unit as at 31 December —E——H+-_A=1+—HIFE K&
2011 and determined that neither further impairment losses nor a B AR R EEBMATEETRE—
reversal of previous impairment losses is necessary. FTREEBEEIREHERR -
6 Loss hefore taxation 6 MRMBR
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/(crediting): BRBAIEEE MR, (G A) TFIER -
2011 2010
—E2——F —E-FF
$'000 $'000
Fr Ft
(a) Finance costs (a) B%EA
Interest expense on bank loans ARAFAZEERE
wholly repayable within five years ZIRITERAEZH 18,551 10,532
Bank charges HRITEMR 2,111 1,372
20,662 11,904
(b)  Staff costs (b) EBEIFHM
Retirement costs RIRE AR
— Defined contribution — EREHFURIRET S
retirement plans 6,723 6,090
— Defined benefit retirement plan — FEFRRFRRETE
(note 24(a)(v)) (Pt 5E24(@) W) 4,340 4,058
11,063 10,148
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMBEF 101,023 96,719
112,086 106,867

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS |

B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
6 Loss before taxation (continued) 6 RRAER®
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
(c) Other items (c) HthEH

Amortisation 5y
— Land lease premium (note 13(a)) — HE L+ HRIE (FFE13@) 4,473 1,877
— Other tangible assets (note 16) — HMBAREE (M:E16) 823 5,905
Depreciation (note 13(a)) e (M3E13()
— Property, plant and equipment — W% - HERERE 9,747 42,804
— Investment properties — REYE 2,879 2,279
Cost of inventories (note 17) FERAE (H5E17) 383,523 329,795
Operating lease charges: CEHREBR -

minimum lease payments SEMAEMZK
— Land and buildings — THREE 2,812 2,971
— Plant and machinery — B K ikss = 15
Rental receivable from investment "EYE B WA

properties less direct outgoings of HE#HH2,932,000 7T

$2,932,000 (2010: $2,420,000) (Z=—Z 4 :2,420,000) (2,876) (5,853)
Auditors’ remuneration 12 Gl
— Provision for the year — RFERE 3,156 2,801
— Under-provision in respect of — EFEBEBEIR

prior year 282 155

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment JEWE 5 EER 2 RE

losses on trade and (B E) /Bt (HE18(b))

other receivables (note 18(b)) (361) 1,518
7 Taxation in the consolidated income statement 7 HGAKkERZFMER
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) H&EWHKRZFAEHRIE
represents:
2011 2010
—2——F —ETF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Current tax — Outside Hong Kong AEAFLIE — BEUN
Provision for the year REE B (123) (57)
Deferred tax (note 25(a)) EESE (fEE25(a))
Origination and reversal of i = R 2 3R e B B
temporary differences 512 8,579
Income tax credit FriSFiaEt A 389 8,522

AR R EMEEHBRATNEEHREA
16.5% (ZZF—ZF : 16.5%) - A& &k

The statutory tax rate applicable to the Company and other Hong Kong
subsidiaries was 16.5% (2010: 16.5%). No provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax has been made for the Company and other Hong Kong subsidiaries HAb BB A B R &R R HIEE R
either because the accumulated tax losses brought forward exceed BB AN (A AT AR A &R R S B AT B S A
the estimated assessable profits for the year or the entities sustained B WESEBNSTELRE -
losses for taxation purposes.

BN R A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
7 Taxation in the consolidated income statement 7 HGAKERZHAER
(Continued)
(@) Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) HSRE&WHRZFAEBEHRIE @ @)
represents: (Continued)
The statutory tax rate applicable to the subsidiaries established in the AR Bl S BB A B VA TE LR A25%
PRC was 25% (2010: 25%). No provision for current taxation has been (Z2—ZF 1 25%) - SRNF LA
made for the subsidiaries established in the PRC because the entities M B A B RS ESEE - S ER AR
sustained losses for taxation purposes. FEBBELREE -
Provision for current tax outside Hong Kong for 2011 and 2010 TE——FRIFE-TFERENINKRE
represented a withholding tax levied at 10% on interest income earned MIBEEE —FIFTECEERAMNBA
in the PRC by a subsidiary which is a non-PRC resident according to A - ARIBEPEA R BIAED R E R
the relevant rules and regulations of the PRC. FIRE MR B ATEIRMI10%TERTE
o
(b) Reconciliation between income tax credit and (b) FEHTAESHEEZHE :
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
$'000 $'000
Tt T
Loss before taxation b F A1 5 18 69,027 782,509
Notional tax on loss before taxation EEBAREREER
calculated at the rates applicable to ZEARERBRB RS ETE
the tax jurisdictions concerned ZAHETRLIE 18,159 156,766
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR A s MIERE (4,865) (9,863)
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue IERBMURAZ BT & 291 4,321
Tax effect of tax losses and temporary R BRETHIBRER 2 HIBEE
differences not recognised LERBUEEZERE R E
for deferred tax purposes (16,095) (141,950)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses JEFA LR R ERN B EEE
previously unrecognised 2B E 1,261 —
Others HAty 1,638 (752)
Actual tax credit T ®iEt A 389 8,522

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

B B R AR Y R

(B SEERI - RBEE)

Directors’ remuneration 8 ExHM2
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong RIBFBQRIEHFE1611ER EHEAZ
Kong Companies Ordinance and the requirements of the Listing Rules HEBBsESHaWT ¢
is as follows:
2011
—E--F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
e FEREE BiEfta BASHZ A%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITES
Peter K.Y, Tam EER - 1,919 — 275 2,194
Non-executive directors FH{TESE
Ramon S. Ang BRI — — — — —
Carlos Antonio M. Berba HER - - - — -
Thelmo Luis O. CunananJr.  Thelmo Luis O. Cunanan Jr. — — — — —
Taro Matsunaga AR5 - - - - -
Benjamin P. Defensor Jr. 124 — — — — —
Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle) lRE% - - — - -
Teruyuki Daino REFRE — — - - —
Shobu Nishitani AARE - - - — -
Ricky Y.T. Cheung Rl — — — — —
Motoyasu Ishihara RREE - - — - -
Keisuke Nishimura FREN - - - - -
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
David K.P Li THE = = = = =
W.S.Ng RiEH — — — - —
Carmelo L. Santiago i3S - — - - -
Adrian M. K. Li ZRE - - - - -
— 1,919 — 275 2,194
BBE NG BEAR A A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (Br B BRI - IRBEERTE)
8 Directors’ remuneration (Continued) 8 E=EMew
2010
—2-%F
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees inkind honuses contributions Total
e e RRE migTEa RINEHR A%
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T
Executive director HITEE
Peter K.Y. Tam ERR . 1,969 — 115 2,084

Non-executive directors  F#TES

Ramon S. Ang L3598 — — — _ _
Carlos Antonio M. Berba SEE — — _ _ _
Thelmo Luis O. CunananJr.  Thelmo Luis 0. Cunanan Jr. — — — — —

Taro Matsunaga KK - - - - -
Benjamin P. Defensor Jr. gex - - — - -
Chan Wen Mee, May (Michelle) [REF — — - - —
Teruyuki Daino RERE - - — - -
Shobu Nishitani EAER — - - - -
Ricky Y. T. Cheung R — - - - -
Motoyasu Ishihara ARER — — - - —
Keisuke Nishimura AREN — - — - -

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors
David K.P. Li TEE — — — _ _
W.S.Ng R — — — — _
Carmelo L. Santiago T — — — — _
Adrian M. K. Li ZRB — — — _ _

— 1,969 — 15 2,084

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 BHMessZAR
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2010: one) is BERBhRAER  —H(CZE—FF
director whose emoluments are included in note 8. The aggregate of —H)BEE (EMS DM SR - K
the emoluments in respect of the remaining four (2010: four) individuals #$UE (CE—ZTF - @A) MemacA
are as follows: BrzMeBENT -
2011 2010
—E2——fF —E-FF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Salaries and other emoluments e MoERL 5,607 6,260
Retirement scheme contributions RIS 757 338
6,364 6,598
The emoluments of the four (2010: four) individuals with the highest e (CE2E—ZF AR Meszac A8
emoluments are within the following bands: ZBEoT
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
ABHAH ANBEE
$1,000,001 to $1,500,000 1,000,001t £ 1,500,0007T 2 1
$1,500,001 to $2,000,000 1,500,0017T 2 2,000,0007T 2 2
$2,000,001 to $2,500,000 2,000,0017t £2,500,0007T — 1

10 LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS 10 AAFESIBHAEMEEIR
OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of the ARG BEARGGEEERESRE
Company includes a profit of $13,472,000 (2010: loss of $554,398,000) B 13,472,000 (ZZE—FF : FHiE
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company 554,398,0007T) B & AZN 1 & B 7% $ 2%
(note 26(a)). (M 5E26(a)) °

BBE NG BEAR A A
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11

12
(a)

BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 HthZEKE
Tax effects relating to each component of other Htt 2R BREHFINBESE
comprehensive income
2011 2010
=F——F —TTF
Before- Before-
tax Tax Net-of-tax tax Tax  Net-of-tax
amount effect amount amount effect amount
BB RIS PEFE RBRIZSE KisE REME KRGS E
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Fr Fr T T T
(note 25(a)) (note 25(a))
(Kt&E25(a)) (M 5525(a))
Exchange differences ERER
on translation of:
— financial statements — BREBINTB AR
of subsidiaries MBmRMES
outside Hong Kong IER =5 (31,863) — (31,863) (17,088) — (17,088)
— monetary items that ~ — HREAKEER
form part of B AR
the net investment in ZIREMEL
subsidiaries outside BEMES
Hong Kong ZIERZT 17,973 — 17,973 12,577 — 12,577
(13,890) — (13,890) (4,511) — (4,511)
Actuarial gains and losses & # 1@ F:E K5 &
of defined benefit ZREERF R EE
retirement plan (P 3E24(0)(vi))
(note 24(a)(vi)) (11,818) 95 (11,723) 445 43 488
Other comprehensive Hip 2 a
income (25,708) 95 (25,613) (4,066) 43 (4,023)
Loss per share 12 BERER
Basic loss per share (a9 BREXEE
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable BREREBIRBANGEREE AR
to equity shareholders of the Company of $53,464,000 (2010: 15518 ££53,464,0000 (— T —Z 4
$736,984,000) and on 373,570,560 (2010: 373,570,560) ordinary shares, 736,984,0007T) R AFERND EITZ
being the number of ordinary shares in issue throughout the year. 373,570,560 TR\ (T —FF
373,570,5600% & i AR) 5T & -
Diluted loss per share (b) #BBEBRER

(b)

The diluted loss per share is not presented as the Company does not
have dilutive potential ordinary shares for both years presented.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | Bf#&3RERMIE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEERN  IRBEHE
13 Fixed assets 13 EBEEEE
(@ The Group (a) *&£m
Property, plant and equipment Interests in
W% BERRR leasehold land
Land and Machinery, held for own
buildings equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor Construction Investment operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles in progress Sub-total properties leases fixed assets
ARERET
BRL# BE 2k HAmSEN
REE GRRER 1] HRIE Chl RENE BETHER BiEEEE
$000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000 $'000
R R R T T T 1 R
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 RZE-55-F-8 972,054 1,631,229 16,318 145 2,625,746 121,304 119,642 2,366,732
Exchange adjustments 3 14,140 23913 408 5 38,466 = 1,679 40,145
Additions RE 1,957 3,618 469 2,033 8,077 78 - 8,155
Transfer from construction aRanRIR
n progress 650 1,185 - (1,835) - - - -
Disposals e - (4,514) (612) - (5,126) - - (5,126)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-SFt-A=1-H 988,801 1,661,431 16,583 348 2,667,163 121422 121,31 2,909,906

Accumulated amortisation, ZHBE FERAESS
depreciation and impairment

losses:
At 1 January 2010 RZE-55-F-8 531,621 1132377 15,325 9% 1,679,425 36,259 63,850 1,779,534
Exchange adjustments ERFE 12,950 22,308 408 9 35,675 - 731 36,406
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) ERE (e 12,646 29,772 3% - 02,804 2219 1877 16,960
Impairment losses (note 5) FEEE (HED) 280,085 414,565 1,049 213 695,942 - - 695,942
Reversal of impaiment losses (note 5) BB BEE (i5) - — — - — - (41,838) (41,839)
Written back on disposals HERE - (4,497) (612) - (5,109) - - (5,109)
At31December 00 RCF-RETCAS-R SR AMSS S8 MR MBIy RBER MEN 2518%
Net book value: BEFE:
At 31 December 2010 RZE-SF+-A=1-A 151,493 66,906 2 — 218,426 82,884 96,701 398,011
Cost: A
At 1 January 2011 RZE-—E-F-H 988,301 1,661,431 16,583 348 2,667,163 121,422 121,321 2,909,906
Exchange adjustments 35 20,893 35,264 581 17 56,755 - 2,480 59,235
Additions RE 635 8,320 85 809 9,849 133 - 9,982
Transfer from construction in progress EBRAEETR - 803 - (803) - - - -
Disposals LE (775) (10,995) (403) - (12,173) - (1,247) (13,420)
MmN RSECCEESATEOR | MOOSH LMES M6 W amsw Imss ws 29650
Accumulated amortisation, ZitBE NERAESR:

depreciation and impairment

losses:
At 1 January 2011 RZE-—%-F-8 837,308 1,594,525 16,556 348 2,448,737 38,538 24,620 2,511,895
Exchange adjustments EXEE 20,893 35,264 581 17 56,755 - 7% 57,551
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) ERE (e 4,585 5,130 32 - 9,747 2,879 4,473 17,099
Impairment losses (note 5) HEEE (KD - 1,625 - 6 1,631 - - 1,631
Written back on disposals HERE (775) (10,538) (403) - (11,716) - (428) (12,144)
M  HCERTCATTOR | BON NMON 676 1 288 M4 w1 257609
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 Decermber 2011 RB-——51-f=t-A 147,543 68,817 80 - 216,440 80,138 93,093 389,671

BBE NG BEAR A A
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBBETRIN - DB E)
13 Fixed assets (Continued) 13 BEESEE®
(b) The Company (b) Z&AF
Interests in
Property, plant and equipment leasehold
0% BERRR land held
Land and Machinery, for own
buildings equipment, use under
held for furniture Motor operating Total
own use and fixtures vehicles Sub-total leases fixed assets
ERERET
BRALH BB RE BAMEEN
REE BRRER EH A HEI#EER AHETEE
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $000
T T T T T T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 RZE-%%-A—-H 493,893 957,99 4717 1,456,606 74,134 1,530,740
Additions AE 1,900 3,644 105 5,649 — 5,649
Disposals e — (3.238) — (3.238) - (3.238)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-5F+-F=1-H 495,793 958,402 4822 1,459,017 74,134 1,533,151

Accumulated amortisation, R E#  FERREFE
depreciation and impairment

losses:
At 1 January 2010 RZE-2%-A—-A 218,032 611,503 4644 834,179 28,426 862,605
Charge for the year EREY 7,688 20,791 45 28,524 1,558 30,082
Impairment losses for the year ~ FRREEE 174,000 262,579 106 436,685 - 436,685
Reversal of impairment losses ~ HEFEER - - — — (19,518) (19,518)
Written back on disposals HEED - (3.228) - (3.228) — (3.228)
At3December200 R-F-FETSAST-R O ¥OI00 @e A% 29160 10466 130662
Net hook value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 R-E-FE+-F=t+-H 96,073 66,757 27 162,857 63,668 226,525
Cost: BA:
At 1 January 2011 RZE-——%-A—-H 495,793 958,402 4,822 1,459,017 74,134 1,533,151
Additions NE 535 7,073 85 7,693 - 7,693
Disposals e — (7,289) - (7,289) - (7.289)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-——F+-F=t+-8 496,328 958,186 4,907 1,459,421 74,134 1,533,555

Accumulated amortisation, R E#  FERREFE
depreciation and impairment

losses:
At 1 January 2011 RZE-—%-A—-A 399,720 891,645 4,795 1,296,160 10,466 1,306,626
Charge for the year FRFY 2,974 5,049 32 8,055 2,247 10,302
Written back on disposals HEED - (7,193) - (7,193) - (7,193)
lit 3J [lecgmtlergw o ﬁ@;?ﬁ*rﬁf;)ﬂifr q 402,694 889,501 4,827 1,297,022 12,713 1,309,735
Net hook value: REFE:
At 31 December 2011 R-B——&+-F=t+-8 93,634 68,685 80 162,399 61,421 223,820

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
13 Fixed assets (Continued) 13 EBEEEE®
(c) The analysis of net book value of propertiesis as (c) THEEFEZIFAOT :
follows:
The Group The Company
AEM EAH
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF —E——F —ZE-ETF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Tt T Tt
Medium term leases REIFRE T
— in Hong Kong — BB 289,102 298,045 155,055 159,741
— outside Hong Kong — BB 31,672 33,033 — —
320,774 331,078 155,055 159,741
Representing: DT -
Land and buildings held BRALHEEE
for own use 147,543 151,493 93,634 96,073
Investment properties wEYE 80,138 82,884 — —
Interests in leasehold land rREMEETEA
held for own use mEEMHEE
under operating leases THb iR 93,093 96,701 61,421 63,668
320,774 331,078 155,055 159,741
(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases (d KEHETZBEEEE
The Group leases out investment properties which are located at Nos. AEERBLEEHEBURESLPHKRE
9-11 Shing Wan Road, Tai Wai, Shatin, Hong Kong, and certain items of FGERR9-115% 2 1 B W3 R R L fE R BIAY
property, plant and equipment in the PRC (see note 29(a)(iv)) under Y - HEE R (R MEE29(a)(iv) B
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of two to e MOFH—RR-IE=F  EBER
three years, with an option to renew each lease upon expiry at which FIBEBETEY  ERNBETENME
time all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases includes contingent B - BEELABTIeEEIAES -
rentals.
The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under non- AN BIRR A AT s A = 10 & i FE U 2 R
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows: REEFIENAT ¢
2011 2010
—F——F —ETF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Investment properties REWE
Within 1 year —F R 2,477 5,210
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEEAFAN 676 1,979
3,153 7,189
Property, plant and equipment Y WEREE
Within 1 year —F R 3,207 2,984
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEBEREAFERN — 2,984
3,207 5,968
BBE NG BEAR A A

—E——FFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)

13 Fixed assets (Continued) 13 BEEEE®

(e) The fair value of the investment properties at 31 December 2011is  (€) #EYWER - ET——F+-_A=+—HZ
$147,940,000 (2010: $120,420,000), which is valued on market value 5 EE 5147,940,00070 (ZF —Z4F
basis assuming sale with existing tenancies by using the investment 120,420,0007T) * AR MEAZERIELRT
method and otherwise with vacant possession by using the sales e URMABBLHHEMRBMRATE
comparison approach. The valuation was carried out by an independent EEITHE  AEREBRALEMRRM
firm of surveyors, LCH (Asia-Pacific) Surveyors Limited, who have among RAMEELBAEITHE - HETIRBEL
their staff Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent BISEMITABE /TR SR BR A FHEIT - &
experience in the location and category of property being valued. BEBREEBNEMBENEEESE 1

Pt EEEMNLR KIER BB ILR

14 Intangible assets 14 EEEE
The Group The Company
S 1] |
Trademarks ~ Club debentures Total Trademarks ~ Club debentures Totgl
HE EfiRER &it HE efiEES fi
$'000 §000 §000 §000 §000 $000
i I r T I r
Cost: B
At 1 January 2010 RZE-T5-f-A 39,116 6,258 45,374 39,116 5,031 44147
Exchange adjustments EifE - 43 13 - - -
At 31 December 2010 RZE-FETZA=1-H 39,116 6,301 15417 39,116 5,031 14,147

Accumulated amortisation and 2 BHERHEEE:
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2010 R-E-Z5-f-A 27,650 602 28,252 27,650 - 27,650
Exchange adjustments X - 2 ” - - -
Impairment losses (note 5) HESE (HD) 11,466 - 11,466 11,466 - 11,466
AM3iDecemoer a0t  RSE-RETCAST-R . wMe 88 Wy wie - 3,18
Net book value: RERE

At 31 December 2010 RZE-FETZR=1-H - 5,678 5,678 - 5,031 5,031
Cost: HA

At 1 January 2011 RZE-——%-f-H 39,116 6,301 45,417 39,116 5,031 4147
Exchange adjustments EifE - 62 62 - - -
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—5TZA=+-H 39,116 6,363 45,479 39,116 5,031 44,147

Accumulated amortisation and 2 BHERHEEE:
impairment losses:

At 1 January 2011 RZ5——%-F-A 39,116 623 39,739 39,116 - 39,116
Exchange adjustments EiBE - 31 31 - - -
MsiDecemoeratt  RSE-CETSASTR WME e a0 e - ___ 1
Net book value: REFE:

At 31 December 2011 RZE——E+Zf=1-H - 5709 5,709 - 5,031 5,031
Trademarks related to products sold in the mainland China. In 2010, an EELAEENFPEAERENER - R
impairment loss of $11,466,000 was made for trademarks by both the TE—ZF . ARARAEBREHR
Company and the Group, further details are set out in note 5. 11,466,000 K IR RLEE B - 15T

ARBIEES ©

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
15 Investments in subsidiaries 15 MEBLFER
The Company
KAF
2011 2010
= i ——
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Unlisted investments, at cost JE ETRRD (RAAN) 603,249 603,249
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE U BT B A B BR 18 789,855 790,781
1,393,104 1,394,030
Less: Impairment losses B BB (776,567) (773,518)
616,537 620,512

Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment terms. The entire balance is expected to be
recovered after more than one year.

As detailed in note 5, impairment losses were recognised during the
year in respect of the non-current assets associated with the Group's
mainland China operations as a result of a decline in the recoverable
amount of these assets below their carrying amount. Consequently,
the directors concluded that there was further impairment of the
Company's investment in the subsidiaries established in the PRC and
an additional impairment loss of $3,049,000 (2010: $122,195,000) was
recognised during the year.

The following list contains the particulars of all the subsidiaries of the

company:

Name of company

NAREH

Place of
incorporation/
operation
ML
7 i B

Issued share
capital/registered
capital
BRITRE
HEMER

JE YT 8~ R AR IR R - B8
BREEERY - AHEMERNBE—F
gUrmE -

RIBMIGESFIRIAN - RN EAKEAHE
RIEZEBHEBNIEREEEZ TR D S5
THMERZEEENREE  BERE
WAFEEMER - At - EEREARAR
FEIRZ B AR AR EE —FRIE
i i 18 &5 #8.3,049,0007T (= —Z F :
122,195,0007T) A AR F EHERR °

TREJARBMEHBARIEAR :

Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
company Subsidiary
FREREEDL

AT Bt 2 =]

Principal
activity

TEXK

Best Investments
International Inc.

Hongkong Brewery
Limited (i)

British Virgin Islands

REBRELES

Hong Kong

FB

50,000
ordinary shares
of US$1 each
50,000/%
BREMBEI1ET
2 EmAR

60,000,000
preference shares
of US$1 each
60,000,000/
BREETET
ZEER

100

ordinary shares
of $1 each
1008%
BREME1T
2 g

100% — Investment

holding
REE R

100% —

100% — Dormant

BN R A
—E——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15 15 MELRER®

Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Proportion of

Place of Issued share ownership
incorporation/ capital/registered interest held by Principal
Name of company operation capital Ccompany Subsidiary activity
HEMRL BRITRE FiREB DL
RE BB AR B HEME R ARAT Bt 8 x =] FEEK
Ravelin Limited Hong Kong 10,000,000 100% — Property
ordinary shares holding
of $1 each
BB 10,000,0000% REYE
BREmET
2 B

San Miguel (Guangdong) Hong Kong 18,000 92.989% — Investment

Limited class "A” shares holding
of US$500 each

6 18,000/% ®E R
F R EE500% T
Z (AR

1,000 100% —
class “B” shares
of $1 each
1,0000%
FREEIT
2 (B)i%
Guangzhou San Miguel PRC Registered — 70% Distribution
Brewery Company capital: of beer
Limited (note (ii)) US$36,507,000 )
BN A DR A R AT HE A EAR H & 1R
(W EE (i) 36,507,005 7
San Miguel Shunde Holdings Hong Kong 200,000 92% — Investment
Limited ordinary shares holding
of $10 each

BE 200,000/% BEER
HRMEEI0T
2 EmAR

San Miguel (Guangdong) PRC Registered — 100% Manufacture
Brewery Company capital: and sale
Limited (note (iii)) US$39,933,000 of beer

A7 (ER) BEFR A A o AR L
(B3 = Gii) 39,933,000% 7T K2 85 65 18R

Notes: Pﬁgf .

0] Hongkong Brewery Limited (“HKBL") was remained dormant since (i) BRZE——F=A+N\BREBK

incorporation except that it established a jointly controlled entity, namely
Global Brews Hong Kong Limited in Hong Kong on 18 March 2011 with
an authorised share capital of $10,000 divided into 1,000 shares at $10
each. HKBL is committed to hold a 50% equity interest in this entity. As
at the date of the approval of these financial statements, the jointly
controlled entity has not commenced its operations yet.

(ii) GSMB is an equity joint venture formed between the Company’s
subsidiary, San Miguel (Guangdong) Limited, and Guangzhou Brewery.
According to the joint venture agreement, GSMB has an operating period
of 30 years expiring on 29 November 2020.

(iii)

50 years expiring on 4 August 2042.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2011

SMGB is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise with an operating period of

(i)

(iii)

3 7 —F44 AGlobal Brews Hong Kong
Limited &Yk 1% &I & 82 (FULE RA
#310,0007T + £51,0008% & A& E {E107T
f& 5 48 5%) 50 © Hongkong Brewery
Limited ([HKBLI) B & B S2 BAZE - —
BEREAKRIRIKEE - HKBL I3 B2 B8
DZETRE - HERMBREI AL
2B mEREHERERRFREZE
% o

BMENGBER AR TIANAGZH
BRRAENE (BER) BRABEEM
BRmK L2 EEAGERR - RES
BLEWH  RRARZKEEHA=T
F RZZEZEF+—A=ThBE
o

£ (KR WEER AT BRI AR
BO% ABMEMTTE R =T
m=F )\ A AR -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

16

Other tangible assets 16

Other tangible assets represent returnable bottles and crates used by
the Group’s operations in the mainland China.

BAES AR M AL

(FrmEERIN - BBERE)

HEthARE

Hib A EED RASBENPEEBEHME
Rz BREZ QB8R BHENEE -

The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—2——F —TTF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
Cost: RN
At 1 January w—A—H 97,277 94,879
Exchange adjustments PE 5 3 & 4,777 3,281
Additions RE 5,839 6,935
Disposals & (8,078) (7,818)
At31December ] Wt=A=+—-8 99.815 - 91,277
Accumulated amortisation EFfEERBEER
and impairment losses:
At 1 January n—A—H 97,277 76,314
Exchange adjustments ME 5 B 4,777 3,086
Charge for the year (note 6(c)) FARZ (FFFE6(C)) 823 5,905
Impairment losses (note 5) BB EE (B 5E5) 3,866 20,218
Reversal of impairment losses (note 5) BB R B (M 5ES) — (1,505)
Written back on disposals HERD (6,928) (6,741)
At31December ] Rt=A=+—-H 99.815 91,2717
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H — —

The majority of bottled beer sold in the mainland China is under a
returnable bottles arrangement. The bottles and crates are expected
to have useful lives of two to three years and seven years respectively.

RERD R B H & 2 i & (0] 48
ZhE - MRBREZAERFHI R AME
=FktEFo

BN R A
—E——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
17 Inventories 17 &R
The Group The Company
KEM PN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—F——-F —ZT-TF =B——F _—T-ITF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Fr Fr Tt
Products in hand REERNMERR
and in process 40,027 27,565 28,493 22,058
Materials and supplies Wik X i pE 25,139 22,207 15,841 12,125
65,166 49,772 44,334 34,183
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an expense is EHRARI 2 FESBHNAT
as follows:
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E2——fF —T-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Ft
Carrying amount of inventories sold HEFTEREEAE 382,389 328,677
Write down of inventories 7 & Mom 1,134 1,118
Total (note 6(c)) 478 (fEE6(c) 383,523 329,795
18 Trade and other receivables 18 EWRESRHMIRER
The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E2——F T -TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Ft
Trade receivables JEWE HER1E 85,553 69,929
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 18(b)) B RIBEREE (FFEE18(b) (11,216) (11,365)
74,337 58,564
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments HEib R - ke MFENFIA 14,266 12,092
88,603 70,656

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
18 Trade and other receivables (continued) 18 BHRESREMIER @
The Company
b /N
2011 2010
= i —E-TF
$'000 $'000
Fx Ft
Trade receivables B E 5 RE 67,433 55,081
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (note 18(b)) B REBREME (K1EE18(b) (1,057) (1,677)
66,376 53,404
Other debtors, deposits and prepayments EaEUER - 12 RTENKIB 9,186 6,148
75,562 59,552

The amount of the Group’s and the Company’s deposits and
prepayments expected to be recovered or recognised as expenses after
more than one year is $1,421,000 (2010: $1,106,000) and $681,000 (2010:
$642,000) respectively. All of the other trade receivables, other debtors,
deposits and prepayments are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses within one year.

The Group and the Company hold the following collateral over trade
receivables at the end of the reporting period.

REBRAQBTEFZR—FEAKRE
BERATHNZERENRESES A
1,421,0007¢ (ZZ—Z4F : 1,106,0007T)
}681,0007T (ZZ—Z4F : 642,0007T) °
FrAEEM I E 5 BRTE K E i R ULER - 1%
& NI FRIETER E—F R R Uk E A
B -

REBERARREREE AL EKE S IRA
FEATEMS

The Group The Company
TEH b N

2011 2010 2011 2010
—EB-——F —T-FF CZ—EB--—F —T-FF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Fr T Fr T
Buildings LIES 22,425 13,438 11,730 10,030
Cash deposits ReFR 11,651 10,607 1,050 872
Bank guarantees RITHELR 900 500 900

Cash deposits disclosed above and note 18(b) are included in the
Group's and the Company’s other creditors and accrued charges
expected to be settled after more than one year, as disclosed in
note 22.

The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the trade
receivables is mitigated by the collateral in the amounts indicated above.
The value of the building collateral represents the estimated market
value of the buildings as at 31 December 2011.

PA_E R RE18(D) IR IR & 75 SR 51 A A
SERARBEAZR —F RO EM
JETRRIR - HOMRE22HEE -

AEERA LRI T K H S
RS EAIR o EIFYEBERE DR
—E——Ft-A=t-AmmE-

BN R A
—E——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
18 Trade and other receivables (Continued) 18 BERRSRHEMIER @
(@) Ageing analysis (@) HEREDH
The ageing of trade receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debts) at FEUE 5 8RTE (M REREE) REER
the end of the reporting period is as follows: ZARERIAT ¢
The Group The Company
TEE AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2E-——-F —Z=-FF ZZEB--F —ZT-FF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
Current HREIHER 56,054 46,701 53,197 44,109
Less than 1 month past due BHAR DR —EA 11,128 8,047 10,936 7,820
1 to 3 months past due BEHBA—ZEZ=EA 4,147 1,149 1,732 1,013
More than 3 months BHAR R =1EA
but less than 12 months E—FR
past due 849 536 511 462
More than 12 months past due BHIH Z R —F 2,159 2,131 — —
74,337 58,564 66,376 53,404
The Group's credit policy is set out in note 27(a). RNEBEZEEBRERME27(@) °
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) EUWESREZBEESE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using ERAEWE ZRIENRIEE B S BB ER
an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of FO8E - BRIEARE EE MR EGR BAIRE
the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off K)o FEULIER T - BIEBESEEIER
against trade receivables directly (see note 1()(i)). B S ERIER M (FHEE10)0) -
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year is FARERBENESHOT -
as follows:
The Group The Company
KEE KAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E2E-——-F —Z-FF Z—EB--F —ZT-FF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt Fr Tt
At 1 January wn—A—H 11,365 9,936 1,677 486
Exchange adjustments PE 5 ZA % 481 328 — —
Impairment loss recognised HEEIERER 966 1,774 864 1,767
Impairment loss written back  Ei{EEE#E @ (1,327) (256) (1,215) (256)
Uncollectible amounts pack S RN Bt Bl
written off (269) (417) (269) (320)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H1 11,216 11,365 1,057 1,677

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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B B R AR Y R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBEETIN  ARBEHE)
18 Trade and other receivables (continued) 18 BHRESREMIER @
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued) (b) EUWEBREZBERERE (®
At 31 December 2011, the Group’s and the Company’s trade receivables RZE—FF+ZA=+—0  £&EBK
of $17,233,000 (2010: $15,328,000) and $2,694,000 (2010: $2,749,000) A aE i EWE 5 ERIBE A+ 17,233,0007T
respectively were individually determined to be impaired. The (ZZ—=4 : 15,328,0007T) }2,694,000
individually impaired receivables were balances in disputes with T (ZB—F4 1 2,749,0007T) AR HEE
customers or related to customers that were in financial difficulties BE o ERIHREBEERNERER P
and management assessed that only a portion of the receivables is ERESZEFPY R EBERE - MEER
expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for EEE - RESMHRIER AU E - RS
doubtful debts of $11,216,000 (2010: $11,365,000) and $1,057,000 (2010: ERAQE D FI1E1,216,0000T (ZZE—F
$1,677,000) were recognised by the Group and the Company F 1 11,365,0007T) }&1,057,0007C (ZZF —
respectively. The Group and the Company hold the following collateral T4 ¢ 1,677,00070) B RIBERE R - A&
over these balances: B RAR RGN EEBGRE RSB IR
IR
The Group The Company
KEE AAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-ETF —E——fF —E-ETF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tt T Tt
Buildings ES 10,695 — — —
Cash deposits RETFEH 1,593 1,760 — —
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) REEBREEEZEKESKRE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually REEREERE ZEWE 5RIBRE W
nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows: ™~
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-F —E——fF —E-FF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx T T Tt
Neither past due nor impaired REFILFERE 92,7615 45770 FRER 52,204 = 43,806
Less than 1 month past due BERDR—EA 11,109 7,785 10,915 7,742
1 to 3 months past due BEHAA—Z=EA 4,033 832 1,620 767
More than 3 months BEAAE=EA
but less than 12 months E2—FNRN
past due 338 91 — 17
More than 12 months past due #®HHAZKR+ @A 79 123 — —
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, 15,589 881 = 12,535 = 8526
68,320 54,601 64,739 52,332

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide
range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of
independent customers that have a good track record with the Group.
Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group and the Company do not hold
collateral over these balances.

REER AMER B 2 BRE SRR - B4
AL B RERCERNES - FTIATE
B e

BRENMERBEZREBESRRESEH
RIFEFCENEFNEF AR - BAEL
B BREGBUBSANNE  EIEE
RERARELFIRELEE - RRMR
RELERFIAR 2 HUKRE - REERA
RAEHA B E R GE BT  ©

BN R A
—E——FFR
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BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, 19 BKSEFRZELAT - ARHEE
fellow subsidiaries and related companies LFIRREAFIREA
Amounts due from/(to) holding companies, fellow subsidiaries and BrTIYIB S FIABIRE GRS - '
related companies are unsecured, interest-free and do not have fixed Wk ERZER AR - RRMB AR REE
repayment terms except for the following trade-related amounts which NAEBRIBEHEER  2EREETEEER
are repayable under normal trade terms: B

The Group The Company
rEH AATF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—BE——F -—ZT-TF ZE—-—F _—ZT-TF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr Fr Tt
Amounts due from holding FEYIE R A &)
companies and fellow AGER i) SNGIE
subsidiaries 12,071 9,136 12,071 8,910
Amounts due to holding FERTERR A A
companies and fellow MERM B AT RS
subsidiaries (10,229) (8,366) (9,419) (8,341)
Amount due to related FEfTRAE A RIBRIE
companies (2,324) (2,396) (172) (268)
The trade-related balances are not past due as at 31 December 2011 HESHRB ETR T ——FR-F—
and 2010. TEFT_A=+—RAWRIE -
Related companies included a non-controlling shareholder and FE LR B IEIEER R R R E SRR A
companies whose ultimate holding company has a significant influence AYUAREENARGBEATENAT] -
over the Group and the Company.
Pledged deposits, bank deposits and cash and 20 Ei#f#%FH RTEH HeRE
cash equivalents FAR&RFH
Pledged deposits (a) EHRER

(a)

At 31 December 2011, the Group had deposits of $198,000,000 (2010:
$60,000,000) pledged to secure the Group's banking facilities, the details
of which are set out in note 21. Out of these, $198,000,000 (2010:
$11,000,000) was held by the Company.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
Annual Report 2011
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)

20 Pledged deposits, bank deposits and cashand 20 E#ER - - BITER ' ReRE

cash equivalents (continued) RRLEB @)
(b) Bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents (b) #£7EX Be¢RERHESLEEE
comprise: IE -
The Group The Company
TEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—2——fF —ZT-ZTF —B——F Z—T-ITF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr FIiT Fr Fx
Bank deposits within GFHEEIHA A
three months of maturity = AR AMHIRITFER
when placed 12,371 163,274 895 22
Cash at bank and in hand RITHEERRE 33,215 57,282 15,448 33,956

Cash and cash equivalents RAE BRI K
in the consolidated statement  R&GAEBRE&REXRF

of financial position MR RERRS

and consolidated cash flow HH

statement 45,586 220,556 16,343 33,978
Bank deposits with more than 77 i 2| EA B 838

three months of maturity —EAMRITER

when placed — 5,876 — —

45,586 226,432 16,343 33,978

BN R A
—E——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20

(c)

BAES AR M AT

(FrmEHERIN -

BIREEHE)

Pledged deposits, bank deposits and cashand 20 E#HEFR RITER ' HERE
cash equivalents (continued) RRLEB &)
Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash used in (c) KREAFEEKEER REREH
operations: FEIR -
2011 2010
—E——fF —T-TF
Note $'000 $'000
[ih=a T Tt
Loss before taxation bR %R ES 1B (69,027) (782,509)
Adjustments for: BTH|FEELFE
Amortisation of land lease premium & 3 IE ~ # 8 6(c) 4,473 1,877
Amortisation of other tangible assets — E b B & & 2 # 6(c) 823 5,905
Depreciation of property, ME - EERRENE
plant and equipment 6(C) 9,747 42,804
Depreciation of investment properties & WE T E 6(C) 2,879 2,279
Impairment losses of SEREBEECRERE
non-current assets 5 5,497 684,283
(Reversal of)/provision for JEWE 5 Kk E A BRIA
impairment losses on trade ZRERE (BE) B
and other receivables 6(C) (361) 1,518
Interest expense A B 6(a) 18,551 10,532
Interest income FIEA 4 (3,771) (2,584)
Net gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEEZFAF 4 (761) (87)
Net loss on disposal of HEHMEREE 2 /FEE
other tangible assets 4 447 923
Foreign exchange gains SN 3 7 2R (21,460) (6,182)
Changes in working capital: EEEAAR
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEZ GEM R (15,394) 10,901
(Increase)/decrease in trade FEWE 5 & E M BRIE
and other receivables 2 @Em) md (17,480) 1,907
Decrease/(increase) in net amounts JE U3 A% A B N [R) B B B A B
due from holding companies FRIB 2 FERM A, (8 )
and fellow subsidiaries 11,042 (4,266)
(Decrease)/increase in amounts JERTEE R AR IA
due to related companies 2 G /1 (72) 465
Decrease in non-current assets BIEHERERBEE 2R D
held for sale — 6,997
Increase in trade and other payables — FEfTE 5 & H ith Br 18 2 18 1 5,471 4,455
(Decrease)/increase in retirement RARENEREZ OB /g
benefit liabilities (8,986) 499
Cash used in operations MEEB 7R RN (78,382) (20,283)

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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21

Bank loans

At 31 December 2011, the bank loans were repayable as follows:

21

AR5 SR M et
(B SHEFIN - HRABEHE)
MITHK

R=B——F+=A=+—A  RITHEXK
B T HAR S -

The Group
AEE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-FF
$'000 $'000
T Tt
Within 1 year —FR 313,734 249,206

At 31 December 2011, the bank loans were secured as follows:

A—E——F+ - A=+—HEERNR
ITERWMT :

The Group
rEHE
2011 2010
—F——F —ETF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Bank loans IRITER

— secured — B 313,734 117,524
— unsecured — mH — 131,682
313,734 249,206

At 31 December 2011, all the bank loans were secured by stand-by
letters of credit amounting to $338,000,000 (2010: $120,000,000) issued
by banks and the Group’s fixed deposits of $198,000,000 (2010:
$60,000,000) were pledged against those stand-by letters of credit (note
20(a)). At 31 December 2011, the Group had bank facilities amounting
to $338,000,000 (2010: $120,000,000) which were utilised to the extent
of $313,734,000 (2010: $117,524,000).

All the bank loans are rolled-over every six months to one year (2010:
Six months to one year) and bear interest at rates applicable to the roll-
over period, which ranged from 3.65% to 7.87% during 2011 (2010: 4.32%
to 5.23%).

As at 31 December 2011, one of the banking facilities amounting to
$61,680,000 was subject to the fulfilment of covenants relating to certain
of SMGB's statement of financial position ratios, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were
to breach the covenants the drawn down facility would become payable
on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants. Further details of the Group’s management of liquidity risk
are set out in note 27(b). As at 31 December 2011, none of the covenants
relating to drawn down facility had been breached. The Group's banking
facilities were not subject to any covenants in 2010.

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8 AR
B $R 173 173#338,000,0007T (— T —
T4 1 120,000,00070) W E R EREE
W mEBEAEHASETEHTR
198,000,0007T (==& —=Z 4 : 60,000,000
70) IR (fI3E20(@) - RZT——F+=
B=+—8 ZA&BEZRITEEEAR
338,000,0007F (== —Z4F : 120,000,000
JT) - WEBAEAFH313,734,000T (=
T 1 117,524,0007C) °

FIERITEFUNENEAZ—FRRAE
BCZE—Z2F: XMEAAZE—F)  r R=F
——F ERERERPAERENFEE
3.65%E7.87% (ZFE—FF : 4.32% %
5.23%) ©

RNR-_E——HF+_A=+—H H+
61,680,000 TLIRTTIEERBRIT —LEH
REN (BR) @EAR AR MBS &
ZROHVE  ZENRBEFEN SR
BOEERZEE - NAREERZY  BF
BZEEREANERKEEER - AEETH
EERPERETRY - ARENRSES
B E IR — BB E270) - B
TE——F+-A=+—H AEEVE
ERFIEERY - R-Z—ZTF &K
EEMRTEETEZNEE -

BN R A
—E——FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 Trade and other payables 22 EFRRSREMIER

The Group The Company
rEH VNN
2011 2010 2011 2010
—BE——F -—ZT-TF ZE—-—F _—ZT-TF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt T Tt
Trade payables BB SRE 69,015 53,885 49,984 46,722
Other creditors H b FETERIA

and accrued charges 79,902 96,318 11,679 12,844
148,917 150,203 61,663 59,566

The Group’s and the Company'’s other creditors and accrued charges
included provision for advertising and promotion of $31,176,000 (2010:
$44,376,000) and $4,445,000 (2010: $8,562,000) respectively, and
payables for the purchase of fixed assets of $3,329,000 (2010:
$8,756,000) and $Nil (2010: $Nil) respectively.

The amounts of the Group’s and the Company'’s other creditors and
accrued charges expected to be settled after more than one year are
$11,780,000 (2010: $10,652,000) and $1,093,000 (2010: $916,000)
respectively. All of the other trade and other payables are expected to
be settled within one year.

The ageing of trade payables as at the end of the reporting period is as
follows:

REBREAQBNEMEMRBEOEES
N & EEE D BIA31,176,0000T (ZE—=F
F : 44,376,0007T) }4,445,00070 (—Z & —
T4 ¢ 8,562,0007T) c BEEIFEEEZIE
318 53,329,000 (=& —ZT4F ¢
8,756,0000) KE L (ZE—ZTF : T
JL) °

REBRARRENNER—FEBINHH
H b FEBRIE S B A11,780,0000T (& —
T4 1 10,652,0007T) £.1,093,0007T (= F
—ZF 1 916,0007T) - FTEEMENES
BRI N HAbFER BRIBTERTE—F R »

ENESRENEER ZBREWET ¢

The Group The Company
REE RKAF]

2011 2010 2011 2010

—®8-——& -T-THE =-B_-& _"T-TF

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fr T T T
Due within 1 month FIER DR —EA

or on demand N EREEER 62,142 51,410 45,747 44,582
Due after 1 month FHHA— A%

but within 3 months B=EAR 6,405 2,456 4,237 2,140
Due after 3 months FEHA=[A%R

but within 6 months BREAN 468 — — —

Due over 6 months ZHAH A E A% — 19 = —

69,015 53,885 49,984 46,722

23 Amounts due to subsidiaries 23 EFMHMEBATKRIR

Amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured and interest-free. The
balances included in current liabilities are trade-related, repayable under
normal trade terms and due within one month at the end of the reporting
period. The balances included in non-current liabilities do not have fixed
repayment terms but are not expected to be settled within one year.

FEASH B A RIBRIR A EEA R LB - R
BREANTEAESNIA - ARGEER
& —{EANRE BERZAN - HBRIER
BREANFAETREEEERS - it
THRER—FAXM -
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24
(a)

(i)

Employee retirement benefits

Defined benefit retirement plan

The Group operates a defined benefit retirement plan which covers
20% (2010: 22%) of the Group’s employees. The plan is administered by
an independent trustee, with the assets held separately from those of
the Group. The members’ benefits are determined based on the
employees’ final remuneration and length of service. Contributions to
the plan are made in accordance with the recommendations of an
independent actuary who values the retirement plan at regular intervals.

For the purposes of preparing these financial statements, an
independent actuarial valuation was carried out at 31 December 2011
by the above independent actuary following the methodology set out
in HKAS 19, Employee benefits.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as
follows:

24
(a)

B B R AR Y R

(B SEHRIN - HRAEEE)
EREHEEF
EEBFRMAE

REBBHE20% (ZE—TF : 22%) 2 [E
BRME BB ARG S - 58 T5m —
FBIUERAEE  WEARE 2 EESD
FIE BRIE - B REHTYIRER 2 & & H
& RRBFEHHE - SHEI 2 HRTIRE—
R AEEEN 2 A ER] - B EAER
ARG BIE R -

BEAN - REEEMRIREN BB G ERIZE19
S EREN 2 ER—F——F+_H
=+ —RETEFHE - ARERRETE
K e

R BARKRER Z KB

The Group and the Company

AEEREAT
2011 2010
= i —E-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Present value of funded obligations BERREMIRE 81,324 76,356
Fair value of plan assets FEEECARE (60,349) (58,213)
Retirement benefit liabilities RIKEFNEE 20,975 18,143

A portion of the above liabilities is expected to be settled after more
than one year. However, it is not practicable to segregate this amount
from the amounts payable in the next twelve months, as the retirement
benefit payable to scheme members and future contributions to plan
assets will also depend on staff turnover and future changes in actuarial
assumptions.

Plan assets consist of the following:

Lt E Y B EFERHRBE —FRIN -
AT - mRRIRRE NS BIAK B 2 FERTR
KB EE 2 RREHRBERFIRERR
ZARRES - Fit NEE K% EREER
Kt —BAZENRIEBEDFRE -

AEEERE

The Group and the Company

AEEREKADT

2011 2010
= i ——
$'000 $'000
F Fx
Mutual fund HAHES 57,814 56,699
Cash Re 2,535 1,514
60,349 58,213

EBENEERBERA T

—E——FFH




(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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(a)
(i)

(iv)

Employee retirement benefits (continued) 24
Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a)
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations: (ii)

Ui R

(ERERRIN  BIRBEEE)

EREBKEERN @

ERBEARAKETE ()
THEERNAENREZS

The Group and the Company

AEBMEARAT
2011 2010
—E——F ZT—TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fir
At 1 January Hn—A—H 76,356 76,375
Benefits paid by the plan eIz BRI (10,014) (6,726)
Current service cost IR 55 R 745 X AR 5,174 5,394
Interest cost FE A 2,122 1,897
Actuarial losses/(gains) BEEE(BF) 7,686 (584)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 81,324 76,356

Movements in plan assets: vy  FrEIEEZEZH
The Group and the Company

AEBMEARAT
2011 2010
—F——F —T-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Ft
At 1 January n—HA—H 58,213 58,286
Contributions paid to the plan by the employer &7+ 2 5% 13,326 3,559
Benefits paid by the plan FrEIZ 2@ (10,014) (6,726)
Actuarial expected return on plan assets FEIEECRERAER 2,956 3,233
Actuarial losses BEES (4,132) (139)
At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 60,349 58,213

The Group and the Company had a contribution payable of $586,000

(2010: $287,000) as at 31 December 2011.

The Group expects to pay $7,201,000 (2010: $8,352,000) in contributions
to the defined benefit retirement plan in the following year.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2011

RZFE——F+ZA=1+—H 75EHK
AR B 3K 5586,0007T (ZF —F
% : 287,0007T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
Employee retirement benefits (continued) 24
Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a)

(a)
v)

(vi)

(vii)

BAES AR M AL

(B RERTRI BB E)
EREHEERN &
EFEEFRMKE B ()

Expense recognised in the consolidated income statement is as follows:  (v)

RiFE WS RER ZFWT ¢

2011 2010
= —F-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr Tt
Current service cost IR 55 AR 75 A AR 5,174 5,394
Interest cost F B AR 2,122 1,897
Actuarial expected return on plan assets FHEIE E 2 FEE TaHA B 3R (2,956) (3,233)
Expense charged to consolidated G ERERZAX
income statement (note 6(b)) (M]‘Ié ) 4,340 4,058
The expense is recognised in the following line BEERZ IR T
items in the consolidated income statement: REWERANZIEHE PH#ER
— Cost of sales — HEMRA 420 385
— Selling and distribution expenses — HERDERAX 2,376 2,114
— Administrative expenses — THAX 1,544 1,559
4,340 4,058
Actual return on plan assets — (loss)/gains EEECERER
— (B1#8) /&F (1,176) 3,094
The cumulative amount of actuarial gains and losses recognised directly  (vi)  EBEENERERZ EREMNEKTERBE
in equity: BB
2011 2010
—F——F —ETF
$'000 $'000
Fr Fit
At 1 January R—A—H (36,090) (36,535)
Amount recognised during the year (note 11) FREREEE (FTEE1) (11,818) 445
At 31 December ®R+=—A=+—8” (47,908) (36,090)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2011 are  (vii)

as follows:

RIB——F+—"A=+—0 " FRAZ

TERERRWT :

The Group and the Company

AEBREARAT
2011 2010

e —TTF
Discount rate AhIR X 1.50% 2.90%
Expected rate of return on plan assets FrEEE 2 TEHRERE 5.00% 5.00%
Future salary increases RIREF @ 2L 2.50% 2.50%
The expected rate of return on plan assets is based on the portfolio as D#EIJQE_Z%EHH@#ETTJ&E” BEE R
awhole and not on the sum of the returns on individual asset categories. EZRELERTE - WEETHE -
The return is based exclusively on historical returns, without
adjustments.

BBE NG BEAR A A

—E——FFH
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BAES AR M AT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
24 Employee retirement benefits (continued) 24 EREHEEF ®
(a) Defined benefit retirement plan (Continued) (a) TEFETAERMKEE @
(viiy  The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31 December 2011 are  (vi) R-ZT——F+-A=+—0 KRBz
as follows: (Continued) FEREBROT - (B)
Historical information BEER
The Group and the Company
AEEREAT
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
=®——% —T-TF “TTNF —TT\F -TLLF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tt Fit Fr Fr Fir
Present value of the defined EREFNBE
benefit obligations ZHRE 81,324 76,356 76,375 82,678 62,731
Fair value of plan assets FEEEZANE (60,349) (58,213) (58,286) (44,833) (54,106)
Deficit i 20,975 18,143 18,089 37,845 8,625
Experience adjustments on: A=
2B
— Plan liabilities —iTEIBE (623) 1,135 1,408 3,291 (3,475)
— Plan assets —FTEEE 4,132 139 (9,506) 17,771 (3,728)
(b) Defined contribution retirement plans (b) TEFEMHIERMKETE

@

Staff employed by the Group in Hong Kong not joining the above
defined benefit retirement plan are required to join the Group's
mandatory provident fund plan under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance. The mandatory provident
fund plan is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by an independent corporate trustee. Under the plan, the Group
and its employees are each required to make contributions to
the plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to
the plan vest immediately.

Employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of
pension schemes operated by the PRC government. The Group
is required to contribute 19.00% to 31.35% (2010: 17.75% to
28.45%) of employees’ remuneration to these pension schemes
to fund the benefits. The only obligation for the Group with
respect to these pension schemes is the required contribution
under the central pension scheme. Contributions to these
schemes vest immediately.

0]

(i)

BREFBECRHIME B2 B
f51) - NGB E S &R I AN
A b TE 78 AR N AR K AT B 89 (B
8 AMAREEEGIEATE
BB BRAMRTEERFET—
BERBIOEEXEANE RN E R
HBRARETE - RIBAREE
AEBERERE R BARBIE
HER - BEREERBALN
5% EEAABEARNZRRKT
#320,0007T ° 5+ &I 1 H A READ
FERE o

FEBAREE APBEBFE
BHFRERESFEMNKE - K
SEAH R RBRINSETEIHRE
RERERIRGEES  BIEAR
S41819.00%%31.35% (ZZF—
T 1 17.75% 5 28.45%) o KREEH
FRPRERARSFTENME —EK
BRBERIRRKRESETEIEERS
BRI o ET 21 A FRAD
B -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BRBAHERI - BB E)

25 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 25 MBRKRRMAIIZEERE
position

(@ The Group (@ =X&H

The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the movements
during the year are as follows:

RirE AR KRR EEHIA (BE)
RAEZERITDRFRAZEHOT :

Depreciation ~ Impairment
allowances losses of
inexcess  receivables  Retirement
of the related and henefit
depreciation  inventories liabilities Tax losses Others Total
HERNERE RURERFE
EBfEZEE ZHEEE  BUETGE REgR it @it
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T T T
Deferred tax arising from: ELRERE
A1 January 2010 A-E-25-f-F 78,614 (82) (1,703) (64,147) - 12,68
(Credited)/charged to consolidated  REARERF GEA) /1%
income statement (note 7(a)) (B3E7(a)) (72,307) (3) - 63731 - 8,579)
Credited to equity (note 11) RERPE A () - - (43) - - (43)
At 31 December 2010 RZE-TE+ZR=1-H
and 1 January 2011 k=2-——%-A-H 6,307 (85) (1,746) (416) - 4,060
Charged/(credited) to consolidated  REARERTMR/ GIA)
income statement (note 7(a)) (PiEE710) 2,356 (91) - (2,777) - (512)
Credited to equity (note 11) REgmE A (i) = - (95) - = (95)
At 31 December 2011 RZE-—-E+-A=1-H 8,663 (176) (1,841) (3,193) - 3,453

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items, which pertain to the subsidiaries in the PRC and the Company:

REBR P ERKNE QR LA QAL AR
T3-SR B P 5| BUZ EAE T IR & 22 1 e

.
7V

2011 2010

—E——fF —E-TF

$'000 $'000

Fr Tt

Tax losses I E1E 746,339 672,697
Deductible temporary differences AENEREER 500,993 550,451
1,247,332 1,223,148

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(q), deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the above items as it
is not probable that the relevant entities would generate future taxable
profits against which the above items can be utilised.

RIRFIRA M EE1Q & ST BUR - R REE
HEE MR A BRI BE ST B ANER T &
MEMEME N - MRS E W ARHER LT
BRI EEHRBEE

BN R A
—E——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)

25 Deferred taxation in the statement of financial 25 MBERARMIIZEZERE
position (continued) (%)

(@) The Group (Continued) (@) XE&EB@E)

BERATENERRARERNTIBBESE
ARARAFERER  BRIBFHOT

The unrecognised tax losses relating to the PRC subsidiaries can be
carried forward up to five years from the year in which the loss
originated, and will expire in the following years:

2011 2010

—E——F —E-FF

$'000 $'000

Fr Fx

2011 —E——F — 84,092
2012 —E-CF 16,615 15,829
2013 —E—=fF 7,143 6,805
2014 —E—UF 63,243 60,251
2015 —E—FHF 134,269 120,703
2016 —E-RF 134,032 —
355,302 287,680

IR B AR HE SR A TE B 18 45 391,037,000
T (ZZ—24F : 385,017,0007T) » WHIR
TR T TG EE -

The unrecognised tax losses relating to the Company were $391,037,000
(2010: $385,017,000) and do not expire under current tax legislation.

ZANNE
R BHRR R ERZIELER IR (BE) & &
BZERED RFRAZEBIT :

(b) The Company (b)

The components of deferred tax (assets) and liabilities recognised in
the statement of financial position and the movements during the year
are as follows:

Depreciation
allowances
inexcess  Impairment Retirement
of the related losses of benefit
depreciation receivables liabilities Tax losses Total
RE2HE
kb=l EWiEE
REZ8E ZHEFRE BRAEAEE HEES @t
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T Fr Fr T
Deferred tax arising from: EEHERE
At 1 January 2010 RZE-Z§-f-AR 73,520 (82) (1,703) (63,858) 7,877
(Credited)/charged to profit or loss RERF GEA) /1% (71,681) (3) — 63,850 (7,834)
Credited to equity REETRHA — — 43) — (43)
At 31 December 2010 ZE-FET-A=+-H
and 1 January 2011 —F£-f—H 1,839 (85) (1,746) (8) —
Charged/(credited) to profit or loss Wﬁﬁﬁ ?HK%/ A 2,430 (91) - (2,244) 95
Credited to equity REEHRE A - = (95) = (95)
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F+ZA=1-H 4,269 (176) (1,841) (2,252) —

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)

26 Capital and reserves 26 BFEkiiE

(@) Movements in components of equity (@) HZIL2H
The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each REBEZIFEEFREBNETRER
component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the FEREREEEEBRNYE - XATFIZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in B AR DO FN R FEREEFBRI
the Company's individual components of equity between the beginning THE

and the end of the year are set out below:

Share Share Retained
capital premium profits Total
B & R4 RE W& e kel
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Tr T T
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-E-BF-f-H&H 186,785 65,739 839,655 1,092,179
Changes in equity for 2010: “E-SERRED
Actuarial gains and losses of ERENRIREE
defined benefit retirement plan, ZIEERFREE BHE)
net of tax — — 488 488
Loss for the year (note 10) FEEE (H:E0 — — (554,398) (554,398)
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-Zf+-A=+-H
and 1 January 2011 k—E--5-F-RA&H% 186,785 65,739 285,745 538,269
Changes in equity for 2011: “E- RS
Actuarial gains and losses of ERENRIRET 2
defined benefit retirement plan, L RERN REE (RT®)
net of tax — = (11,723) (11,723)
Profit for the year (note 10) FEAA (H:10) — — 13,472 13,472
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-E——-F
+ZA=+-R&& 186,785 65,739 287,494 540,018
(b) Share capital (b) ME=&
The Company
AT
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
$'000 $'000
Fr T
Authorised: EERA
400,000,000 ordinary shares of $0.50 each 400,000,000 & Iz [ {60.507T
2 & 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTREBERA :
373,570,560 ordinary shares of $0.50 each as A 9] & F 7R 373,570,5608%
at beginning and end of the year FIE{EO0.50 jT 2 Tk 186,785 186,785
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as Ll a AEREEIARE RS -
declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at WAEARRNR RS FEFE —RERMOHE—
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard E o HRARTWFHREE - FTET AR
to the Company’s residual assets. HEHRSES -
EBENLERAERR A

T —FER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)

26 Capital and reserves (Continued) 26 BFEkiEim =

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) REMHERAZR

(i) Share premium (i) IR 10 E
The application of the share premium account is governed by Section FERBRGORERDZEB(ARIEN)E
48B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. ABBIRFTESE ©

(ii)  capital reserve (i) EXFEE
The capital reserve represents the reserve arising from the capitalisation ERRFEDIE—HTPBRNB AR ZRER
of retained profits of a PRC subsidiary. FERCMEE 2 FEE -

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve (i) EXRBREE
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all foreign exchange R B REERIERRETBUIN B
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of NEABRREECFIBELZEERAR
subsidiaries outside Hong Kong and the foreign exchange differences HEWIER (BRIEH BRI E A )
arising from translation of monetary items that in substance form part ZFRE) 2 EHERE o ZFERBBEN T
of the net investment in subsidiaries outside Hong Kong. The reserve is TOME BT EMERE -
dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 1(t).

(d) Distributability of reserves (d) 2DIxfEE
The distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2011 RARRIR_E——F+-A=+—H2zZ"A
were $287,494,000 (2010: $285,745,000). 5K 76 1 5287,494,000L (—ZFE— &

4 : 285,745,0007T) °
(e) capital management (e) EXER

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure on the basis of a net-debt to equity ratio. For this purpose the
Group defines net-debt as total bank loans less bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents. Management used debt to equity ratio in prior
years whereby debt was defined as total bank loans. Management
changed this to net-debt to equity ratio in 2011 as they considered
net-debt is more relevant to the Group’s financing and capital
management.

During 2011, the Group's strategy was to maintain the net-debt to equity
ratio at a reasonable level, not exceeding 100%. In order to maintain or
adjust the ratio, the Group may issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

AEEEREANTIZARERREEE
BESISARAC S - WEMARE BRI MR
RARBE MR E B RIRE - LERRKF
HERAERERE  URERESSENRR

REBREG L EHHERRBRA LR &
B - DR SBIRERIEN T AT 8 HBE
Z 8@ IEERF ER I B AHROR R
B8RRI 2 S T - I FEAER
ERME(CHERRBIELAE -

AEBUERFRBL X QEMREREE
RIRE - EATTEMER B - A AEE
B AEEFERFEERARITEFR
ROTFEAEASRERARESER - £
£ oERE-EEMAEANAGELET  MA
BRIERRBIRITER - ANEEERA
FEERERRAEENRENEARE
ﬁ;%ﬁ@%:%——i%%ﬁ$%ﬁ%
LE = o

R-FT——5F  AEEZRIEZZEHER
FEEEERI100%EEN © BT Rk
EZLLE - EEFE T ARER
R ERHEEENRIEEE -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)
26 Capital and reserves (Continued) 26 BERGHw®
(e) cCapital management (Continued) (e) EXEE®H
The net-debt to equity ratio at 31 December 2011 and 2010 was as RIB——FR_T—FTF+_A=+—
follows: HAzERFBELEFNT :
The Group The Company
rEE EAT
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —EB——F —T-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr Tt T i
Bank loans less bank deposits R &R R 1T K
and cash KB
and cash equivalents KERKREIEE 268,148 22,774 — —
Equity #a 297,223 391,474 540,018 538,269
Net-debt to equity ratio BERFEELE 90% 6% N/A N/A

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally

AR SHALTH B A B L B\ HISMEE A

imposed capital requirements. w3k
27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 BMEAREERAAMFEE
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in AEBE-—MEBBEREFEEE - AH
the normal course of the Group's business. The Group's exposure to A~ MR g R INE Rz o AR E
these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices ZERBREERAEBMRAEEZER
used by the Group to manage these risks are described below. %o AEERIE RIBY - SR o
(@) cCredit risk (@ FERR

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
to this credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

Credit limits are offered to customers following a financial assessment
and an established payment record. The general credit period is
payment by the end of the month following the month in which sales
took place. Security in the form of mortgages, cash deposits or bank
guarantees is obtained from certain customers. Customers who are
considered to have higher credit risk are traded on a cash basis. Credit
control staff monitor trade receivables and follow up collections.

The Group'’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer. At the end of the reporting period,
20% (2010: 17%) and 45% (2010: 47%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer and the five
largest customers respectively.

The Group does not provide any guarantees which would expose the
Group to credit risk. Except for the financial guarantees given by the
Company as set out in note 30, the Company does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Company to credit risk.

The Group's bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents are placed
with financial institutions with sound credit ratings, and the
management considers the Group's exposure to credit risk is low.

The Group’s exposure to the credit risk and its policies for managing
such risk were unchanged from 2010.

AEENEERREIEREEBKESME
ffRIE - BB BEEBCR - A&

BEEZEREERR -

EERBINETHVBIEREENEZ
SHRALEMEE - —REENRHE A
DER A THEREH - REEGIERL
BEPIMGRE « RITERRRITERIER
HR - ERA/EFBEREERRER - RIX
REETRS - EREZAESERENK
B 5 A K BRAE WK e

AREB 7 EZERBRTIEZERELHIEE
FE N EER  20% (2 —TF -
17%) 2 45% (Z B —ZF : 47%) MEKRE
SRHEMEBBASFIRATEBREARTS R
AREF °

ARSI R R B A AR T EHE E R
@ o BR T M R30S AR A B RO B 5 4
RIN - AR R H B A FE AR T
EERR -

AEBWRTERLRE RERREAR
EEFBRERFRRIENSREE -
It ERERAAEEEENERERS
15 -

REEESOESERARREEREER
Z—=FHERH -

BN R A
—E——FFR
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 RERRBEERAAEE®
(Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) RBESEK
As detailed in note 1(b), the Group's current liabilities exceeded its MDA - AEER T ——F+
current assets by $73,729,000 as at 31 December 2011, which indicates ZA=T—HBZABEEBHERBEE
that the Group may be unable to realise its assets and discharge its 73,729,0007¢ © EERAEBE G TRER
liabilities in the normal course of business. The directors are taking EFREKBEFBBEALZERGERES
certain actions to address these conditions in accordance with the & o BEEWIEREANER ZZARFRA (B
Group's basic principle that individual operating entities within the EREeBERBEaRAAGNESERER
Group are responsible for their own cash management and in ERASERNREHERERDESH
accordance with the Group’s policy of regularly monitoring its liquidity T URREEE TR ZIESHEREE
requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash WIS HERHRIRHEENESREE - LURE
and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial HEHRRAZREE ©FR) RN —L&
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer EREACRE BN o B R IERRTT
term. These actions include negotiating with the banks to replace the BAFARARENMEARER 2 RBARITE
Group's short term bank loans with longer term funding. Until Ko fEERBRVE 2B - EEIFERITHE
completion of this refinancing, the directors are taking action to RITEFA=ZNE AR BEMRER o 48
negotiate roll-overs of the short term bank loans on a three to six month A1 R ARTTE A — eI E M
basis. Further details of these actions and the bank loans concerned 1(b) °
are set out in note 1(b).
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities at the TEREAEBRARANRGEE AV KEE
end of the reporting period of the Group's and the Company’s financial 2 A QR IEF AT - WAFTAR
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows AERBeRE BREIRINEXRTE Y
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if FBEXZH kB F B HEERE
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and Az EEAEZFEH) RAEEER
the earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay: ARIAHBRZ P ERABRELONE
* o
The Group NEE
2011 2010
~¥-—F It
Contractual Contractual
undiscounted undiscounted
cash outflow cash outflow
SN ERBER AHERER
HWEERE MELRE
Total - Total -
Within Within
1 year or Carrying 1 year or Carrying
on demand amount on demand amount
—ERH —FR
RERE RE K
e REE Bl Rk R
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr T T
Bank loans FITER 334,934 313,734 261,207 249,206
Trade and other payables BNESREMIEE 148,917 148,917 150,203 150,203
Amounts due to holding FERTER A
companies and fellow LEZMERRRE
subsidiaries 18,440 18,440 10,995 10,995
Amount due [ETEERRIIRIA
to related companies 2,324 2,324 2,396 2,396
504,615 483,415 424,801 412,800

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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27

(b)

(B SEERI - RBEE)

Financial risk management and fair values 27 £BEBRETERLAABEG

(Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
The Company

(b) REBEZER (@
ARH

2011
o

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow

ERNLRBENELSRE
More than
Within 1 year but
1 year or less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
—FRH
RERE BR-—F
Ep:i] BHIR=F M IREE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr T T Fr
Trade and other payables R E 5 Rk EMIRE 61,663 — 61,663 61,663
Amounts due to holding FERHERL A A)
companies and fellow PAEES iNGIERE
subsidiaries 10,978 — 10,978 10,978
Amount due to a related company  FEff — & @ A RIBR 18 172 — 172 172
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHB AR ERIA — 558,135 558,135 558,135
72,813 558,135 630,948 630,948
2010
—E-TF
Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow
SR ERBBNRERE
More than
Within 1 year but
1yearor less than Carrying
on demand 2 years Total amount
—F Nk B
R E K —F@D
Elj:s RZ—F PR FRERE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T T T
Trade and other payables BRE S REMIRIE 59,566 — 59,566 59,566
Amounts due to holding [EHER R A
companies and fellow PAEES iNGESE
subsidiaries 9,054 — 9,054 9,054
Amount due to a related company  FEff — & @ A BIBR 18 2683 — 268 268
Amounts due to subsidiaries B A RERIA 3,127 373,150 376,277 376,277
72,015 373,150 445,165 445,165
BERENSERER AT

—E——FFH
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 £REREERAAEE®
(Continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) F=ERERE
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing AEEBZHERBRESHFEENESE -
borrowings. The Group monitors the level of its fixed rate and variable ANEE g B PR B R K & E AR A ERTT
rate borrowings. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by BEFUKE - REEBEHEREBEIENF R
management is set out in (i) below. BENTXX)
(i) Interest rate profile (i) MR EE
The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group’s bank TRAERNEBENGEER ZRITERZFE
loans at the end of the reporting period: &
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate Amount rate Amount
BERA=E k-] BERF = k-t
% $'000 % $'000
T Ft
Fixed rate borrowings: EEFEER
— Bank loans — HRITERK 6.26 128,695 4.45 131,682
Variable rate borrowings: EFEFEER
— Bank loans —RITER 7.11 185,039 5.23 117,524
(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (i) BWBREDW

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease
of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased the Group's loss after
taxation and accumulated losses by approximately $1,850,000 (2010:
$1,175,000). The tax effect was assumed to be nil as the entity having
these loans had unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes since
it is not probable that it would generate future taxable profits against
which tax losses can be utilised.

RIB——F+-A=+—8  fHFH=x
EATHR—EET  EEMATEPHEE
REFTEOBERT - REBREERBEZ
BREIZFBEEE MBS
1,850,000 (=& —F 4 : 1,175,000
Jo) ° R RBERETE R RBESNIES B HIE
ARREF ARG EE - BEXBLR
MR BB B EIERIA - B RR
RSB EREEE -

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in A EBRME S ITE RN EEHRTEE R
the Group's loss after taxation and accumulated losses in respect of & 2T EERRNSE L - YRR AEER

the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate
instruments held by the Group at the end of the reporting period. The
impact on the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses is
estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense of such a change
in interest rates. Management assumed that certain interest-bearing
borrowings maturing during the next reporting period will be rolled over
upon the maturing for daily operation purposes.

The Group does not account for any fixed rate borrowings at fair value
through profit or loss, and the Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its debt obligations. The fixed rate instruments of
the Group are insensitive to any change in market interest rates. A
change in interest rates at end of the reporting period would not affect
profit or loss.

RERAMFANZHNETA  5[BAE
EmERR SR R ERMTEE - AKERR
BIRER MR BRAZE T AR TN X
B S ERNFELEEMGT - KE
BRZAON T —REBHEIB 25 EE
R B B E B DA R AR R REE -

A=

G B R A B R E E AR S 8
B AR - RAERITESRT
BUAS BT - ALEYBEREL
BRI B T - REHH 2
FEBBEHE R L BPE -
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(d)

0}

Financial risk management and fair values

(Continued)

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through sales,
purchases, borrowings, expenses and recharges amongst group entities
which give rise to receivables, payables, bank loans and cash balances
that are denominated in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than
the functional currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States
dollars, Euros and Australian dollars.

For group entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars, all
sales and purchases are denominated in either Hong Kong dollars or
United States dollars, except for certain purchases from Europe or
Australia. Given that Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States
dollar, management do not expect that there will be any significant
currency risk associated with such United States dollars denominated
transactions. For transactions denominated in Australian dollars, since
the volume of such transactions is not significant, management consider
the exposure to currency risk to be low.

For group entities whose functional currency is Renminbi, except for
certain borrowings (from group entities and banks) and transactions
amongst group entities that are denominated in either Hong Kong
dollars or United States dollars, most of other transactions are
denominated in Renminbi. For borrowings denominated in United States
dollars, the management review the exposure regularly and may
consider replacing them with borrowings in other currencies, depending
on the movement in exchange rate of Renminbi against other
currencies, including the United States dollar. For other transactions
amongst group entities denominated in United States dollars or Hong
Kong dollars, the management consider the transaction amounts are
not significant and the exposure to currency risk is low.

The Group's exposure to currency risk and its policies for managing
such risk were unchanged from 2010.

Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. The
exposure arising from the borrowings from group entities that in
substance form part of the net investment in subsidiaries is excluded.
For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in
Hong Kong dollars, translated using the spot rates at the year end date.
Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements
of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s presentation
currency are excluded.

27

(d)

0}

B B R AR Y R

(B SEERI - RBEE)

SRHRABRERBRAOAEE®

S BE L B
AEBTEREERS B3 SEZME
BB A R E A E A ASNE (B2 2 W
SUFBBEHB2NEESR) REMAZE
R - EARRSR - |RITRERRREHE
7 - AifEESNERL o 5| BOMNERRZ
E¥TERERT  BEKRT -

HREBANNEBTENREERNSEE
B8 BRRLE A BUNSORMNETTIRE
S FTEHE RIEES BT ETTIER
ZE® - ANETTEITTHY - WAKE
R ABTEXTGERELE - =
RIVRTFHEZR 5 AR AR E BB
ENRZETS  BMARERRAELH
BRIMER R AK -

HREEANARBIENEERNSEE
B RTHEEZHENR S REMDER
(REESLIRITER) EABTTRETIFE
i » B R ZRIAANRBIEEL - §E
TEETTER - EREEERFELRE
BARARBHEMEYR - fiFXT2E
REH  BRRERBAEMEEERER
K- BRESERASTIETIEEMME
025 ERERR/RFITEIEN A
HE N BRIMNERBR T A

AEBESNERBRRAEERAR -2
— T -

A 2 HNE B R

TRUARE RADRREE B I IENAA
HEREESHENCHEREAEXBE
P 2 SNE R H A DT « TR
BESEANRLMEARELERGZE
RE B REREIE QR 8 FRE S — A
D) MELAMER - TRNEBEIIREHE
BZERGBAEBIERINZH - HER
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27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 RERRBEERAAEE®
(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) sERER (&)
(i) Exposure to currency risk (Continued) (i) AZZHERK (B)
The Group AEE

Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

SHNERR (RBTTE)
2011 2010
S —T-%F
United United
States  Hong Kong States  Hong Kong
dollars dollars Euro dollars dollars Euro
EYm BT BE XL B BNz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr T T T
Trade and other receivables W E 5 L E i #RE 27 — 1,992 — — —
Amounts due from holding ~ FEURIZAZA &)
companies and fellow S EELEING!
subsidiaries BRI 12,308 - — 15,876 — —
Pledged deposits ERER 64,794 = = — — —
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BHeKERREEE 3,952 19 69 64,259 296 72
Bank loans RITER (50,523) - — (50,591) — —
Trade and other payables EHEZREMER (12,771) — (4,803) (7,214) — (2,281)
Amounts due to holding FER R AR
companies and fellow PEEY- NG
subsidiaries HR1E (17,329) (9,773) — (8,677) (14,692) —
Net exposure R R IEFE 458 (9,754) (2,742) 13,653 (14,396) (2,209)
The Company AT
Exposure to foreign currencies
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
SRR (RBTHE)
2011 2010
—B——-F —T-TF
United States United States
dollars Euro dollars Euro
EYn BE ET Bz
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr Fr Fr
Trade and other receivables EWE 5 Kk EMERER 27 1,992 — —
Amounts due from holding JE W iR N A)
companies and fellow RFEZBLRIRE
subsidiaries 12,308 — 10,818 —
Pledged deposits EREH 64,794 = — —
Cash and cash equivalents RekERELER 3,945 69 6,659 72
Trade and other payables ERE S REMEKER (12,248) (4,803) (7,214) (2,281)
Amounts due to holding JERT AR A A
companies and fellow KA ZWBARIRE
subsidiaries (10,964) — (6,776) —
Net exposure [ B AR S R 57,862 (2,742) 3,487 (2,209)

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BREHBEETRI - IRBETE)

27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 &£RERBEERAARLEE®

(Continued)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) (d) ERE (E)

(ii)  Sensitivity analysis (ii) BRBMED T
The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's TRETAEBENEERIRAEARER” 2
loss after taxation and accumulated losses that would arise if foreign INESPE RN E A B RS E 2 FiigEE
exchange rates to which the group entities have significant exposure R E2FTEENTE B R&REMmERE
at the end of the reporting period had changed at that date, assuming BHIE UM E ERBBTEET
all other risk variables remained constant. In this respect, it is assumed ZHENBMEER AR L IATETLAME
that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United k2 BESEMTE - WA - HIRNKRE
States dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in TEARIREESNES B e SR A F DK 0 FR
movement in value of the United States dollar against other currencies. BEE - BERABARERTBBEMECE
Also, tax effect was assumed to be nil for the entities which had ERLIE - E b bl S B R R A
unrecognised tax losses for deferred tax purposes since it is not 2.

probable that they would generate future taxable profits against which
tax losses can be utilised.

2011 2010
—E--F —E-TF
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) Increase/ Increase/ (decrease) Increase/ Increase/
in foreign  (decrease) (decrease) in in foreign (decrease)  (decrease) in
exchange in loss after accumulated exchange inloss after  accumulated
rates taxation losses rates taxation losses

HNEER RELER ZHER SMNERER  BRBEEE i BE
tH/ #hn,/ #hn,/ A/ #m,/ i,/

(T %) (R 4) (%) (T%) (R ) (R2)

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T Tr T Tr

United States dollars ey 5% 2,870 2,870 5% 2,346 2,346

(5)% (2,870) (2,870) (5)% (2,346) (2,346)

Hong Kong dollars B 5% 488 488 5% 720 720

(5)% (488) (488) (5)% (720) (720)

Euro B 5% 137 137 5% 110 110

(5)% (137) (137) (5)% (110) (110)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an ERMZANZ OMEREAEE S EEE

aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the group entities’ LMERIWEEEBE (BEFRER - B

profit or loss measured in the respective functional currencies, HEACZEXZBABT) o ANFEER
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the RSP E o

end of the reporting period for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange FREDTERBINEER 2 ZFHE AR
rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held ENFEAREMBFEUREEAFEARE
by the Group which expose the Group to currency risk at the end of the EEE/NERBEMTE  BEEERM
reporting period, including inter-company payables and receivables AW IEE T S E 5 2 IRE B Ve B AT ) &
within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the W EMERIE - WESHRKREEEHEE
functional currency of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes T—FEHLEEAMERA g BNEIRT
differences that would result from the translation of the financial & o WM T BIESEEAINGB AR Z
statements of subsidiaries outside Hong Kong into the Group’s W mEMRENAEEZ 25 EEMESE
presentation currency. The analysis has been performed on the same ZER o ZIENMIRM _ T —TFERZ
basis as for 2010. AT o
BBE NG BEAR A A

—E——FFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)
27 Financial risk management and fair values 27 RERRBEERAAEE®
(Continued)
(e) Fair value (e) 2REHE
The non-trade balances with holding companies and fellow subsidiaries R ABIRRARMBATMNIEE HER
are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed repayment terms. Given EHpHREER RS S B EETERE -
these terms, it is not meaningful to disclose their fair values. ERZERR  HEEQAABEZEED
% o
All other significant financial assets and liabilities are carried at amounts FEEMmEReRMEERBENREER
not materially different from their fair values as at 31 December 2011 HEAER-_E——FR-F-FF+-A
and 2010. =t+-HMNAREBEITEEREZE -
28 Commitments 28 ki
(a) cCapital commitments outstanding at 31 December (@) R=-TE——F%+=-A=+—-H' %
2011 not provided for in the financial statements were ERBBRRPEBE2ZRTEREE
as follows: HEOT
The Group The Company
EE RAF]
2011 2010 2011 2010
—B——-Ff —T-THF ZB—-—F “—T-ITF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fr T+ T Tt
Contracted for =TS — 325 — 325
Authorised but not EHLEBRRETA
contracted for 2,992 2,182 2,753 1,300
2,992 2,507 2,753 1,625
(b) At 31 December 2011, the total future minimumlease (b) HR=-E——F+=-A=+—-H #&
payments under non-cancellable operating leases BRAUHESEHEmENS 2 RK
were payable as follows: BREHEEREBOT :
The Group The Company
TEH ARA T
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF ZB——-F ZZT-ITF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fx Tt Fx Tt
Land and buildings THREE
Within 1 year —F RN 1,273 1,824 — —
After 1 year —FERERAFR
but within 5 years 77 1,065 — —
1,350 2,889 — —
Plant and machinery B E & es
Within 1 year —FR — 5 — —
1,350 2,894 — —

The Group, as a lessee, leases a number of properties and items of
machinery and equipment under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period of two years with an option to renew each
lease upon expiry when all terms are renegotiated. None of the leases
includes contingent rentals.

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(a)

B B R AR Y R

(BREHERRN - GREEHE

29 Material related party transactions 29 EXREAETES
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in BRAMBHERSERE 2R 5 REHIN -
these financial statements, the Group entered into the following material REBEFLATERBEALRS -
related party transactions:
Transactions with group companies (a) KEERFZEHEERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
& B () FR&ER
2011 2010 2011 2010
-F—— —E-TF ZEB—— —E-ETF
Note $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
BE T ¥ T Tt
Purchases from E= 4] 0]
— ultimate holding company — — &R A A — 7 — (7)
— intermediate holding — FERA A
company 4,498 4,484 (912) (517)
— fellow subsidiaries — RRB AR 46,765 37,069 (9,317) (7,842)
— related companies — BERTA] 2,807 5,453 (227) (466)
Sales to BT i)
— intermediate holding — FNERA A
company 93,492 55,891 12,071 9,116
— fellow subsidiaries — RRMHEBRA 28 46 — 20
Rental expense payable S IRES A
to a fellow subsidiary He®EHA () 259 — (266) —
Royalty payments to INEFEEA (i)
— intermediate holding — RN ER AT
companies 1,490 1,554 (1,199) (1,311)
— a fellow subsidiary — RRMHE R A — 415 — (383)
— a related company — BEN A 2,049 1,951 (2,097) (1,930)
Engineering design fee payable X ft[E &M E A&l
to a fellow subsidiary TR ER (iii) — — (234) (234)
Leasing fee from a fellow W E R B AT
subsidiary HEEA (iv) 3,134 2,984 — —
Notes: 5T -
(i) Sales to and purchases from group companies were carried out at terms 0] hWERGEREFREZGER#ET B

mutually agreed by both parties. The terms of the outstanding balances
are set out in note 19.

Related companies are related to the Group as their ultimate holding
company has a significant influence over the Group.

(if) Royalties are payable to intermediate holding companies, a fellow
subsidiary and a minority shareholder for the use of certain trademarks
pursuant to relevant licensing agreements.

During the year, the intermediate holding company waived the Group's
royalty amounting to $1,430,000 (2010: $603,000), which is not included
in the amounts disclosed above.

(iii) Engineering design services were provided by a fellow subsidiary in
respect of a subsidiary’s brewery expansion plan according to an
Engineering Design Services Agreement.

(iv) Leasing fee from a fellow subsidiary represented rental income earned
by leasing out the Group's waste water discharge pipeline located in
the PRC to a fellow subsidiary.

(v) Rental expense was paid to a fellow subsidiary for a temporary
warehouse for inventory storage.

These transactions also constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, except for the purchases from related companies which
the directors do not consider as connected transactions under the
Listing Rules.

B E A R 2 AR I RE 19 511 BT o

=g

i A A B A 5 [ A B E A AR Y
BRARHAEEFEATE -

(ii) SR EERE SR RME
=

H

FEARMEREEI N FRMERAF -
BEMBAGI R —JELERBREN

}Eﬁ °

RAFEE  —FNERIFABEAE
] ) 5 ) 7 2 3 $£1,430,000 7T (=%
—Z4 : 603,0000T) * LS FEINEHEE
FBE LIRS EFR -

(iii) ITREFEADNREIERTAR
MEARZEBARERTEH —RRH
J=NGIE

(iv) WRZRMBARHAEBRZE —RR
BB A =) FH A B A P B MO S5 K R IR
BEERENESIA -

(v) HEBAXNTRRANBRARDR/REST
BEZHEBEBAM -
RELETRY - EXH (BEHERR
LR BN BREER S - HEA K
PIRRREEHBEMERRZXHTE

BB N S ERE R A T
—T——F5H
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BB B ERI  RBEETHE)

29 Material related party transactions (continued) 29 BEXREBEAELZS®

(b) Other transactions with group companies (b) HSERHMBERS
Due from/(to)
Amounts balances at year end
&8 B () FE&EF

2011 2010 2011 2010

—E——F —Z2—ITF ZEB——F =—T-IZF

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

T FT Fx Ft

Expenses paid by the Group MASEBEARBEEARNRTER
on behalf of group

companies
— ultimate holding company — &#&#ERA &) 2,808 3,321 236 1,630
— intermediate holding R ER AT
companies 926 232 — 4,942
— fellow subsidiaries SES Y EPNG] 72 386 8 220
Expenses paid by group RBELARRAEBERTER
companies on the Group'’s
behalf
— ultimate holding company — &#&IZEAF] 83 126 — —
— intermediate holding R ER AT
companies 7,607 1,757 (6,493) —
— fellow subsidiaries SES Y EPNG] 35 31 (3) (701)
(c) Key management personnel remuneration (c) FEEBAEM2
Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including REBEZEEAB S (BIEHFESHT
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note 8 and HRAARNQTESIN 2 RIE KM FERT
the highest paid employees as disclosed in note 9, is as follows: HERNETHRFEEXMN ZHIE) W
T
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-TF
$'000 $'000
o T
Short-term employee benefits EHEERF 13,883 14,782
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 R T 1,653 779
15,536 15,561
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note 6(b)). “LMe R ATEIHFM A (R
6(b) °

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

30

31

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2011, there were contingent liabilities in respect of
guarantees given to banks by the Company to secure banking facilities
made available to a subsidiary which expire on 30 May 2012.

As at the end of the reporting period, the directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Company under any of
the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the end of
the reporting period under the guarantees issued is the facilities drawn
down by the subsidiary of $123,359,000 (2010: $117,524,000).

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect of
the guarantees as the fair values cannot be reliably measured and its
transaction price was $Nil (2010: $Nil). Also, the Company does not
expect any reimbursement from other parties with respect to these
contingent liabilities.

Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2011, the Directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Neptunia Corporation
Limited and San Miguel Corporation respectively. Neptunia Corporation
Limited is incorporated in Hong Kong while San Miguel Corporation is
incorporated in the Republic of the Philippines. San Miguel Corporation
produces financial statements available for public use.

30

31

B B R AR Y R

(B SEHRIN - HRAEEE)
KAREK

WoZ——F+=A=+—H  ARFF
FE R RV ERTT1E B R IA 23 —FE Y /B8 2 B ER
BRITEEMELNIARE - HERE
W-E——FEA=THIE

NEEH  EERAMZERMEARQR]
EREENHESTK - MEEBARRARE
EHERTHESEEAZMBARBA
2 HAR1E8123,359,0007T (= T — 84 ¢
117,524,0007T) °

RZERO DA BEREERTE - BEX
ZERRET(CE-ZF  Tn) AR
) 1 R AR B RX R IR AV (E DA A
AN - ARBALIEEME T HZFRAR
BEHEE -

HEEREREZERLF

R-T——F+-F=+—0 EED5
AEBENERSAARBLIZEARS
ATHNERDRRENBAT ° SIHF
BIRA AR BT ST & 0 A B R
RIEREHAMEIMAT o £NRARR
REBRRTARER -

BN R A
—E——FFR
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32

Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has
issued a number of amendments and five new standards which are
not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2011 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the
following which may be relevant to the Group:

32

BAES AR M AT

(ERERRIN  BIRBEEE)

EHEGERNREE"_ZS—F1+
—B=1+—HLEFEEERRHER
£57 - FTEA KRR REEKAEY
4

HEAPBKREATIER  EASHMAE
BERAEEREE_T—F+A=+
—HIEFENARERGEER] R AIEH
| MAPERERL BERANZFETR
MR o Hep - ATEARNERFR

Effective for RTH AR
accounting periods ZEEBZ
beginning on or after SFHBEXN

Amendments to HKFRS 7, 1 July 2011 EEYBRELBESR —T——F
Financial instruments: Disclosures (1£57) [ B T A - +HA—AH
— Transfers of financial assets R — e EE

iz

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes 1 January 2012

— Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying assets BB ERNE1298 —EF—CF
(15]) [FT13 —A—H
— FEHFIE
W& EWRE]

Amendments to HKAS 1, 1 July 2012 B G ERE 1R —E——F
Presentation of financial statements (1E3]) [ % #H & +A—H
— Presentation of items of other 23— AMEE
comprehensive income WaIEH 23]

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2015 EAYBRELBFENR —T—AF

[/ T A —HA—H

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013 BEMBRELENFI0% ZT—=F

[#rE B HR#& —A—H
HKFRS 11, Joint arrangements 1 January 2013 BEAMBRELENE NG —ZT—=F
EELHE] —A—H
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013 EBMBRELELE 125 —T—=F
A EE#ER H5E] —A—H
HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement 1 January 2013 BBV BHEEREIZK —T—=
[AEEEZ] —A—H
HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013 BERE G ERNE275R —T—=%F
[ 8 37 B 7% i % —A—H
(ZF——)]

HKAS 28, Investments in associates 1 January 2013 B G ERE 285 —T—=%F

and joint ventures [FHErREReErE —HA—H
ZRE]

Revised HKAS 19, Employee benefits 1 January 2013 BEREGTENE195% —T—=%F

(&1&8]) [1ES 5] —A—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact
of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Group's or the Company’s results of
operations and financial position.

AEE ERHEZEEANERTN &R E AR
V& BERARL - AEERBRRZ
SRS UCHERN SE RN 3
KA AR ERZEH A REIE K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of San Miguel
Brewery Hong Kong Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
“the Group”) set out on pages 58 to 132, which comprise the consolidated
and company statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

BZBENRE

BYRBERE
BERENEERERAFARR
(REBEMA LB IR 2 A7)

Az BED AT RERE [3P)) B /At DI BN F58
BEEFRNEFBLENEERARLA ([EA
ADEEMBAR (2REATESE]) WEE
MBHRE - WEEVBRREBER T ——F
TZA=t—HOEEMAmMBIRRE - &
EZHLEFENGEENRAER  HKEe2ERE
R OFABGEHRNGAERERERNALE
ZETBRRUBLE MM EREER

BERANERAARRBE LSS ASHEM
HCEBM B RS R BB RGRID RR
RAEPB®RE  USHEEMBRRELEEM
DNFORREEBEERRRELR S M IEHREA
VEREES - MESEM BRI T FER
RERFF SR AR T S B B A SRR AL -

BANETRRERMNBSHZFREVH
BRIELER - HPHRRBFE(ARIED) H
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B o AT EZ SRR - ZEENE BEZ QA
RBER BB RERAELBEE M A F R R
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
December 2011 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 1(b) to the
consolidated financial statements which indicates that the Group sustained
a consolidated net loss from continuing operations attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$53,464,000 for the year ended 31
December 2011 and, as of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded
its current assets by HK$73,729,000. These conditions indicate the
existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. As further detailed in
note 1(b) to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has identified
measures to improve its performance and financial position and is in the
process of implementing them as at the date of this report. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which is dependent on the successful implementation
of these measures and the commitment of the Group's holding company
to provide continuing support to enable the Group to operate as a going
concern and meet its liabilities as they fall due for the foreseeable future.
The consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that
would result should the Group be unable to continue to operate as a going
concern.

O,

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road
Central, Hong Kong

2 February 2012
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FIVE YEAR SUMMARY | EFRBEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LAB T &)
The Group
r£E
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—g——-& —ZT-TF C—TTHNF —TENF C—TTLHF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr Fr Fr Fr
Results ES
Turnover BED 683,879 589,322 696,824 753,375 754,833
Loss before taxation FREE A B 18 (69,027) (782,509) (345,324) (316,692) (315,178)
Income tax credit ETiE Rt A 389 8,522 2,272 58,537 55,355
Loss for the year FEEE (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155) (259,823)
Attributable to: BT :
— Equity shareholders of the Company — ARAEEFEA (53,464) (736,984) (334,856) (259,907) (262,127)
— Non-controlling interests — JEIER R (15,174) (37,003) (8,196) 1,752 2,304
Loss for the year FEEE (68,638) (773,987) (343,052) (258,155) (259,823)
Loss per share FREE
— Basic (cents) — ZEAR ML) (14) (197) (90) (70) (70)
Cash dividends per share (cents) FRBEERE () = — — — —
Assets and liabilities BEHEE
Fixed assets BETEE 389,671 398,011 1,087,198 1,379,561 1,496,910
Intangible assets ERAE 5,709 5,678 17,122 28,722 39,643
Goodwill RS — — — — 5,044
Other tangible assets HMBEWEE - — 18,565 41,192 53,164
Net current (liabilities)/assets TwE(BE) AEFE (73,729) 9,988 77,370 94,463 229,015
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTDERE 321,651 413,677 1,200,255 1,543,938 1,823,776
Retirement benefit liabilities BREMEE (20,975) (18,143) (18,089) (37,845) (8,625)
Deferred tax liabilities EREFHIBAE (3,453) (4,060) (12,682) (15,168) (63,586)
Net assets EEFE 297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565

San Miguel Brewery Hong Kong Ltd.

Annual Report 2011



FIVE YEAR SUMMARY | A RERE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LABHERT &)
The Group
r&E
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
- Z—T-TF ZTLTHNF ZZTENF CZTTLHF
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T Fr Fr T Fr
Capital and reserves BARFHE
Share capital 7R 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785 186,785
Reserves & 128,366 205,485 945,805 1,259,120 1,524,003
Total equity attributable to equity ARFERBEA
shareholders of the Company e 315,151 392,270 1,132,590 1,445,905 1,710,788
Non-controlling interests R ER (17,928) (796) 36,894 45,020 40,777
Total equity EEEE 297,223 391,474 1,169,484 1,490,925 1,751,565

Notes to the five year summary:

In order to comply with the amendments to HKAS 27, Consolidated and separate financial
Statements, in 2010, the Group changed its accounting policy for the allocation of losses
to non-controlling interests. This change has been applied prospectively as from the
year ended 31 December 2010 and net assets and losses for earlier periods have not
been restated.
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